
Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 AGENDA 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Times shown are approximate. The SHDC reserves the right to adjust the agenda as circumstances warrant. 
The SHDC reserves the right to convene in Closed Session as permitted under the Annotated Code of Maryland, General 

Provisions Article, Section 3-305(b). 

Wednesday, April 24, 2024 at 7:00 pm 
Government Office Building Room 301 

1. 7:00 P.M. - CALL TO ORDER – Scott Saxman, Chairman

2. ROLL CALL

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 27, 2024

PUBLIC INPUT – Members of the public are welcome to make comment at this time, subject to a time allotment 
of two (2) minutes per person. 

5. CONSENT DOCKET - None

6. OLD BUSINESS –  None

7. NEW BUSINESS –
• #24-05 – 100 W Main St– Removal of Sign*
• #24-06 – 501 W Main St – Alterations of Window, Vent, Awning*
• #24-07 – 233 Newton St – Solar System Install*
• #24-08 – 213 E Isabella St – Repairs to Front Porch
• #24-09 – 111 Walnut St – New Construction at Rear of Property

*this indicates that the structure has been deemed a contributing structure by 
the SHDC
*this indicates that the structure has been deemed a Non-contributing structure 
by the SHDC



Salisbury Historic District Commission 
March 27, 2024 

 
The Salisbury Historic District Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, March 27, 2024. The meeting 
took place at 125 N Division St Room 301 with attendance as follows: 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT   CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT 
Scott Saxman, Chair- Absent   Laura Hay, City Attorney- Present 
Matt Auchey, Vice Chairman – Present  Amanda Rodriquez, Infrastructure & Development- Present 
Lynne Bratten - Present      
Brad Phillips- Present, on Zoom     
Margaret Lawson- Present     
Brenden Frederick – Present, on Zoom 
Lisa Gingrich – Present 
              
 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Mr. Matt Auchey, acting Chair, called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   

 
2. ROLL CALL - Each member of the Commission introduced themselves for the record. The Chairman explains 

the procedure of the meeting to all applicants and administered the oath en masse to all persons intending to 
testify.   

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Approvals of the minutes from January 24, 2024 were approved as 

submitted. Matt Auchey made a motion to approve. Lynne Bratten requests more details be included in 
meeting minutes going forward. Margaret Lawson seconds the motion. The Commission votes unanimously 
to approve the minutes as submitted. 

 
PUBLIC INPUT – Members of the public are welcome to make comment at this time, subject to a time 
allotment of two (2) minutes per person. 
 

 
4. CONSENT DOCKET –  Matt Auchey makes a motion to move cases #24-02 – 108 W Main St – New Sign, 

and #24-03 – 218 W Main St – New Sign, to the consent docket. Lynne Bratten seconds the motion for case 
#24-03 only to be moved to the consent docket. The motion was amended to move case #24-03 on the consent 
docket. The commission votes unanimously to approve the move. 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS – None 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS-  

• #24-02 – 108 W Main St – New Sign – Michael Borkowski & Aisha Clark came forward to introduce 
themselves. Mr. Auchey makes a motion to deem the building contributing based on the fact that it’s 
listed on the Wicomico Historical listing. Lynne Bratten seconds the motion. The commission votes 
unanimously to deem the building contributing. Mr. Borkowski explains the purpose of his business is 
to have a free museum and art gallery in his Tattoo Shop. Aisha Clark, the sign designer, describes the 
sign as using rope and screw in each board for proper support. Lisa Gingrich requests clarification the 
sign will not be swinging. Ms. Clark confirms clips will swirl shut and lock to prevent the swinging of 
the sign. The bolt and circle lags will also contribute to holding the sign in place. Brad Phillips makes 
motion to approve the case as submitted. Margaret Lawsons seconds the motion. The commission votes 
unanimously to approve the application as submitted. 

• #24-03 – 218 W Main St – New Sign – approved as submitted  
• #24-04 – 109 Poplar Hill Ave – Windows & Doors Replacement – Jimmy Hartstein came forward to 

present the case. Mr. Hartstein explained the existing windows are leaking and creating damage to the 
inside of the building.  Mr. Hartstein continues to explain the replacement windows (green and metal 
casing windows) will be installed to avoid future rotting. Ms. Bratten requests to confirm the 
woodworking outside the building will be left as is. Mr. Auchey requests Hartstein to confirm upper 



 2 

floor windows will be replaced with the same materials. Brenden Frederick Motions to approve 
application as amended. The amendment is to eliminate the use of aluminum storefront window system 
which is for commercial use and revert back to residential style windows that replicates existing lighting 
features to match patterns that are currently there. Utilize a window system allowed by current 
guidelines which can be aluminum-clad wood windows or fiber-glass composite. The doors must be 
replaced in kind with similar profile and materials. Mr. Hartstein agreed to amendment. Brad Phillips 
seconds the motion to approve. The commission votes to approve the application as amended. 

 
7. Adjourn the Meeting-   

Mr. Auchey makes a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Brenden Frederick seconds the motion.  The 
Commission votes unanimously to adjourn the meeting. 

 
This is a summary of the proceedings of this meeting.  Detailed information is in the permanent files of each case 
as presented and filed in the City of Salisbury, Housing & Community Development Department. 
 
 ____________________________   _________________________ 
       Scott Saxman,  Chairman                Date 
 
 ____________________________    _________________________ 
   Amanda Rodriquez, City Planner      Date  



Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 

 
Hearing Notification 

 
Hearing Date:     April 24, 2024 
 
Time:       7:00 pm 
 
Location:  Government Office Building  

125 N. Division Street  
Salisbury, MD. 21804 
Room 301  

 
Case Number:     #24-05 
 
Commission Considering: Sign - Removal  
 
Owner’s Name:   Adams Housing 
 
Applicant Name:     Scott Saxman 
 
Agent/Contractor:     Scott Saxman 
 
Subject Property Address:    100 W Main St 
 
Historic District:      Salisbury Historic District 
 
Use Category:     Commercial 
 
Chairman:       Mr. Scott Saxman 
 
HDC Staff contact:     Amanda Rodriquez   

City Planner 
       (410) 548-3170 



24-05















Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 

STAFF FINDINGS 
 

Meeting of April 24, 2024 
 

 
Case Number:     #24-05 
 
Commission Considering: Sign Removal 
 
Owner Name: Adams Housing 
Owners Address:  
 100 W Main St,  

Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Applicant Name:     Scott Saxman 
 
Applicant’s Address:    100 W Main St,   
       Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Agent/Contractor:     Scott Saxman 
 
Subject Property Address:    100 W Main Street 
 
Historic District:      Downtown Historic District   
 
Use Category:     Commercial/Residential 
 
Zoning Classification:    Central Business District 
 
Structure / Site Description: 
 

Built Date:     1914 
 
Enclosed Area:    11,407 sq. ft. 

 
Lot Size:     3,322 sq. ft. 

 
Number of Stories:    Undetermined 

 
Contributing Structure:    Contributing, 11/19/2014 
 



 
 
 
 
Wicomico County Historic Survey on file:   No 
 
Nearby Properties on County Survey:   Yes   
 
Properties included below but not limited to: 
 
WI-267–  108 W Main Street-- John Handson Savings & Loan Bank (Eastern Shore 
Savings & Loan Building) 
 
Explanation of Request: The applicant is seeking approval to remove two Whiting-Turner 
Signs 
 
Areas of Historic Guidelines to be considered: 
 
SIGNAGE (Page 42) 
Signs are used for advertising, identity, and image. They are an extremely visible element 
of the businesses in the historic districts. Each sign must be used carefully so as not to 
detract from the historic facades. With some forethought and planning, signage can 
embrace business owners’ needs and Salisbury’s historic image. 
 
Placement 
On most downtown buildings a continuous brick ledge or corbelling is used to separate 
the second floor and above from the entry-level storefront below. This space is ideal for 
sign placement, as it was often created for this purpose. In some instances, newer 
buildings contain areas above the highest windows for signage. This location is 
acceptable but should be avoided if possible. 
 
Another option for a main sign location can be an awning, provided the awning is 
properly integrated with the building and demonstrated by earlier photographs of the 
building. Other types of signage allowed include hanging, window, awning, or any sign 
that is located below the main sign. If a projected sign is planned, placement will be 
critical to avoid interferences with adjacent signs and architecture of the storefront itself. 
 
These signs should be located no less than eight feet above the sidewalk. Window signs 
should consist of a material and color that contrasts with the display, while being small 
enough to not interfere with the display area. In all cases in locating the sign, the 
applicant must minimize the disturbance to the exterior of the building, i.e. using the least 
amount of mounting bolts as possible. On masonry buildings, mounting hardware must 
be placed into mortar joints, not historic masonry. 
 
Sign Ordinance 
 



The City of Salisbury has enacted an ordinance that is explicit concerning types, sizes, 
construction, and placement of signs. Signs that cannot be used are: flashing, moving, 
swinging, painted wall signs, or roof signs. Flood-lit signs are also prohibited unless the 
lights are shielded from view. Obscene signs and those that resemble official traffic signs 
will not be allowed. 
 
Construction of signs is subject to the City of Salisbury Sign Ordinance Chapter 17.1. 
Each sign is subject to review by the Historic District Commission and recommendations 
are provided to the Department of Building, Permits & Inspections. Each sign will be 
reviewed for location, total sign area, size, height, letters, and message. 
 
Evaluation Criteria:  
 

Pursuant to Section 17.52.040 A & B of the Salisbury Zoning Code, it is the duty 
of the Historic District Commission to review all applications to construct, alter, 
reconstruct, move or demolish any structure within a Historic District whenever the 
exterior appearance of such structure is affected, and to approve or reject said 
application.  In reviewing an application and plans, the Commission should give 
consideration to review criteria, and may make a determination as to which of said 
Criteria are applicable.   

 
 

Staff Findings Prepared By: Jennifer Jean 
Infrastructure and Development 
125 N Division Street, Suite 304 

Salisbury, MD 21801 
(410) 548-3170 

Date: April 24, 2024 



WI-267 

John Handson Savings & Loan Bank (Eastern Shore Savings & 

Loan Building) 

 

Architectural Survey File 

This is the architectural survey file for this MIHP record. The survey file is organized reverse-

chronological (that is, with the latest material on top). It contains all MIHP inventory forms, National 

Register nomination forms, determinations of eligibility (DOE) forms, and accompanying documentation 

such as photographs and maps. 

Users should be aware that additional undigitized material about this property may be found in on-site 

architectural reports, copies of HABS/HAER or other documentation, drawings, and the “vertical files” at 

the MHT Library in Crownsville. The vertical files may include newspaper clippings, field notes, draft 

versions of forms and architectural reports, photographs, maps, and drawings. Researchers who need a 

thorough understanding of this property should plan to visit the MHT Library as part of their research 

project; look at the MHT web site (mht.maryland.gov) for details about how to make an appointment. 

All material is property of the Maryland Historical Trust. 

 

Last Updated: 08-29-2003 



r 

WI-267 
Salisbury Building, Loan, and Banking 
Association Office 
Salisbury 
Private 

1914 

Occupying the southwest comer of the principal intersection of South Division and 

West Main streets in the center of the city is this distinguished four-story brick and 

stone commercial block erected during the summer of 1914 for the offices of the 

Salisbury Building, Loan, and Banking Association. The financial institution 

purchased this lot three years before and demolished the extant two-story office 

block. The officers of the banking institution decided to engage a New York contractor, 

the Hoggson Bros., for the design and execution of their seven-bay by three-bay 

Renaissance Revival bank and office building. Assembled of stone, brick, and terra 

cotta, the street elevations offer a rich display of bold architectural elements revived 

from sixteenth century Italian domestic and public architectural designs. 

As the Renaissance Revival style developed in the United States during the 

early twentieth century, American architects and designers borrowed heavily on antique 

prototypes while adapting forms to solve demands of urban commercial design. After 

the tum of the twentieth century, multi-leveled public buildings and office towers 

started to rise in small towns across the United States. 

The Hoggson Brothers' design for the Salisbury Building, Loan, and Banking 

Association followed a neo-classical formula repeatedly used across the country during 



-

-

Page 2 

the first quarter of the twentieth century. The four-story office building is divided 

visually into three sections that correspond to the classical column; the base, the shaft, 

and the capital. In an article written about the construction of the bank building, the 

reporter for the Wicomico News comments on this very aspect of the design, 

In a sense the treatment of the first story has been designed to act as a base to 
the whole structure, and at the same time giving the prominence necessary to 
the Bank which it should have. Above this the remainder of the building has 
been treated as a shaft of a column, with the terra cotta cornice capping or 
crowning feature; to accentuate the height of the body of the building, the office 
windows are grouped between brick piers, which are crowned with an 
ornamental course of terra cotta. The color of the terra cotta resembles 
limestone, and the red brick a rich variegated color. 

The Salisbury Building, Loan, and Banking Association owned this building 

until the early 1960s, when the institution conveyed title to First Shore Federal Savings 

and Loan. More recently the four-story office tower has housed the offices of the 

Eastern Shore Savings and Loan Association, which was later incarnated as the John 

Hanson Savings and Loan, Inc. 



MARYLAND ffiSTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN INFORMATION 

RESOURCE NAME:. ____ s_a_l_i_sb_u_r=-y_B_u_i_ld_i_n..;;,.g_, _L_o_a_n_a_n_d_B_a_n_k_i_· n_g~O_f_f_i_· c_e 

MHT INVENTORY NUMBER: wr- 267 

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DATA 

1. Historic Period Theme(s): 

2. Geographic Orientation: 

Architecture 
Commerce 

Eastern Shore 

3. Chronological/Development Period(s): Industrial/Urban Dominance 
1870-1930 

4. Resource Type(s): Bank 



Survey No. WI-267 

Maryland Historical Trust H!STc= __ ~~"'G:'."'.J;tC"Q 
Magi No. 

' L.. . '.._\) 

State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _yes no 

1. Name (indicate pref erred name} 

historic Salisbury Building, Loan and Banking Association Office 

and/or common 

John Hanson Savings and Loan Building 
Eastern Shore Savings and Loan Building 

2. Location 

street & number 108 West Main Street _ not for publication 

city, town Salisbury _ vicinity of congressional district First 

state Maryland 

3. Classification 
Category 
__ district
__xbuilding(s) 
__ structure 
_site 

_object 

Ownership 
__ public 
_x._ private 
_both 
Public Acquisition 
_in process 
__ being considered 
--2Lnot applicable 

county 

Status 
_K_ occupied 
_ unoccupied 
_ work in progress 
Accessible 
~ yes: restricted 
_yes: unrestricted 
_no 

Wicomico 

Present Use 
_ agriculture 
_x_ commercial 
_ educational 
_ entertainment 
_ government 
_ industrial 
_military 

_museum 
_park 
_ private residence 
_religious 
_ scientific 
_ transportation 
_other: 

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of ~ owners> 

name Charles R. Floyd 

street & number 30787 Foxchase Drive telephone no. : 

city, town Salisbury state and zip code Maryland 21801 

5. Location of Legal Description 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Wicomico County Clerk of Court 
Map 107i P. 172 
liber 340 

street & number Wicomico County Courthouse folio 172 

city, town Salisbury state MD 21801 

6. Representation in Existing Historical surveys 

title 

date _federal _state _county _local 

posltory for survey records 

city, town state 



7. Description 

Condition 
_excellent 
_x._ good 
_fair 

Check one 
_ deteriorated _ unaltered 
_ ruins _x altered 
_unexposed 

Check one 
-1L original site 
_moved date of move 

Survey No. WI-267 

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its 
various elements as it exists today. 

The former Salisbury Building, Loan, and Banking Association office, and more recently 
the Eastern Shore Savings and Loan building or the John Hanson Savings and Loan 
building, is located at 108 West Main Street and it occupies the prominent southwest 
comer of the intersection of South Division and West Main Street in the center of 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland. The four-story, seven-bay by three-bay brick 
commercial block has two commercial fronts facing north and east. 

Built in 1914, the four-story Flemish and common bond commercial block is 
visually supported by a course of limestone at the foundation level. The north and east 
facades are laid in Flemish bond, while the south wall is partly laid in Flemish bond and 
partly laid in common bond. The west alley wall is laid in five-course common bond. The 
building is covered by a flat roof disguised by a parapet wall defined by a heavy classical 
cornice. 

The north wall is seven bays across with the brickwork executed in a rusticated 
manner that defines the ground floor between the stone foundation and a stone beltcourse 
at the top of the first floor. The five center bays of the seven bay wall are defined by round 
arched window and/or door openings accented with graduated and rusticated stone arch 
blocks. The stone arches frame large multi-pane transom that surmount multi-pane, 
sidelighted windows or door openings. The western of the seven bays is a side entrance 
framed by a classical stone surround that includes a pediment and molded architrave. The 
eastern bay of the seven bay wall is defined by a multi-pane window. The front, northeast 
comer of the building is clipped on a diagonal plane. The second, third and fourth floors 
are defined by plain brick pilasters that separate individual bays of paired or single one
over-one sash windows. The five center bays have double windows, while the outer bays 
are marked by single windows. Defining the vertical wall spaces between the center five 
bays of windows are patches of all header bond brickwork. The top of the building is 
accented by a heavy cornice that imitates limestone but according to a construction 
description in 1914 the cornice is terracotta intended to look like stone. The cornice 
consists of a bold row of modillions blocks and a frieze below is accented with a series of 
circular medallions. Under the frieze is a row of Greek key decoration that tops each brick 
pilaster and serves as a capital decoration. The parapet wall is finished with a stone cap. 

The east wall is three bays across, and the wall surfaces are treated in a similar 
fashion to the north wall. The northern of the three bays serves as a principal entrance and 
the other two bays are filled with sidelighted windows. Each window and door opening 
feature a rusticated stone arch of graduated stone blocks. A stone beltcourse 
defines the top of the first floor level. The second, third, and fourth floors are lighted by 
paired single pane sash windows alternating between four brick pilasters. The top of the 
wall is finished with the same terra cotta cornice. The frieze and Greek key capital 
decoration is consistent with the north wall. 

The interior was not seen. 



8. Significance Survey No. WI-267 

Period 
_ prehistoric 
- - 1400-1499 

1500-1599 
_ 1600-1699 
_ 1700-1799 
_ 1800-1899 
~ 1900-

Areas of Significance-Check and justify below 
_archeology-prehistoric _community planning _landscape architecture_ religion 
_ archeology-historic _ conservation _ law _ science 
_ agriculture _ economics _ literature _ sculpture 
__x_ architecture _ education _ military _ social/ 
_ art _ engineering _ music humanitarian 
--* commerce _exploration/settlement _ philosophy _theater 
_ communications _ industry _ politics/government _ transportation 

_ invention _other (specify) 

Specific dates 1 9 1 4 Builder/ Architect Builder, Hoggson Bros. NYC 

check: Applicable Criteria: 
and/or 

Applicable Exception: 

Level of Significance: 

A B x C D 

A B C D E F G 

national state x local 

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and 
support. 

Occupying the southwest comer of the principal intersection of South Division and 
West Main streets in the center of the city is this distinguished four-story brick and 
stone commercial block erected during the summer of 1914 for the offices of the 
Salisbury Building, Loan, and Banking Association. The financial institution 
purchased this lot three years before and demolished the extant two-story office 
block. The officers of the banking institution decided to engage a New York contractor, 
the Hoggson Bros., for the design and execution of their seven-bay by three-bay 
Renaissance Revival bank and office building. Assembled of stone, brick, and terra 
cotta, the street elevations offer a rich display of bold architectural elements revived 
from sixteenth century Italian domestic and public architectural designs. 

As the Renaissance Revival style developed in the United States during the 
early twentieth century, American architects and designers borrowed heavily on antique 
prototypes while adapting forms to solve demands of urban commercial design. After 
the tum of the twentieth century, multi-leveled public buildings and office towers 
started to rise in small towns across the United States. 

The Hoggson Brothers' design for the Salisbury Building, Loan, and Banking 
Association followed a neo-classical formula repeatedly used across the country during 
the first quarter of the twentieth century. The four-story office building is divided 
visually into three sections that correspond to the classical column; the base, the shaft, 
and the capital. In an article written about the construction of the bank building, the 
reporter for the Wicomico News comments on this very aspect of the design, 

In a sense the treatment of the first story has been designed to act as a base to 
the whole structure, and at the same time giving the prominence necessary to 
the Bank which it should have. Above this the remainder of the building has 
been treated as a shaft of a column, with the terracotta cornice capping or 
crowning feature; to accentuate the height of the body of the building, the office 
windows are grouped between brick piers, which are crowned with an 
ornamental course of terra cotta. The color of the terra cotta resembles 
limestone, and the red brick a rich variegated color .(1) 

(Continued) 



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. WI-267 

1 O. Geographical Data 
Acreage of nominated property _______ _ 

Quadrangle name ______ _ Quadrangle scale ______ _ 

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references 

ALLJ I I I I I I I I I B w '--! ..._I ....&....! -a-.a. .......... 1 I I I I 
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing 

cli_J ~!_.___. __ ....... _I ~I .............. __.__ .......... ..-... oLLJ! ~..._I....._--.~! ~I ............ _.__.... ............ ~ 
E LLJ I I ...... ! .......__..___.__ __ F LLJ I I I ..... I ~......._i.....i........, 
G LLJ I I ~' .............. __.__ ............... HL..i_j I I I 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 

state code county code 

state code county code 

11. Form Prepared By 

name/title Paul B. Touart, Architectural Historian 

organization Private Consultant date 4/30/96 

street & number P • 0 • Box 5 telephone 410-651-1094 

city or town Westover state Maryland 21871 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by 
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated 
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and 
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of 
individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical t 
Shaw House 
21 State Circ 
Annapolis aryland 21401 
(301) 9-2438 

PS-2746 



-

-

8.1 SIGNIFICANCE 
Salisbury Building, Loan and Banking 
Association Office 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 

The Salisbury Building, Loan and Banking Association owned this building 
until the early 1960s, when the institution conveyed title to First Shore Federal Savings 
and Loan. (2) More recently the building has housed the offices of the Eastern Shore 
Savings and Loan Association, which was later incarnated as the John Hanson Savings 
and Loan, Inc. 

FOOTNOTES 

1 Wicomico News, July 9, 1914. 

2 Wicomico County Land Record, JWTS 554/332, 1/31/1963, Wicomico County 
Courthouse. 



-

-

WI-267 
Salisbury Building, Loan & Banking 
Association Office 
Salisbury 
Chain of title 

Map 107, Parcel 1049 

1340/172 

5/20/1993 

AJ S 826/463 

8/15/1974 

JWTS 568/137 

8/5/1963 

Resolution Trust Corporation 

to 

Charles R. Floyd 
D. Page Floyd 

"Osprey Management Group Partnership" 

JWTS 543/91 Resolution Trust Corporation having been 
appointed as the conservator of John Hanson Federal 
Savings Bank 

John Hanson Savings and Loan Inc. Was successor to the 
Eastern Shore Savings and Loan Association 

Irvin L. Kaminitz and First National Bank of Maryland 

to 

Eastern Shore Savings and Loan Association 

First She re Federal Savings and Loan Association 

Irvin L. Kaminitz 



-

-

WI-267 Page2 
Salisbury Building, Loan and Banking 
Office 
Salisbury 
Chain of title continued 

JWTS 554/332 

1/31/1963 

Salisbu-y Building, Loan, and Banking Association 

to 

First Shore Federal Savings and Loan Association 

to Salisbury Building, Loan, and Banking Association 
by the six following deeds 

1. From Mary J. Marvel, 3/1/1911, EAT 74/123, $15,000 

2. From Henry S. Wailes, 7/28/1919, JCK 113/296 

3. From W. Newton Jackson, et al. JWTS 479/141 

4. Confirmatory deed from J. Asbury Holloway, 1/3/1963 

5. Quit claim deed from Sara W. Feldman, 1/7/1963 

6. Deect from Sara W. Feldman, et al. Trustees, 1/7/1963 



-

-

Wicomico News, June 25, 1914 

Work on the new office building for the Salisbury Building, Loan, and Banking 
Association is being pushed with vigor by the contractors, Hoggson Bros. of New 
York. Two stories are completed, the brick and stone work has been cleaned, and the 
staging removed. An [ un ]obstructed view can now be had of the building, and it 
presents a handsome appearance. 

Wicomico News, July 9, 1914 

Long story on the Building, Loan and Banking Association and its organizational 
history 

"the first story, resting on a limestone foundation, is composed of classic arches in 
brick and terra cotta, finished with a broad band course, separating and emphasizing this 
portion of the building from the rest. In a sense the treatment of the first story has been 
designed to act as a base to the whole structure, and at the same time giving the 
prominence necessary to the Bank which it should have. Above this the remainder of 
the building has been treated as a shaft of a column, with the terra cotta cornice capping 
or crowning feature; to accentuate the height of the body of the building, the office 
windows are grouped between brick piers, which are crowned with an ornamental 
course of terra cotta. The color of the terra cotta resembles limestone, and the red brick 
a rich variegated color. 



r 



,../': 

~ 
~ 

~; 
~ 

~ t ~ -q: I 

~ 
G' 
-µ 

l 



'a 
1/8) ' · ~T?r/~1 ....... 

-·· 
,, 

~.: .... 

ll#A'QW. & .~cL /M/l'C.L'MENTS. 

· ,t:;,£ l'Wu· £"""' li"9IP. 
G11rr a.,_."""- b?/;b 
# ~ .. """° .IU .. ~o b . ..Y;,s. Au'.-.;.-

l 
I 

8 

.. 
• I G«~l'V,..~ /("' ' [L] 
~i ! 8.P.O £{K8 2! ~ J~ I 

,. 

WI-267 
Salisbury Building, 
Banking Association 

Loan and 
Office 

LWGv 
Gn»R~l & 

Sanborn Insurance Map, 1911 

AO Jn~·.,r 14~>t"""1(N 
, ...... {.l(.""11"" Et.l"C: /II' ... 

SNUP INTO•WITTKIA'HL //f/TO ,:,~·4'¥1rk">' "''.,:. 
S.WWN $HIC'RJ 7r7 Tf/ 7'fl{J tfa.y s~·rL-""' ,.,,·n1 
11ti>FSSl/NE 0/"4t/JV££Llf:i .)1';,11i+' ,iUrlOL/FO .~Y 
C·TY wqn:.Q (.W1v lt/7[1,.+0'T71c6l;..-& cv,,...A~ 

w1TN" S1'STE'M'· p,p.,,../'tJw.EJP C:~\.f Crn.; .. •.:: 
th~.,Ntlf'b. / 1N£ PN//S /N tin.v,.,6r. 

0
11~~-----·-...... 

~ 
\ 

.-;r" \ \ 
~' ,/"""" 

'Y/ 0 

15 



'r 
...;._ ..... -·-· 

l 
I 

\ 

\Q.9 

Wl-267 
Salisbury Building, Loan and 
Banking Association Office 

Sanborn Insurance Map, 1916 

\ 
Cl \ 

~"' \ .,:. 

\ 
\ 



UNITED STATES 
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 

WI-267 

I 
Salisbury Building, 
Banking Association 

u Salisbury, Maryland 
75·~ j 7'30" 

38°22'30" 

[.j 1942 
~r~~5r.;~~~~~ 

"' 0 
... 
2 
6 
a. 
a 
"' l: 

"' 

j 
Harbor 

.,, ,, 
II 
II 

" II 

" 
!~·~" ,, 

~ . . 

Loan and 
Off ice 

Quadrangle 

JI 
If /;-::-.:::- .... 

:L. ''""L~ 









I• 





l-'..- I 

I :; 1.I - / 

I / , / 



4/15/24, 9:36 AM SDAT: Real Property Data Search

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages/default.aspx 1/1

Real Property Data Search ( )

     

Search Result for WICOMICO COUNTY
 

View Map View GroundRent Redemption View GroundRent Registration

Special Tax Recapture: None
Account Identifier: District - 09 Account Number - 045627

Owner Information
Owner Name: ADAMS HOUSING LLC Use:

Principal Residence:
COMMERCIAL/RESIDENTIAL
NO

Mailing Address: 100 W MAIN ST STE 203
SALISBURY MD 21801-4874

Deed Reference: /03691/ 00298

Location & Structure Information
Premises Address: 100 W MAIN ST

SALISBURY 21801-0000
Legal Description: BL A L 24-3,322 SQFT

100 W MAIN ST
CITY OF SALIS

Map: Grid: Parcel: Neighborhood: Subdivision: Section: Block: Lot: Assessment Year: Plat No:
0107 0014 1049 21003.23 0000 A 24 2024 Plat Ref:

Town: SALISBURY

Primary Structure Built Above Grade Living Area Finished Basement Area Property Land Area County Use
1914 11,407 SF 3,322 SF

Stories Basement Type Exterior Quality Full/Half Bath Garage Last Notice of Major Improvements
OFFICE BUILDING / C3

Value Information
Base Value Value Phase-in Assessments

As of
01/01/2024

As of
07/01/2023

As of
07/01/2024

Land: 49,800 66,400
Improvements 631,300 659,400
Total: 681,100 725,800 681,100 696,000
Preferential Land: 0 0

Transfer Information
Seller: SHORE BANK Date: 03/28/2014 Price: $582,238
Type: ARMS LENGTH IMPROVED Deed1: /03691/ 00298 Deed2:

Seller: OSPREY MANAGEENT GROUP LLC Date: 02/12/2003 Price: $680,000
Type: ARMS LENGTH IMPROVED Deed1: /02024/ 00171 Deed2:

Seller: FLOYD, CHARLES R & D PAGE ELMORE Date: 11/05/2001 Price: $0
Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /01869/ 00032 Deed2:

Exemption Information
Partial Exempt Assessments: Class 07/01/2023 07/01/2024
County: 000 0.00
State: 000 0.00
Municipal: 000 0.00|0.00 0.00|0.00
Special Tax Recapture: None

Homestead Application Information
Homestead Application Status: No Application 

Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Information
Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Status: No Application Date:

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/realproperty/maps/showmap.html?countyid=23&accountid=09+045627
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRedemption", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRegistration", "", true, "", "", false, true))
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Account-Identifier
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Owner-Name
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Principal-Residence
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Mailing-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed-Reference
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Premises-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Legal-Description
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Map-Number
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Grid
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Parcel
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Neighborhood
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Subdivision
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Section
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Block
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Lot
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Assessment-Year
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-No
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-Ref
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Town
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Primary-Structure-Built
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#AGLiving-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FBasement-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Property-Land-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Stories
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Basement
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Exterior
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Quality
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FHBaths
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Garage
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Renovation
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Base-Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Phase-in-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Improvements
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Total
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Preferential-Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Partial-Exempt-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#State-Code
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Municipal
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homestead-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Date


Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 

 
Hearing Notification 

 
Hearing Date:     April 24, 2024 
 
Time:       7:00 pm 
 
Location:  Government Office Building  

125 N. Division Street  
Salisbury, MD. 21804 
Room 301  

 
Case Number:     #24-06 
 
Commission Considering: Alterations – Window, Vent, Awning  
 
Owner’s Name:   Brant Krisewicz 
 
Applicant Name:     Brant Krisewicz 
 
Agent/Contractor:     Brant Krisewicz 
 
Subject Property Address:    501 W Main St 
 
Historic District:      Salisbury Historic District 
 
Use Category:     Commercial 
 
Chairman:       Mr. Scott Saxman 
 
HDC Staff contact:     Amanda Rodriquez   

City Planner 
       (410) 548-3170 



24-06













Salisbury Historic District Commission 

STAFF FINDINGS 

Meeting of April 24, 2024 

Case Number: #24-06 

Commission Considering: Alterations – Window, Vent, 
Awning 

Owner Name: Brent Krisewicz 
Owners Address: 

1 Dickens Lane  
Washington, NJ 07882 

Applicant Name:  Brent Krisewicz 

Applicant’s Address: 1 Dickens Lane   
Washington, NJ 07882 

Agent/Contractor:  Brent Krisewicz 

Subject Property Address:  501 W Main Street 

Historic District:   Downtown Historic District 

Use Category: Commercial/Residential 

Zoning Classification: Central Business District 

Structure / Site Description: 

Built Date:  1927 

Enclosed Area: 5,044 sq. ft. 

Lot Size: 7,788 sq. ft. 

Number of Stories: Undetermined 

Contributing Structure: Contributing, 5/26/2010 



 
 
 
 
 
Wicomico County Historic Survey on file:   Yes 
 
Nearby Properties on County Survey:   Yes   
 
Properties included below but not limited to: 
 
WI-271–  110 W Main Street—Wicomico News Building 
 
Explanation of Request: The applicant is seeking approval to install vent ducting for a 
restaurant in the alley space, replace rotten fire escape window with door, and replace 
window trim and existing awning covers. 
 
Areas of Historic Guidelines to be considered: 
 
Guideline 28: Chimneys and Vents a. Maintain existing chimneys. When repairs are 
necessary, match the existing materials, colors, shape, brick pattern, and details as closely 
as possible. b. Avoid changing the height, massing, or scale of existing chimneys. c. New 
vents should be placed in a location which is not visible from the public right of way. d. 
New chimneys on new construction should be consistent with the height, massing, and 
proportions of chimneys found in the surrounding area. 
 
Windows  
Historically, buildings in the Downtown Historic District have windows on the upper 
floors. Most common was the use of simple double-hung windows in plain, lightly 
decorated walls. These windows were generally one-over-one wood frame sash in either 
rectangular or arched openings. Some buildings from the 1920’s and 1930’s used casement 
windows or group of double – hung windows in openings that were larger than those of 
earlier buildings. Window openings were generally plain, with simple stone lintels and 
sills.  
Please see the preceding section, Universal Guidelines, for additional guidelines on 
Windows. For additional information on substitute materials, see Appendix B.  
 
Guideline 39: Replacement Windows for Commercial Properties  

a. Where window replacement is necessary, the new window should match the 
historic window in size, type, glazing pattern, and profile. The number of window 
panes and the approximate muntin and mullion profile should match the historic 
window.  

b. Removable, snap-in, or “between the glass” muntins are not historically 
appropriate.  

c. Vinyl windows are generally not manufactured in historic proportions and are not 
appropriate replacement windows for historic properties. Aluminum, aluminum 



clad wood, and fiberglass are appropriate replacement materials and may be 
approved if the appearance is complimentary to the existing historic windows and 
architectural style.  

d. Maintain the historic window opening size and surrounding trim. Do not alter the 
size of the historic window opening to accommodate larger or smaller windows. 
Do not remove or cover surrounding trim, including wood and masonry details.  

e. Maintain the window type. For example, do not replace operable windows such as 
double-hung windows with fixed windows. 

Doors  
Doors are an important design feature for buildings in the Downtown Historic District. 
Entrance features for these commercial buildings are often decorative wood or metal doors 
with ornamental door surrounds and steps with railings. Please see the preceding section, 
Universal Guidelines, for additional guidelines on Doors. For additional information on 
substitute materials, see Appendix B. Guideline 40: Replacing Commercial Doors a. Where 
replacement is necessary, the new door should match the historic door in placement, size, 
type, and configuration wherever possible. b. When restoring missing historic doors, use 
pictorial evidence to produce the replacements, if your budget allows. A salvaged 
replacement in the same style that fits the opening, or a new door in a complimentary style 
are also appropriate choices. c. Where code compliance requires a specific, non-historic 
door configuration, err on the side of simplicity. d. Maintain the historic door opening size 
and surrounding trim, including side lights and transoms. Do not alter the size of the 
opening to fit a smaller or larger door, unless required by code. 
 
Signs and Awnings  
Guideline 46: Awnings a. The bottom of awnings must hang no less than 7 feet above the 
pavement. b. Awnings must fit the dimensions of the storefront. They should not obscure 
ornamental details or the historic signboard. The top edge should align with the top of the 
storefront transom or fall between the transom and storefront windows. c. Awnings may 
provide suitable locations for signs. Lettering and logos may be added to the front face or 
to the drop flap. 
 

Staff Findings  
Prepared By: Jennifer Jean 

Infrastructure and Development 
125 N Division Street, Suite 304 

Salisbury, MD 21801 
(410) 548-3170 

Date: April 24, 2024 



WI-330 

Franklin Hotel 

Architectural Survey File 

This is the architectural survey file for this MIHP record. The survey file is organized reverse-

chronological (that is, with the latest material on top). It contains all MIHP inventory forms, National 

Register nomination forms, determinations of eligibility (DOE) forms, and accompanying documentation 

such as photographs and maps. 

Users should be aware that additional undigitized material about this property may be found in on-site 

architectural reports, copies of HABS/HAER or other documentation, drawings, and the “vertical files” at 

the MHT Library in Crownsville. The vertical files may include newspaper clippings, field notes, draft 

versions of forms and architectural reports, photographs, maps, and drawings. Researchers who need a 

thorough understanding of this property should plan to visit the MHT Library as part of their research 

project; look at the MHT web site (mht.maryland.gov) for details about how to make an appointment. 

All material is property of the Maryland Historical Trust. 

Last Updated: 08-29-2003 



-

-

-

WI-330 
Franklin Hotel 
Salisbury 
Private 

1930 

Prominently marking the intersection of West Main and Lake streets on the west side 

of Salisbury's business district, the Franklin Hotel is a two-story, thirteen-bay by six-

bay brick building distinguished by a series of recessed commercial fronts and arched 

window openings on the second floor. The principal entrance is located on the 

southeast comer of the old hotel, which is dated to 1930 by a large concrete plaque 

fixed in the top of the chamfered comer of the rectangular structure. At the second 

floor level there is a second concrete plaque embossed with the label "Mainlake 

Building." The stretcher bond street elevations are topped by a parapet wall accented 

with corbeled brickwork. 

While housing a variety of businesses in the series of store fronts along 

West Main Street over the years, the two-story brick building is best known as the 

Franklin Hotel, where modest rooms were available to the scores traveling salesmen, 

sailors, and visitors who needed overnight lodging. The building was erected by the 

Larmar Corporation, an early twentieth century development company headed by J. H. 

Larmore. 



MARYLAND HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN INFORMATION 

RESOURCE NAME: __ ..::F..::r;..:::a:.:.n:.:..:k:..;:l:..;:i:..:..n~H:..:o....;t....;e....;1:.__ ______________ _ 

MHT INVENTORY NUMBER: WI-330 

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE.PLAN DATA 

1. Historic Period Theme(s): Architecture 

2. Geographic Orientation: Eastern Shore 

3. Chronological/Development Period(s): Industrial-Urban Dominance 
1870-1930 

4. Resource Type(s): Hotel 



Survey No. 

Maryland Historical Trust 
MARYLAND INVENTORY OF 

HISTORIC PROPERTIES Magi No. 

WI-330 

~tate Historic Sites Inventory Form 

1. Name {indicate pref erred name) 

historic Franklin Hotel 

and/or common 

2. Location 

street & number 501 West Main Street 

city, town Salisbury 

state Maryland 

3. Classification 
Category 
_district 
.x__ building(s) 
_structure 
--~site 

_object 

qwnership 
_public 
_private 
_both 
Public Acquisition 
_in process 
_ being considered 
_lL_not applicable 

_ vicinity of 

county 

Status 
_occupied 
x "d _unoccup1e 

_ work in progress 
Accessible 
~ yes: restricted 
_yes: unrestricted 
_no 

DOE _yes no 

_ not for publication 

congressional district First 

Wicomico 

Present Use 
_agriculture 
-----X- commercial 
_educational 
_ entertainment 
_ government 
_ industrial 
_military 

_museum 
_park 
_ private residence 
_religious 
_ scientific 
_ transportation 
_other: 

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of ~ owners) 

name City of Salisbury 

street & number P- 0 Box 4118 telephone no.: 

city, town Salisbury state and zip code 

5. Location of Legal Description 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Wicomico County Clerk of Court 

street & number Wicomico County Courthouse 

city, town Salisbury 

MD 21801 

Map 106i p_ 3273 
liber 164 

folio 858 

state MD 21801 

6. Representation in Existing Historical surveys 

title 

.._!late _federal _state _county _local 

,posltory for survey records 

city, town state 



7. Description 

Condition 
_excellent 
_xgood 
_fair 

Check one 
_ deteriorated _ unaltered 
_ ruins ___x_ altered 
_unexposed 

Survey No. WI-330 

Check one 
____K original site 
_ moved date of move 

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its 
various elements as it exists today. 

The Franklin Hotel, also known as the Mainlake Building, stands at 501 West Main 
Street on the west side of Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland. The two-story 
brick commercial block, built with a comer entrance, is oriented to the intersection of 
West Main and Lake streets. 

Dated to 1930 by a concrete plaque, the two-story commercial block has a 
thirteen bay exposure on West Main Street and a six-bay exposure on Lake Street. 
The stretcher and common bond walls rise to a parapet roof that disguises the low 
sloping shed roof. 

The south West Main Street elevation consists of a series of recessed 
commercial fronts on the first floor and thirteen evenly spaced window openings on 
the second floor. Each recessed commercial entrance bay is distinguished by large 
plate glass display windows on each side of a glazed front door. A soldier course of 
bricks span the commercial bays. The second floor windows, each featuring a round 
headed arch, are boarded up. The upper wall surface is marked by slightly corbeled 
brickwork under the parapet wall. The southeast comer of the building is cut in 
order to facilitate the comer entrance to the main commercial space. The recessed 
entrance door is flanked by sidelights, and the ceiling is covered with diagonal, 
beveled edge boards. Fixed in the wall above the entrance are two concrete plaques, 
one with the date "1930" and the other with the name "Mainlake Building." 

The east Lake Street elevation is six bays across. A commercial entrance on 
the first floor has been bricked up, but the soldier course that spanned the former 
opening is clearly visible. The second floor is marked by six round arched windows 
that are currently boarded over. 

The west side elevation is laid in seven to nine-course common bond with a 
stepped parapet wall decreasing in elevation towards the back of the building. Four 
boarded over windows light the second floor. 

The north (rear) elevation is ~n asymmetrical wall of doors and windows. 
The brick is laid in seven to nine-course common bond. Attached to the northwest 
comer is a two-story concrete block addition. 



8. Significance Survey No. WI-3 3 o 

Period 
____ prehistoric 

-1400-1499 
150~1599 

_1~1699 

_170~1799 

_1800-1899 
~1~ 

Specific dates 

Areas of Significance-Check and justify below 
_archeology-prehistoric _ community planning _ landscape architecture_ religion 
_ arc:heology-historic _ conservation _ law _ science 
_agriculture _ economics _ literature _ sculpture 
~ architecture _ education _ military _social/ 
_ art _ engineering _ music humanitarian 
~ commerce _ exploration/settlement _ philosophy _theater 
_ communications _ industry _ politics/government _transportation 

_ invention _ other (specify) 

Builder/ Architect 

check: Applicable Criteria: A B x c D 
and/or 

Applicable Exception: A B c D E F G 

Level of Significance: national state x local 

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and 
support. 

Prominently marking the intersection of West Main and Lake streets on the west side 
of Salisbury's business district, the Franklin Hotel is a two-story, thirteen-bay by six
bay brick building distinguished by a series of recessed commercial fronts and arched 
window openings on the second floor. The principal entrance is located on the 
southeast comer of the old hotel, which is dated to 1930 by a large concrete plaque 
fixed in the top of the chamfered comer of the rectangular structure. At the second 
floor level there is a second concrete plaque embossed with the label "Mainlake 
Building." The stretcher bond street elevations are topped by a parapet wall accented 
with corbeled brickwork. 

While housing a variety of businesses in the series of store fronts along 
West Main Street over the years, the two-story brick building is best known as the 
Franklin Hotel, where modest rooms were available to the scores traveling salesmen, 
sailors, and visitors who needed overnight lodging. The building was erected by the 
ujnar Corporation, an early twentieth century development company headed by J. H. 
Larmore. 

The building is a significant element of Salisbury's West Main Street business 
district and is qualifies for listing in Category A, which identifies buildings that must 
be preserved due to their architectural and historical significance. 



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. WI-330 

1 o. Geographical Data 
Acreage of nominated property _______ _ 

Quadrangle name ______ _ Quadrangle scale ______ _ 

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references 

AL.i.J I I 1 I I I I I I B WI'--..__I ......._! _.....,,,.-....,,! I I I I 
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing 

c LiJ ._I .....____. ____ _ 

E LU ..... ! ............... _____ _ 

G LU ._I ---...---

Verbal boundary description and justification 

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 

state code county code 

state code county code 

11. Form Prepared By 

name/title Paul B. Touart, Architectural Historian 

organization Private Consultant date 1/15/98 

street & number P · 0 • Box 5 telephone 410-651-1094 

city or town Westover state Maryland 21871 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by 
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated 
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and 
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of 
individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical 
Shaw House 
21 State Cir 
Annapol· , Maryland 21401 
(30 69-2438 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
DHCP/DHCD 

100 COMr.~!Jr~ITY PLACE 
CROWNSYlLLE, ~!D 21032-2023 

514-7600 

PS-2746 



-

-

WI-330 
Franklin Hotel 
West Main and Lake Streets 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title 

Map 106, Parcel 3273 

1164/858 

AJ S 876/846 

6/1/1977 

IDT 160/420 

12/4/1929 

Gladys D. Church 

to 

City of Salisbury 

Lot No. 2 as laid down on plat IDT 160/422 

Larmar Corporation 

to 

Earl C. Church 
Gladys D. Church 

Mary A. Wroten 

to 

Larmar Corporation 

Lot No. 2, Surveyed for J. H. Larmore 



UNITED ST ATES 
\RTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

-)LOGICAL SURVEY 
,e~E~~~~;~7.' i\1! 

Point 

WI-330 
Franklin Hotel 

Salisbury, Maryland Quadrangle 
1942 

C1 50 II •• .. -;": ,\1.;; ;; •• .. . . 

I/,----

./'// ·.,~ 
~ 11\ 

II I/ 

-// ;; 
--.........;. 

·"' 
// 

I/ 
It 

-'--l't'. 
/! ,'! 

//. 
// 

// 
// 

// 
// 

I; 
// 

. 

It 
I/ 

+ 
// ,, I ,, // // 

// •It 
I/ //e 

I/ II 
// // 

// I/ 
// .'/ 

// I J 
1'l I 1? 

,~'·· ' // 
// -~// 

,~' ( r,.=::!/ 
// // 

11.JB 

''-.. ~~----/~' 
-==!==:~=-

.. 





I .. 
I 

.,1 fl1 I , 5 

r'J 
t)v r 

I I - ' I . 

. . , 

(, 

r" 

I 

(, 

.i: 

../ 
/ 

·.j 

/ 

I 
., '/ I 

I 

t 
._ 

/I' -* ) J 

/ 





11/J I /I "'I u 

I l . " 
c."" ?' ,~ ~,,.. ~'( ,, 
...,, 0 ,,.. ,. ,, " 

" 
.. ~ .(_ l // ,/ 

t/n1 )-",A ,. 
/ ~ 

fV~/ .. I /. I I ,., , _, /' , 
I•' ,. 

,, 



WI-271 

Wicomico News Building 

 

Architectural Survey File 

This is the architectural survey file for this MIHP record. The survey file is organized reverse-

chronological (that is, with the latest material on top). It contains all MIHP inventory forms, National 

Register nomination forms, determinations of eligibility (DOE) forms, and accompanying documentation 

such as photographs and maps. 

Users should be aware that additional undigitized material about this property may be found in on-site 

architectural reports, copies of HABS/HAER or other documentation, drawings, and the “vertical files” at 

the MHT Library in Crownsville. The vertical files may include newspaper clippings, field notes, draft 

versions of forms and architectural reports, photographs, maps, and drawings. Researchers who need a 

thorough understanding of this property should plan to visit the MHT Library as part of their research 

project; look at the MHT web site (mht.maryland.gov) for details about how to make an appointment. 

All material is property of the Maryland Historical Trust. 

 

Last Updated: 08-29-2003 



-

WI-271 
Old Wicomico News Building 
Salisbury 
Private 

Early 20th century, 1920 

The three-story, English bond brick storefront with stone facings that frame the paired 

window openings was erected in 1920 as part of an effort to redesign and enlarge an 

early twentieth century law office. Classified under the Renaissance Revival, the 

1920 facade included a large datestone above a heavy stone cornice featuring acanthus 

decorated console brackets and a row of egg-and-dart molding. While the first floor 

has been reworked, it originally included classical stone entrances and an elaborate first 

floor frieze decorated with classical swags and urns. Small panels above the second and 

third floor windows still survive with similar classical motifs. Despite the loss of 

the first floor features, the building still retains a large percentage of it's architectural 

interest. 

For a large portion of its existence, this building has housed a newspaper office. 

In January 1920, the News Publishing Company of Salisbury purchased what was then 

known as the Woodcock & Webb building with plans to remodel and enlarge the former 

law office. A few months prior, the News Publishing Company had been organized 

following the acquisition of the Brewington Bros. Co., which had published the 

Wicomico News since 1887. On January 15, 1920, a short article in the Wicomico News 

verified the construction plans by stating: 

At the rear of their recently purchased three story brick building the News 



-

Page 2 

Publishing Company will erect a brick addition with a frontage on Camden 
Street. This addition will cover the entire rear of the Woodcock & Webb lot 
and will be about 26 feet wide and 76 feet deep. The entire addition and the 
ground floor of the present building, which fronts Main Street, will be 
occupied by the News Publishing company in its newspaper and job printing 
business. 

Preparations for the relocation of the newspaper office and printing room were 

stretched over the next six months with occupation planned for the summer. The 

Wicomico News was assembled and printed in this building until the late 1930s, when it 

was acquired by the Brush-Moore Newspapers, Inc. of Canton, Ohio, and merged with 

the Salisbury Times. The Salisbury Times and Wicomico News, and later, the Salisbury 

Times and Shoreman's Daily, were written and printed here until a new newspaper office 

was built in the mid 1950s. 



-

MARYLAND HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN INFORMATION 

RESOURCE NAM:E:.~~~-W_i_c_o_m_1_·c_o~N_e_w~s_B~u_i_1_d_i_n_g~~~~~~~~~~~ 

MHT INVENTORY NUMBER: WI- 2 7 1 

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DATA 

1. Historic Period Theme(s): Architecture 
Commerce 

2. Geographic Orientation: Eastern Shore 

3. Chronological/Development Period(s): Industrial/Urban Dominance 
1870-1930 

4. Resource Type(s): Commercial Block 



Survey No. 
WI-271 

MARYLAND INVENTORY OF Magi No. 
Maryland Historical Trust HlSTr':-::0 PROPERTIES 
State Historic Sites Inventory Form 

1. Name (indicate preferred name} 

historic Wicomico News Building 

and/or common 

2. Location 

street & number 110 West Main Street 

city, town Salisbury 

state Maryland 

3. Classification 
Category 
---x- district 
_~_ buildlng(s) 
__ structure 
__ site 
_object 

Ownership 
_public 
--X.-private 
_both 
Public Acquisition 
_in process 
_ being considered 
~not applicable 

_vicinity of 

county 

\l•tus 
_occupied 
_ unoccupied 
_ work in progress 
Accessible 
x yes: restricted 
_yes: unrestricted 
_no 

DOE _yes no 

_ not for publication 

congressional district First 

Wicomico 

Present Use 
_ agriculture 
~commercial 

_ educational 
_entertainment 
_ government 
_ industrial 
_military 

_museum 
_park 
_ private residence 
_religious 
_ scientific 
_ transportation 
_other: 

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of~ owners) 

name Peninsula Bank 

street & number P. 0. Box 219 telephone no.: 

city, town Princess Anne state and zip code MD 21853 

5. Location of Legal Description 
Map 107, p. 1051 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. \Vicomico County Clerk of Court liber 1264 

street & number Wicomico County Courthouse folio 189 

city, town Salisbury state MD 21801 

6. Representation in Existing Historical surveys 

title 

date _federal _state _county __ local 

.tposltory for survey records 

city, town state 



7. Description 

Condition 
_excellent 
~good 
_fair 

Check one 
_ deteriorated _ unaltered 
_ ruins ~altered 
_unexposed 

Ci"eck one 
_ original site 
_moved date of move 

Survey No. WI-271 

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its 
various elements as it exists today. 

The old Wicomico News Building, now owned by Peninsula Bank and housing its 
administrative offices, is a three-story, two-bay brick commercial block located at 
110 West Main Street on the Downtown Plaza of Salisbury, Wicomico County, 
Maryland. The building faces north with contemporaneous commercial block flanking it 
on each side. 

Estimated to date to the first decade of the twentieth century, the core structure of 
the Wicomico News Building was enlarged and restyled in 1920 and documented to that 
year with a datestone fixed at the top of the wall surface. The West Main Street elevation 
is reflective of the Renaissance Revival style. The first floor has been reworked to suit a 
modem office space, whereas the second and third floors remain essentially unaltered. 
The front brick wall is laid in English bond with twp pairs of window openings on the 
second and third floors. The windows are framed by wide stone facings and a heavy 
stone mullion that divides the nine-over-one sash windows. Fixed above each set of 
windows is a decorative center panel. A carved um and scroll motif in classical form is 
featured in each panel. Nine-over-one replacement windows have been introduced on the 
second floor, while the original nine-over-one sash remain on the third floor. The entire 
window bay is distinguished by slight projection in the brick wall surface . 

The top of the wall is finished with a large stone entablature below a capped 
parapet. Large foliated consoles are fixed under the cornice. Stretching across the 
entablature below the consoles is an egg-and-dart molding. A plain frieze finishes the 
entablature composition. The 1920 datestone is centered above the entablature. 

The east side elevation is obscured by the adjacent commercial block, and there is 
a narrow alley on the west side. 

The interior was not seen. 



8. Significance Survey No. WI-271 

Period Areas of Significance-Check and justify below 
_ prehistoric 
- - 1400-1499 

_archeology-prehistoric _community planning _landscape architecture_ religion 
_ archeology-historic _conservation _ law _ science 

1500-1599 
_ 1600-1699 
_1700-1799 
_1800-1899 
~ 1900-

_ agriculture _economics _ literature _ sculpture 
__x_ architecture _ education _ military _ social/ 
_ art _engineering _ music humanitarian 
~ commerce _exploration/settlement _ philosophy _theater 
_ communications _ industry _ politics/government _transportation 

_ invention _other (specify) 

Specific dates 1920 Builder/ Architect 

check: Applicable Criteria: A B xc D 
and/or 

Applicable Exception: A B c D E F G 

Level of Significance: national state x local 

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and 
support. 

The three-story, English bond brick storefront with stone facings that frame the paired 
window openings was erected in 1920 as part of an effort to redesign and enlarge a 
early twentieth century law office. Classified under the Renaissance Revival, the 
1920 facade included a large datestone above a heavy stone cornice featuring acanthus 
decorated console brackets and a row of egg-and-dart molding. While the first floor 
has been reworked, it originally included classical stone entrances and an elaborate first 
floor frieze decorated with classical swags and urns. Small panels above the second and 
third floor windows still survive with similar classical motifs. Despite the loss of 
the first floor features, the building still retains a large percentage of its architectural 
interest. 

Due to the intact nature of the second and third floor features, this building 
qualifies for listing in Category B, which identifies buildings that should be preserved 
since they exhibit good architectural details and contribute to the overall historic sense of 
the district. 

For a large portion of its existence, this building has housed a newspaper office. 
In January 1920, the News Publishing Company of Salisbury purchased what was then 
known as the Woodcock & Webb building with plans to remodel and enlarge the former 
law office.(1) A few months prior, the News Publishing Company had been organized 
following the acquisition of the Brewington Bros. Co., which had published the 
Wicomico News since 1887.(2) On January 15, 1920, a short article in the Wicomico 
News verified the construction plans by stating: 

At the rear of their recently purchased three story brick building the News 
Publishing Company will erect a brick addition with a frontage on Camden 
Street. This addition will cover the entire rear of the Woodcock & Webb lot 
and will be about 26 feet wide and 76 feet deep. The entire addition and the 
ground floor of the present building, which fronts Main Street, will be 
occupied by the News Publishing company in its newspaper and job printing 
business.(3) 

(Continued) 



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. WI-271 

1 O. Geographical Data 
Acreage of nominated property ________ _ 

Quadrangle name ______ _ Quadrangle scale ______ _ 

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references 

AUJ I I 1 I I I I I I 
Zone Easting Northing 

cLLJ I.._._~._._--'! ~I_.__.__.__~ ........ 
E LU I I ~I ...L-.!._._ ...... .......... 

GLL.j I II~ .............. ___._ ....... ........ 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

B LU l~I ,.._I -i-.i....r-..il I I I I 

Zone Easting Northing 

ol.LJ l._._l....._--...~I !1......1-~--.... ........... 
F LI.J I I !.__._........__.___.,_ ............. 

H LJ.J ...... ! ...... I _..___.__ ........ 

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 

state code county code 

state code county code 

11. Form Prepared By 

name/title Paul B. Touart, Architectural Historian 

organization Private Consultant date 4/6/96 

street & number P. 0. Box 5 telephone 4 1 0 - 6 5 1 - 1 0 9 4 

city or town Westover state Maryland 21871 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by 
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated 
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and 
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of 
individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical 
Shaw House 
21 State Circ 
Annapoli , ryland 21401 
(30 69-2438 

MAiMAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
DHCP/DHCD 

100 COMMUNITY PLACE 
CRO\AtNSVlLLE. MD 21032-2023 

-51 C:-7C)0 

PS-2746 



SIGNIFICANCE 
8.1 Wicomico News Building, Wl-271 
West Main Street 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 

Preparations for the relocation of the newspaper office and printing room were 
stretched over the next six months with occupation planned for the summer. The 
Wicomico News was assembled and printed in this building until the late 1930s when it 
was acquired by the Brush-Moore Newspapers, Inc. of Canton Ohio, and merged with the 
Salisbury Times.(4) The Salisbury Times and Wicomico News, and later, the Salisbury 
Times and Shoreman's Daily, was written and printed here until a new newspaper office 
was built in the mid 1950s.(5) 

1 Wicomico County Land Record, JCK 117/124, January 29, 1920, Wicomico County 
Courthouse, Salisbury, Maryland. 

2 Preston, Dickson J. Newspapers of Maryland's Eastern Shore. Queenstown and 
Centreville: Queen Anne Press and Tidewater Publishers, 1986, p. 249. 

3 Wicomico News, January 15, 1920, (Wicomico County Free Library). 

4 Preston, p. 180. 

5 Preston, p. 249. 



-
WI-271 
Wicomico News Building 
West Main Street 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title 

1264/189 

9/11/1991 

MSB 1208/651 

2/6/1990 

MSB 1130/416 

12/1/1987 

JWTS 785/247 

2/26/1973 

Margaret 0. Gaskill 

to 

Peninsula Bank 

Property survey of Clement I. and Margaret 0. Gaskill 
7/15/1957 JWTS 427/37 

First National Bank of Maryland 

to 

Margaret 0. Gaskill 

Robert D. Faw, Clement M. Gaskill, and John W. T. Webb 
Personal Representatives of Clement I. Gaskill 

to 

First National Bank 

Item No. 2, Undivided V2 interest 

Betty N. Bounds 

to 

Clement I. Gaskill 
Margaret 0. Gaskill 



WI-271 
Wicomico News Building 
West Main Street 

Page 2 

Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title continued 

785/244 

2/26/1973 

JWTS 546/25 

5/14/1962 

JWTS 546/23 

5/14/1962 

JWTS 436/152 

7/23/1957 

Clement I. Gaskill 
Margaret 0. Gaskill 

to 

Betty N. Bounds 
Whereas by certain deeds dated 5/14/1962 in JWTS 546/23 
Clement I. Gaskill acquired in his individual name absolute 
fee simple title 

Janice A. Culver 

to 

Clement I. Gaskill 

Clement I. Gaskill 

to 

Janice A. Culver 

Brush-Moore Newspapers, Inc. of Ohio 

to 

Clement I. Gaskill 
Margaret 0. Gaskill 



WI-271 
Wicomico News Building 
West Main Street 

Page 3 

Salsibury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title continued 

IDT 203/554 

9/1/1937 

203/544 

8/31/1937 

JCK 117/124 

1/29/1920 
Received 2/3/1920 

Richard P. Curtiss 
Guivevere Clarkson Curtiss 

to 

Brush-Moore Newspapers, Inc. 

the courses and distances given herein and taken from 
a plat of survey made for Woodcock & Webb by 
William S. Hartley 12/27/1919, recorded 2/3/1920 
JCK 117/600 

News Publishing Company 

to 

Richard P. Curtiss 

AmosW. W. Woodcock 
Fred W. C. Webb 

to 

News Publishing Company, Salisbury, Maryland 
Assumption of mortgage to Floy T. Watson 
$9,500. 7/1/1919 JCK 110/521 and the sum of 
$8,000. 



WI-271 
Wicomico News Building 
West Main Street 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title contined 

JCK 113/171 

7/1/1919 

Harriette Wright 
Lillian B. Wright 

to 

AmosW. W. Woodcock 
Frederick W. C. Webb 

Page4 



WI-271 
Wicomico News Building 
110 West Main Street 

Pl1211 

P. 

Wicomico County Tax Map 107 
Parcel 1051 

. ··-·-----·-----------------------------------

NIE PROTECTED BY COPYRIGHT. ll£Y MAY NOT 
OR REPRODUCeD tf N« FORM N::WDING B.ECTRONIC 

AS: OQl12Nl 6CN4HHl. N'IJ IMAGE PROCeS6tlG. 
SYSTEM NOW KNOWN OR TO BE tNENTB> wmtOUT 
IN WRIT1HG FROM THE PROPERTY MAP DIVISION. 

~··~ 1r11 

SCALE IN FEET 

200 0 . 200 400 600 

0 

-· .... --- . --------------------------------------------



-

UNIT ED ST A TES 
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIO 

GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 

~ ( 
'~\ ,, ...... , r---- ti 

I -......... I ,11 
\, 1 B1tterHead 

• i. Point 

I 

I ~ ) \ 

•245 ,_-

."., 
0 

•243 

WI-271 
Wicomico News Building 
110 West Main Street 

Salisbury, Maryland Quadrangle 
1942 

I 

.: 
•' >I 

I 'I 
'I 
II 

" !I 

•11 ,, 
II 
ii 

1? 
I; 

// 
// 

// 
It 

// 

I 
// 

I/ 
// 

I/ 
// 

II 
ii 
II 
II 
u. " . ,, 

ii 
'/ 

II ' 
' 138 ........ 

........ ~'. 





/;/ 

// 
/ , 

"' " 

I I r / 

/ 

/ ·7, ,1" . 

J • 



4/15/24, 10:49 AM SDAT: Real Property Data Search

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages/default.aspx 1/1

Real Property Data Search ( )

     

Search Result for WICOMICO COUNTY
 

View Map View GroundRent Redemption View GroundRent Registration

Special Tax Recapture: None
Account Identifier: District - 09 Account Number - 049444

Owner Information
Owner Name: 501 W MAIN STREET SALISBURY MD LLC Use:

Principal Residence:
COMMERCIAL/RESIDENTIAL
NO

Mailing Address: 1304 S DIVISION ST
UNIT 1
SALISBURY MD 21804-

Deed Reference: /05192/ 00438

Location & Structure Information
Premises Address: 501 W MAIN ST

SALISBURY 21801-0000
Legal Description: PAR 1 7,788SQ FT

501-03-05-507 W MAIN ST
FRANKLIN HOTEL SUBD

Map: Grid: Parcel: Neighborhood: Subdivision: Section: Block: Lot: Assessment Year: Plat No:
0106 0016 3273 10003.23 0000 PAR 1 2024 Plat Ref:

Town: SALISBURY

Primary Structure Built Above Grade Living Area Finished Basement Area Property Land Area County Use
1927 5,044 SF 7,788 SF

Stories Basement Type Exterior Quality Full/Half Bath Garage Last Notice of Major Improvements
MIXED RESIDENTIAL / RETAIL / C3

Value Information
Base Value Value Phase-in Assessments

As of
01/01/2024

As of
07/01/2023

As of
07/01/2024

Land: 61,100 61,100
Improvements 334,800 1,097,600
Total: 395,900 1,158,700 395,900 650,167
Preferential Land: 0 0

Transfer Information
Seller: SIMSON DANA & JOHN ORTH Date: 12/07/2022 Price: $1,250,000
Type: ARMS LENGTH MULTIPLE Deed1: /05192/ 00438 Deed2:

Seller: SIMSON, DANA & JOHN ORTH Date: 05/05/2000 Price: $70,000
Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /01629/ 00690 Deed2:

Seller: SALISBURY, CITY OF Date: 09/18/1998 Price: $70,000
Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /01629/ 00690 Deed2:

Exemption Information
Partial Exempt Assessments: Class 07/01/2023 07/01/2024
County: 000 0.00
State: 000 0.00
Municipal: 000 0.00|0.00 0.00|0.00
Special Tax Recapture: None

Homestead Application Information
Homestead Application Status: No Application 

Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Information
Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Status: No Application Date:

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/realproperty/maps/showmap.html?countyid=23&accountid=09+049444
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRedemption", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRegistration", "", true, "", "", false, true))
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Account-Identifier
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Owner-Name
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Principal-Residence
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Mailing-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed-Reference
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Premises-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Legal-Description
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Map-Number
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Grid
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Parcel
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Neighborhood
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Subdivision
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Section
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Block
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Lot
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Assessment-Year
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-No
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-Ref
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Town
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Primary-Structure-Built
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#AGLiving-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FBasement-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Property-Land-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Stories
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Basement
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Exterior
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Quality
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FHBaths
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Garage
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Renovation
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Base-Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Phase-in-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Improvements
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Total
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Preferential-Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Partial-Exempt-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#State-Code
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Municipal
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homestead-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Date


Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 

 
Hearing Notification 

 
Hearing Date:     April 24, 2024 
 
Time:       7:00 pm 
 
Location:  Government Office Building  

125 N. Division Street  
Salisbury, MD. 21804 
Room 301  

 
Case Number:     #24-07 
 
Commission Considering: Solar System Installation  
 
Owner’s Name:   Arreaud Germain 
 
Applicant Name:     Power Factor – Cary Shank  
 
Agent/Contractor:     Power Factor – Cary Shank 
 
Subject Property Address:    233 Newton St 
 
Historic District:      Camden Historic District 
 
Use Category:     Residential 
 
Chairman:       Mr. Scott Saxman 
 
HDC Staff contact:     Amanda Rodriquez   

City Planner 
       (410) 548-3170 



24-07































































Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 

STAFF FINDINGS 
 

Meeting of April 24, 2024 
 

 
Case Number:     #24-07 
 
Commission Considering: Solar System Installation 
 
Owner Name: Arreaud Germain 
Owners Address:  
 233 Newton St 
 Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Applicant Name:     Power Factor – Cary Shank 
 
Applicant’s Address:    8240 Beachwood Rd,   
       Baltimore, MD 21222 
 
Agent/Contractor:     Power Factor – Cary Shank 
 
Subject Property Address:    233 Newton St 
       Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Historic District:      Camden Historic District   
 
Use Category:     Residential 
 
Zoning Classification:    R-8 Residential 
 
Structure / Site Description: 
 

Built Date:     1915 
 
Enclosed Area:    1,647sq. ft. 

 
Lot Size:     5,720 sq. ft. 

 
Number of Stories:    2 

 
Contributing Structure:    Non-Contributing, 2/23/2022 



 
 
 
 
 
Wicomico County Historic Survey on file:   Yes 
 
Nearby Properties on County Survey:   Yes   
 
Properties included below but not limited to: 
 
WI-513–  232 Newton Street—William W. Mitchell House 
 
Explanation of Request: The applicant is seeking approval to install five panel rooftop 
modules solar system. 
 
Areas of Historic Guidelines to be considered: 
 
Guideline 31: Solar Panels 
a. Solar panels should be installed in a location that minimizes their visibility as much 
as possible. Flat roofs, and rear sloping roofs are the best candidates. 
 
Roofing and Chimneys 
The roof is one of the prominent defining features of historic buildings. Historic roof shapes 
and elements such as chimneys, gables, dormers, and steeples are important character 
defining features. In the Downtown Historic District, many historic roofs are flat and 
therefore not visible from street-level. The most commonly observed roofing systems in 
the Camden and Newtown Historic Districts are shingles and built-up roof applications for 
pitched and flat roofs, respectively. 
 
A roof’s original shape and pitch should be retained. The construction of new dormers 
should be carefully considered so as to not compromise the original design of the house. If 
a dormer is added, its size, design, and placement should be in scale with the overall size 
of the building, its siding and roofing materials should match those on the rest of the house, 
and its window should be consistent with the existing windows on the house in style, 
orientation and material. Other alterations, such as roof decks, vents, skylights and 
mechanical and electrical equipment should be installed so that they are not visible from 
the public right-of-way and do not damage historic fabric.  
 
Roof systems are selected and assembled to resist the environmental forces of nature such 
as rain, snow, wind, solar radiation and gravity loads. Roof gutters, and downspouts 
constitute a system where water is collected, transported and removed from the building. 
Neglect of or damage to any one of the roof components can keep this water-removal 
system from working properly and cause serious damage to the walls, ceiling, foundations 
and floors of the building.  
 



Roof drainage is one of the most important elements of the roof system. Gutters and 
downspouts should be examined annually. Remove all rotted wood or rusted metal gutters 
and replace. Aluminum with a baked-on color finish does not rust as quickly as galvanized 
materials and requires less frequent painting.  
Gutters and downspouts should be regularly cleaned and kept in good condition. 
Downspouts should be inconspicuously located on the exterior of the house and be 
compatible in color with that of the exterior of the building. 
 

Staff Findings Prepared By: Jennifer Jean 
Infrastructure and Development 
125 N Division Street, Suite 304 

Salisbury, MD 21801 
(410) 548-3170 

Date: April 24, 2024 



WI-552 

Camden Historic District (a.k.a. Newton) 

 

Architectural Survey File 

This is the architectural survey file for this MIHP record. The survey file is organized reverse-

chronological (that is, with the latest material on top). It contains all MIHP inventory forms, National 

Register nomination forms, determinations of eligibility (DOE) forms, and accompanying documentation 

such as photographs and maps. 

Users should be aware that additional undigitized material about this property may be found in on-site 

architectural reports, copies of HABS/HAER or other documentation, drawings, and the “vertical files” at 

the MHT Library in Crownsville. The vertical files may include newspaper clippings, field notes, draft 

versions of forms and architectural reports, photographs, maps, and drawings. Researchers who need a 

thorough understanding of this property should plan to visit the MHT Library as part of their research 

project; look at the MHT web site (mht.maryland.gov) for details about how to make an appointment. 

All material is property of the Maryland Historical Trust. 

 

Last Updated: 08-29-2003 



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM 

NR Eligible: yes X. 
no 

Property Name: Camden Historic District (aka Ne\\ton) Inventory Number: _WI_-_5_,_-2 _____________ _ 

Address: _______________ City: Salisbury Zip Code: 

County: _W_i_c_om_ic_o ________ USGS Topographic Map: _S_a_li_sb_u_ry.:__;Q,,_u_a_d ___________ _ 

Owner: _________________________________________ _ 

Tax Parcel Number: ___ Tax Map Number: ____ Tax Account ID Number: ______ _ 

Project: ___________________ Agency: 

Site visit by rvnIT Staff: no ~yes Name: Andrew Lewis/Michael Day Date: 03/23/01 

Eligibility recommended x Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: XA B XC D Considerations: A B c D E F G None 
-- ------

Is the property located within a historic district? no __ yes Name of district: -------------

Is district listed? no _yes Determined eligible? no __ yes District Inventory Number: Wl-552 

Documentation on the property/district is presented in: 

Description of Property and Eligibility Determination: (Use cominuation sheet if necessary and attach map and photo) 

The Camden Historic District (aka the Ne\\ton-Camden Historic District) is a local historic district composed of homes of a 
wide variety of architectural styles. According to information contained in the Wicomico survey files, the district was 
determined eligible by .. Lukenbach & Andreve" on April 17, 1986, but no copy of the DOE form could be found. 
Nevertheless, the district contains numerous homes with a great deal of integrity and the earlier determination of eligibility still 
appears valid. Architectural styles represented within the district include Colonial Revival, Queen Anne and other Victorian 
styles. The City of Salisbury specifically identifies some of the homes in the area to be of"great historical value to the 
community". These homes include "the Humphrey House, Red Gables and the house known as "Cricket Box"". The City 
Ordinance establishing the district also included the following findings: 

• Camden Avenue was once the main highway connecting Salisbury with Princess Anne to the south crossing the 18th 
Century Mill Dam at Tony Tank and Allen. It continued through the heart of Salisbury running northward to the Delaware 
towns. 

• The Camden area was the location of the first known sanitary sewer installed in 1887 to serve the L. W. Gunby and 
Willian1 P. Jackson homes on Camden A venue. 

• After the fire of 1886, City Board of Commissioners established a series of ordinances which included maintaining 
sidewalks in front of properties and establishing the rights of way of various streets. Among the first streets subject to 
improvement of widening and straightening in 1887 under this law was Camden Street, now Camden Avenue. 

YLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIEW 
Eligibility not recommended 

Considerations: A B C D E F G None -------- lt ligibility recommended ~ 
Criteria: _X_ A __ B jl_C _D 
Comments: 

D 



Camden Historic District (WI-552) 
Cgprjrnrntion Sheer No 1 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
NR-ELIBILITY REVIEW FORM 

• The town's first development laws were enacted in 1892 and involved the Camden area. Only structures of brick, stone or 
iron with slate roofs or other non-combustible materials were permitted. 

• Salisbury's first row homes were constructed in the area now known as Camden Court. 
• The first planned residential development in Salisbury was centered around what is now North, South and Middle 

Boulevards in 1908. 
• The 1909, L. W. Gunby, a resident of Camden, and Salisbury Auto Company opened the first automotive sales and service 

facility on Can1den Avenue. 
• In 1910, Frank W. Baysinger provided the City of Salisbury with its first taxi service from his garage on Camden Avenue. 
• In 1890, the Jackson family constructed one of the most elegant homes built in the Camden area. This stylish example of 

architecture was beyond the scope of anything previously built in the City. Due to lack of regulations protecting such an 
architectural legacy, the home was demolished. 

• The Ne\\'ton Jackson home on the corner of Camden and Ne\\ton Street remains as a historic reminder of the City's past. 
• The Gunby home at 507 Camden Avenue, built about 1830 and renovated in the 1880's, was the home of the founder of 

the William B. Tilghman Fertilizer Company. 
• The Humphreys house located at 722 Camden Avenue was originally constructed between 1904 and 1906 and was once 

owned by Jesse D. Price, former member of the Maryland State Senate, who also served in the U.S. House of 
Representatives. 

• The late Lee Johnson, a master mason and contractor, built one of the earliest examples of the innovative ·'Bungalow" 
Style of house located next to the Lutheran Church at South Boulevard. This example of a fine house was torn down 
because of a lack of control over the demolition of buildings in the area. 

• On the northeast corner ofNe\\ton and Camden, a residence now used as an office by an accountant has been declared one 
of the oldest residences in Salisbury and shown on 1877 maps. 

• The applicants have provided detailed documentation on the preliminary classification of ten historic structures in the area 
including such homes as "Red Gables" and "Humphreys House" to name only two. 

Prepared by: Andrew Lewis Date Prepared: _0_5/_0_2/_0_l _______ _ 



1 

N 

N ewton-illanWen 1Llintnrir ilintrirt 
WI.- S52-



PARKHUf; 
,... MANI 
,..! 

• I ,· 

nt Map 21.· · 7S'l7'JO" COP'YRIGHT •• , •• ALllXANDRIA ORAP'TING COMP'AHYcoPYRIGHT •• , •• ALl!:,J(AHORIA DRAP'TING COMPANY 
MO GRID 1.200 000 H 7~· J) 00 · 



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM 

NR Eligible: yes l 
no 

Property Name: Camden Historic District {aka Ne Inventory Number: Wl-552 

Address: City: Salisbucy Zip Code_· _____ _ 

County: Wicomico USGS Topographic Map: Salisbmy 

Owner: 

Tax Parcel #: Tax parcel Map Number: Tax Account ID Number: 

Project: Agency: 

Site visit by WIT staff _K_ no __ yes Name: Andrew Lewis/ Date: 03/23/2001 

Eligibility recommended __x_ Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: __x._ A __ B __x._ C __ D Considerations: A _B _C _D _E _F _G _None 

Is the property located within a historic district? no __ yes Name of District: 
-------------~ 

Is district listed? __ no __ yes District Inventory Number: 
-----------------~ 

Documentation on the property/district is presented in: 

Description of Property and Eligibility Determination: (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map and photo) 

The Camden Historic District (aka the Newton-Camden Historic District) is a local historic district composed of homes 
of a wide variety of architectural styles. According to information contained in the Wicomico survey files, the district 
was determined eligible by "Lukenbach & Andreve" on April 17, 1986, but no copy of the DOE form could be found. 
Nevertheless, the district contains numerous homes with a great deal of integrity and the earlier determination of 
eligibility still appears valid. Architectural styles represented within the district include Colonial Revival, Queen 
Anne and other Victorian styles. The City of Salisbury specifically identifies some of the homes in the area to be of 
"great historical value to the community". These homes include "the Humphrey House, Red Gables and the house 
known as "Cricket Box"". The City Ordinance establishing the district also included the following findings: 

Prepared by: C. Andrew Lewis Date Prepared: 05/02/2001 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIEW 

Eligibility recommended _x_ Eligibility not recommended __ 

Criteria X A 

MBT Comments: 

B X C D 

C. Andrew Lewis 

Considerations 

Reviewer, Office of Presen·ation Services 

Peter Kurtze 

Re\iewer, NR Program 

A B C D E ----

May 02, 2001 

Date 

May 02, 2001 

Date 

F G None 



NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM 

-Camden Historic District (aka Ne\\'ton) 

rage2 

1. Camden Avenue was once the main highway connecting Salisbury with Princess Anne to the south crossing the 18th 
Century Mill Dam at Tony Tank and Allen. It continued through the heart of Salisbury running northward to the 
Delaware towns. 

2. The Camden area was the location of the first known sanitary sewer installed in 1887 to serve the L.W. Gunby and 
William P. Jackson homes on Camden Avenue. 

3 After the fire of 1886, City Board of Commissioners established a series of ordinances which included maintaining 
sidewalks in front of properties and establishing the rights of way of various streets. Among the first streets subject to 
improvement of widening and straightening in 1887 under this law was Camden Street, now Camden Avenue. 

4 The tmm's first development laws were enacted in 1892 and involved the Camden area. Only structures of brick, 
stone or iron with slate roofs or other non-combustible materials were permitted. 

5 Salisbury's first row homes were constructed in the area now known as Camden Court. 

6 The first planned residential development in Salisbury was centered around what is now North, South and Middle 
Boulevards in 1908. 

7 The 1909, L. W. Gunby, a resident of Camden, and Salisbury Auto Company opened the first automotive sales and 
service facility on Camden Avenue. 

8 In 1910, Frank W. Baysinger provided the City of Salisbury with its first taxi service from his garage on Camden 
Avenue. 

9 In 1890, the Jackson family constructed one of the most elegant homes built in the Camden area. This stylish 
example of architecture was beyond the scope of an)thing previously built in the City. Due to lack of regulations 
protecting such an architectural legacy, the home was demolished. 

10 The Ne\\ton Jackson home on the corner of Camden and Newton Street remains as a historic reminder of the City's 
past. 

11 The Gunby home at 507 Camden Avenue, built about 1830 and renovated in the 1880's, was the home of the 
founder of the William B. Tilghman Fertilizer Company. 

Prepared by: C. Andrew Lewis Date Prepared: 05/02/2001 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIEW 

Eligibility recommended _x_ Eligibility not recommended __ 

Criteria X A 

MHT Comments: 

B X C 

C. Andrew Lewis 

D Considerations 

Reliewer, Office of Preservation Services 

Peter Kurtze 

Re\iewer, NR Proeram 

A B C D E 

May 02, 2001 

Date 

May 02, 2001 

Date 

F G None 



NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM 

Camden Historic District (aka Newton) 

Page 3 

12 The Humphreys house located at 722 Camden Avenue was originally constructed between 1904 and 1906 and was 
once O\\'ned by Jesse D. Price, former member of the Maryland State Senate, who also served in the U.S. House of 
Representatives. 

13 The late Lee Johnson, a master mason and contractor, built one of the earliest examples of the innovative 
"Bungalow" Style of house located next to the Lutheran Church at South Boulevard. This example of a fine house was 
tom do\\'n because of a lack of control over the demolition of buildings in the area. 

14 On the northeast comer ofNe\\'ton and Camden, a residence now used as an office by an accountant has been 
declared one of the oldest residences in Salisbury and shown on 1877 maps. 

15 The applicants have provided detailed documentation on the preliminary classification often historic structures in 
the area including such homes as "Red Gables" and "Humphreys House" to name only two. 



WI-552 

Camden Historic District 
Salisbury, Md. 



\RK 
ITS 

/ 

ns Map 21 

~'""''":. ) 
~ ~~~ 
w.~,-i 

Salisbury 

?_I 

i1 • 
COl'YRIGHT I 171. AL.Ii: )(ANDRIA DRAl"TING COMl'ANYcol'Y RIGHT 1171. ALE,XANORIA DRAFTING COMl'ANY 

MO !;RID l.200 000 rr c - - 7~· Jo oo· 
VI - ::> 5 .;;).._ 

PARICHUfl 
t'"- MANI 

c~~~~-~~----=~:--~34 
E mm•nuel 
hptist 



CAiv\D~ H-\S1cP-\G. Dl S\f2\C:( ( A~A N~lo~) 
>ALAS Bv'R'{ ~ 'Iv'\ cc\\/\\ cc CCL ~T\(, /V{[j 

wr. - !SSL. 

gl. 

~ 
_, 
"\ 

1 ~ j 0-
~ 

i ' ~ J ~ 
\j 3-



WI-513 

William W. Mitchell House 

 

Architectural Survey File 

This is the architectural survey file for this MIHP record. The survey file is organized reverse-

chronological (that is, with the latest material on top). It contains all MIHP inventory forms, National 

Register nomination forms, determinations of eligibility (DOE) forms, and accompanying documentation 

such as photographs and maps. 

Users should be aware that additional undigitized material about this property may be found in on-site 

architectural reports, copies of HABS/HAER or other documentation, drawings, and the “vertical files” at 

the MHT Library in Crownsville. The vertical files may include newspaper clippings, field notes, draft 

versions of forms and architectural reports, photographs, maps, and drawings. Researchers who need a 

thorough understanding of this property should plan to visit the MHT Library as part of their research 

project; look at the MHT web site (mht.maryland.gov) for details about how to make an appointment. 

All material is property of the Maryland Historical Trust. 

 

Last Updated: 08-29-2003 



WI-513 
William W. Mitchell House 
Salisbury 
Private 

C. 1898 

Salisbury grocer William W. Mitchell financed construction of this story-and-a-half 

frame dwelling located on Newton Street around 1898. The execution of a mortgage 

between Mitchell and the Salisbury Permanent Building and Loan Association for $900 

signals the effort to raise sufficient capital to erect this Victorian house distinctive for its 

hip roof and intersecting cross gables. The late nineteenth-century exterior, with its steeply 

pitched roof, exposed rafter tails and two-over-two window sash, corroborate this 

construction date. 

William W. Mitchell held the property for a few years. In 1902 William and his wife 

Lillie transferred title of the house and lot to Alexander D. Toadvine, Mary R. Toadvine, and 

Dora E. Toadvine for $75 along with the stipulation that the Toadvines would assume all 

payments on insurance, taxes, and the balance of the mortgage. 

Alexander Toadvine must have rented the property since his residence was located on 

East Isabella Street. (WI-275) 



-
Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of 
Historic Properties Form 

Inventory No. W 1-513 

1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name) 

historic William W. Mitchell House 

other 

2. Location 
street and number 232 Newton Street not for publication 

city town Salisbury vicinity 

county Wicomico 

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name Nancy J. Fant 

street and number 232 Newton Street telephone 

city, town Salisbury state MD zip code 21801 

4. Location of Legal Description 
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Wicomico County Clerk of Court tax map and parcel Map 111, P. 266 

city. town Salisbury. Maryland liber 1266 folio 544 

5 Primary Locatjon of Addjtjonal Data 

Contributing Resource in National Register District 
X Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Recorded by HASS/HAER 
Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT 
Other: 

6. Classification 

Category 
district 

~ building(s) 
structure 
site 
object 

Ownership 
public 

:if private 
both 

Current Function 
agriculture 
commerce/trade 
defense 

~ domestic 
education 
funerary 
government 
health care 
industry 

landscape 
recreation/culture 
religion 
social 
transportation 
work in progress 
unknown 
vacant/not in use 
other: 

Resource Count 
Contributing 

1 
Noncontributing 

buildings 
sites 
structures 
objects 

Total 

Number of Contributing Resources 
previously listed in the Inventory 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of 
Historic Properties Form 

Name William W. Mitchell House 
Continuation Sheet 

Number _J__ Page 1 

7. Description 

Condition 

exce!lent 

~ good 
fair 

deteriorated 

ruins 

altered 

Inventory No. WI-513 

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

The William W. Mitchell house stands at 232 Newton Street in the Camden Historic District of Salisbury, Wicomico 
County, Maryland. The story-and-a-half, cross-shaped Victorian house faces north with the hip roof oriented on an 
east/west axis. 

Built around 1898, the story-and-a-half, cross-shaped frame house is supported on a low brick foundation and the 
exterior is clad with asbestos shingles. The steeply pitched hip roof, along with the multiple gables that extend from it, 
are covered with asphalt shingles. Single flue, interior brick stacks pierce the roofline. 

The north (main) elevation is an asymmetrical facade with a projecting three-sided bay pavilion juxtaposed against a side 
entrance sheltered by a single story porch. Incorporated under the porch is a front door featuring Victorian panels and 
glazing above the lock rail. Latticework, including an arched entry in front of the main entrance, infills the space between 
the porch columns. A turned baluster handrail stretches between the posts as well. The adjacent pavilion is defined by a 
three-sided bay pierced by single-pane sash windows. Decorative Victorian sawnwork is attached to the so:ffit of the gable 
end, which is pierced by a two-over-two sash ·window. The edges of the roof are extended and the rafter tails are exposed. 

The east gable end is defined by pairs of two-over-two sash windows, and the edge of the roof is finished with an 
extended eave and exposed rafter tails. The west gable end is marked by an asymmetrical fenestration of two-over-two sash 
windows that includes an uneven placement of small round windows. 

The interior was not seen. 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of 
Historic Properties Form 

Name William W. Mitchell House 
Continuation Sheet 

Number__§__ Page 1 

8. Significance 

Period 

Inventory No. WI-513 

Areas of Significance Check and justify below 

1600-1699 
1700-1799 

~1800-1899 

1900-1999 
2000-

agriculture 
archeology 

~ architecture 
art 
commerce 
communications 
community planning 
conservation 

Significance dates 

Specific dates 

Evaluation for: 

National Register 

economics 
education 

engineering 
entertainment/ 

recreation 
ethnic heritage 
exploration/ 

settlement 

health/medicine 
industry 

invention 

landscape architecture 
law 
literature 
maritime history 
military 

Architect 

Builder 

_Maryland Register 

Inventory No. WI-513 

performing arts 
philosophy 

politics/government 
religion 
science 
social history 
transportation 
other: 

)( not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the 
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance reports, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

Salisbury grocer William W. Mitchell financed construction of the story-and-a-half, cross-shaped frame dwelling located 
on Newton Street around 1898. The execution of a mortgage between the Salisbury Permanent Building and Loan 
Association and William W. Mitchell for $900 signals an effort to raise the sufficient capital to erect this Victorian house 
distinctive for its hip roof and intersecting cross gables. 1 The late nineteenth-century exterior, with its steeply pitched roof, 
exposed rafter ends and two-over-two window sash, corroborate this construction date. 

William W. Mitchell held the property for a few years. In 1902 William and his wife Lillie transferred title of the house 
and lot to Alexander D. Toadvine, Mary R. Toadvine and Dora E. Toadvine for $75 along with the stipulation that 
Toadvine assume all payments on insurance, taxes, and the balance of the mortgage.2 

Alexander Toadvine must have rented the property since his residence was located on East Isabella Street. (See WI-275) 

1 Wicomico County Land Record, JTI 25/8, 27 September 1898. 

2 Wicomico County Land Record, JTI 32/375, 6 February 1902. 



9. Major Bibliographical References WI-513 

10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of project area 
Acreage surveyed 1 /4 acre 
Quadrangle name Salisbury, Maryland Quadrangle scale 1:24,000 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

The historic boundary of this property is coincidental with the metes and bounds of the lot on which the house stands. 

11. Form Prepared by 

name/title 

organization 

street & number 

city or town 

Paul B. Touart, Architectural Historian 

Private Consultant 

P. 0. Box5 date 10/1 /2000 

Westover, Maryland 21871 phone 41~51-1094 

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature to 
be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record 
purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of individual property 
rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCD/DHCP 
100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032 
410-514-7600 



WI-513 
William W. Mitchell House 
232 Newton Street 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title 

Map 111, Parcel 266 

1266/544 

10/1/1991 

AJS 1035/569 

5/8/1985 

JWTS 381/241 

3/7/1955 

JWTS 272/91 

9/25/1945 

Richard E. Murray 
Linda C. Murray 

to 

Nancy J. Fant 

Gladys L. Bradley 

to 

Richard E. Murray 
Linda C. Murray 
Steven S. Dykes 

Sherwood T. Sterling 
Reatha S. Sterling 

to 

Walter Bradley 
Gladys L. Bradley 

George R. Hitch, Jr. 
Juanita K. Hitch 

to 

Sherwood T. Sterling 
Reatha S. Sterling 



WI-513 
William W. Mitchell House 
232 Newton Street 

Page2 

Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title continued 

JCK 136/92 

8/30/1924 

JCK 114/163 

10/7/1919 

JTT 32/375 

2/6/1902 

Mortgage 
ITT 25/8 

9/27/1898 

S. Luther Ruark 

to 

George R. Hitch, Jr. and Juanita K. Hitch 

Alexander D. Toadvine, Mary R. Toadvine 
Dora E. Toadvine 

to 

S. Luther Ruark 
Whereas Dora E. Toadvine holds a mortgage against the 
hereinafter property dated 5/8/1917, JCK 105/186, Second 
Parcel 

William W. Mitchell and Lillie L. Mitchell 

to 

Alexander D. Toadvine 
$75.00 ... and has agreed and hereby does agree to pay all 
taxes and insurance premiums, and also to pay all the balance 
owing by the said parties of the first part to the Salisbury 
Permanent Building and Loan Association on a mortgage dated 
9/27/1898, JTT 25/8 

The Salisbury Permanent Building and Loan Association 

to 

William W. Mitchell and Lillie L. Mitchell 
$900 

----··--·---·------------



WI-513 
William W. Mitchell House 
232 Newton Street 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title continued 

ITT 22/198 

5/23/1898 

Annie Ingersoll, widow of Ernest Grant Ingersoll 

to 

William W. Mitchell 
$100 

Page 3 



--

(
, - \ •" 

•

• Bitter Ht· id -~ ... ! 1 iw1 

"-' 11'"'"1 
Puir1t ...:.._ . •• 

'- I . 
~ I 

(:) \ / 

( 

\...., 

":""' , 
' 

~ J,'__ J'1 

\I 
,, ·1,, 

•, 
,,, 

)1 ·'.\.\! 

l 
/ .. ~ ., 

I.~ 
4 --

/ 

• 4 

. .. 
./ 

·/:, 

. , 

/ 

·. .. ·. 

.. 
I 

~·· • ! . 1/ 
// 

(/ 
, ,1 

ii:: 

'-

-. 
• , : . ··•·•··• . .!.'_, 

-:~ .. -

J :· 

,t· 

u 

•· 
~ 

··' u 

~I .:.I.< 

.. n 
" ,,j 

.\ 

·-~--'\_: 
'-' ' ~ 

' ·=---. 

.· 

: 

WI-513 
William W. Mitchell House 

\ . 

.tt,, .. 

----

·.· 

: 

232 Newton Street 
Salisbury, Maryland Quadrangle 
1942 

', 

' ,. 





[!V ( ..,, 1 I 1 
I r£ tl-1 I' I' )-../. , ... 

i 1V-'t-L /J. ( (-' , ' r 

~ 
I I ) ' v I ' -.,, ) /! 1 /, •/ (// ' " , "" 

I J I'"' ' { {. ,/ -r l , , I 

!J/ <I J / ' /./ " ',/' "" ~,, /· /~/ 
I 

,.. /-, ~, , ..____ 
I 

. 
/Vf:. ~; f' I I/ ./ ) 

I , / 1-



r 

-



I J / 

Vr/, l A- ,,f,i ,/ -' 

("'""' 
,.,, .....t"l c; /' . , 

I 
./ . 

I , .. -. '--. 

I/ I •f' r I -1 v -- / ../ 

I 1/ IJ ;) 

I 

,/ ,,., 
/ . J C/ ,. .... .. , , '. 

//~ ·I r/,,;' _,; 

t v/ ~. 



4/15/24, 11:37 AM SDAT: Real Property Data Search

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages/default.aspx 1/1

Real Property Data Search ( )

     

Search Result for WICOMICO COUNTY
 

View Map View GroundRent Redemption View GroundRent Registration

Special Tax Recapture: None
Account Identifier: District - 13 Account Number - 042519

Owner Information
Owner Name: GERMAIN ARREAUD Use:

Principal Residence:
RESIDENTIAL
YES

Mailing Address: 233 NEWTON ST
SALISBURY MD 21801-

Deed Reference: /05240/ 00161

Location & Structure Information
Premises Address: 233 NEWTON ST

SALISBURY 21801-0000
Legal Description: 5,720 SQFT

233 NEWTON ST
CITY OF SALISBURY

Map: Grid: Parcel: Neighborhood: Subdivision: Section: Block: Lot: Assessment Year: Plat No:
0111 0011 0133 13030702.23 0000 2022 Plat Ref:

Town: SALISBURY

Primary Structure Built Above Grade Living Area Finished Basement Area Property Land Area County Use
1915 1,647 SF 5,720 SF

Stories Basement Type Exterior Quality Full/Half Bath Garage Last Notice of Major Improvements
2 NO STANDARD UNIT ASBESTOS SHINGLE/ 3 1 full/ 1 half

Value Information
Base Value Value Phase-in Assessments

As of
01/01/2022

As of
07/01/2023

As of
07/01/2024

Land: 10,700 13,900
Improvements 25,000 25,200
Total: 35,700 39,100 37,967 39,100
Preferential Land: 0 0

Transfer Information
Seller: FLOWERS & PHARMACY LLC Date: 04/17/2023 Price: $260,000
Type: ARMS LENGTH IMPROVED Deed1: /05240/ 00161 Deed2:

Seller: JEDI PROPERTIES LLC Date: 11/09/2021 Price: $44,200
Type: ARMS LENGTH IMPROVED Deed1: /04979/ 00376 Deed2:

Seller: DOUGHERTY EDWIN J Date: 08/22/2014 Price: $0
Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /03742/ 00222 Deed2:

Exemption Information
Partial Exempt Assessments: Class 07/01/2023 07/01/2024
County: 000 0.00
State: 000 0.00
Municipal: 000 0.00|0.00 0.00|0.00
Special Tax Recapture: None

Homestead Application Information
Homestead Application Status: No Application 

Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Information
Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Status: No Application Date:

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/realproperty/maps/showmap.html?countyid=23&accountid=13+042519
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRedemption", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRegistration", "", true, "", "", false, true))
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Account-Identifier
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Owner-Name
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Principal-Residence
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Mailing-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed-Reference
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Premises-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Legal-Description
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Map-Number
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Grid
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Parcel
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Neighborhood
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Subdivision
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Section
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Block
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Lot
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Assessment-Year
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-No
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-Ref
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Town
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Primary-Structure-Built
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#AGLiving-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FBasement-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Property-Land-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Stories
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Basement
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Exterior
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Quality
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FHBaths
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Garage
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Renovation
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Base-Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Phase-in-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Improvements
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Total
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Preferential-Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Partial-Exempt-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#State-Code
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Municipal
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homestead-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Date


Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 

 
Hearing Notification 

 
Hearing Date:     April 24, 2024 
 
Time:       7:00 pm 
 
Location:  Government Office Building  

125 N. Division Street  
Salisbury, MD. 21804 
Room 301  

 
Case Number:     #24-08 
 
Commission Considering: Repairs – Front Porch 
 
Owner’s Name:   St Fleur Family Investments, LLC 
 
Applicant Name:     Unique Styles Custom Home Builders  
 
Agent/Contractor:     Unique Styles Custom Home Builders 
 
Subject Property Address:    213 E Isabella St 
 
Historic District:      Newton Historic District 
 
Use Category:     Residential 
 
Chairman:       Mr. Scott Saxman 
 
HDC Staff contact:     Amanda Rodriquez   

City Planner 
       (410) 548-3170 



3/15/24

24-08

















































































































Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 

STAFF FINDINGS 
 

Meeting of April 24, 2024 
 

 
Case Number:     #24-08 
 
Commission Considering: Repairs – Front Porch 
 
Owner Name: St Fleur Family Investments, LLC 
Owners Address:  
 540 Delaware Ave 
 Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Applicant Name: Unique Styles Custom Home         
 
Applicant’s Address:    8877 Bi State Blvd   
       Delmar, MD 21875 
 
Agent/Contractor:     Unique Styles Custom Home 
 
Subject Property Address:    213 E Isabella St 
       Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Historic District:      Newton Historic District   
 
Use Category:     Residential 
 
Zoning Classification:    General Commercial 
 
Structure / Site Description: 
 

Built Date:     1920 
 
Enclosed Area:    2,991 sq. ft. 

 
Lot Size:     11,995 sq. ft. 

 
Number of Stories:    Undtermined 

 
Contributing Structure:    TBD 



 
 
 
 
 
Wicomico County Historic Survey on file:   Yes 
 
Nearby Properties on County Survey:   Yes   
 
Properties included below but not limited to: 
 
WI-252–  205 E Isabella Street—Thomas H. Tilghman House 
 
Explanation of Request: The applicant is seeking approval to replace decking on front 
porch with 5/4” x6’ salt treated deck board. 
 
Areas of Historic Guidelines to be considered: 
 
Porch Materials (Page 142) 
In Salisbury, most original porch materials are wood, however, brick, stone, and concrete were 
also historically 
used. Porch elements typically made of wood include columns, railings, balusters, floors, and 
decorative 
elements. While repairing and maintaining historic wood porches is the preferred approach, when 
it is 
necessary to replace a floor, column, or railing, some alternative material options exist. 
Flooring 
Composite flooring is a popular substitute material which is made from a mix of plastic and wood 
fibers. 
These materials are formed into planks to imitate wood decking and are installed in a manner 
similar to 
traditional wood planks. The product is sometimes available in a paintable finish. 
Use of composite flooring is appropriate for rear decks and may be appropriate on front porches if 
the 
material closely matches the original in profile, dimension, and finish. 
 
Landscape and Setting (Page 92) 
Landscaping and site features are contributing features within Salisbury’s historic districts. This 
includes trees 
and vegetation, as well as patios, decks, and swimming pools. 
Salisbury’s Historic Preservation Ordinance states that routine landscaping that does not have a 
material 
effect on the historic or architectural significance of a property is not subject to review by the 
SHDC. Major 
landscape alterations, however, are subject to SHDC approval and require a COA. 
 
Guideline 32: General Landscaping 
a. New decks, patios, swimming pools, and playground equipment requiring a permanent 



foundation should be situated in the rear of properties rather than at the front elevation. 
Where appropriate, these additions should be screened from view with landscaping or 
vegetation. Additions of this type require a COA. 
b. Historic landscaping features should be maintained and preserved as any other historic feature 
on the property. The removal of historic landscaping features, including front lawns, hedge 
rows, and mature trees should be avoided. 
Best Choice: 
Maintain existing historic landscape features including lawns, 
patios, and planting arrangements. 
Good Alternative: 
Design new patios and planting arrangements to complement 
the existing historic features of the property. 
Not Appropriate: 
Replacing a lawn with gravel or synthetic landscaping materials 
such as Astroturf, or installing artificial plants and/or flowers for 
the sake of convenience. 
 

Staff Findings Prepared By: Jennifer Jean 
Infrastructure and Development 
125 N Division Street, Suite 304 

Salisbury, MD 21801 
(410) 548-3170 

Date: April 24, 2024 



WI-153 

Newtown Historic District 

 

Architectural Survey File 

This is the architectural survey file for this MIHP record. The survey file is organized reverse-

chronological (that is, with the latest material on top). It contains all MIHP inventory forms, National 

Register nomination forms, determinations of eligibility (DOE) forms, and accompanying documentation 

such as photographs and maps. 

Users should be aware that additional undigitized material about this property may be found in on-site 

architectural reports, copies of HABS/HAER or other documentation, drawings, and the “vertical files” at 

the MHT Library in Crownsville. The vertical files may include newspaper clippings, field notes, draft 

versions of forms and architectural reports, photographs, maps, and drawings. Researchers who need a 

thorough understanding of this property should plan to visit the MHT Library as part of their research 

project; look at the MHT web site (mht.maryland.gov) for details about how to make an appointment. 

All material is property of the Maryland Historical Trust. 

 

Last Updated: 05-15-2018 



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY FORM 

Property Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address: Historic district: X yes no 

City: Salisbury Zip Code: 21801 County: Wicomico 

USGS Quadrangle(s): Salisbury 

Property Owner: Tax Account ID Number: 

Tax Map Parcel Number(s): Tax Map Number: 104,106-7 

Project: TEA-21 DOE Agency: Maryland Historical Tmst 

Agency Prepared By: Maryland Historical Trust 

Preparer's Name: Nicole Diehlmann Date Prepared: 6/15/2004 

Documentation is presented in: MIHP Form WI-153 

Preparer's Eligibility Recommendation: X Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: _X^A B _X_C D Considerations: A B C D E F G 

Complete if the property is a contributing or non-contributing resource to a NR district/property: ; 

Name of the District/Property: 

Inventory Number: Eligible: yes Listed: yes 

visit by MHT Staf X yes no Name: Nicole Diehlmann Date: 12/15/2003 

Description of Property and Justification: (Please attach map and photo) 

The Newtown Historic District is a mid-19th to early-20th century residential community located in the City of Salisbury. 
The area is roughly bounded by Broad Street/U.S. Route 50 to the south, U.S. Route 13 to the east and railroad tracks to the north 
and west. Most structures within the area are in residential use with the exception of a few churches on the southem end and 
some commercial space along Route 13. 

The Newtown Historic District is one of Salisbury's earliest residential areas. Slowly subdivided from the tract known as 
"Pemberton's Good Will," structures in Newtown date from as early as 1795 to the mid-20th century. These houses, constructed 
by Salisbury's elite, represent the evolution of residential architectural trends from the late 18th to the early 20th century and 
retain their architectural integrity. 

The Newtovra Historic District is comprised of 278 properties. Of the 278 properties, 233 contribute to the district and 45 
do not contribute. Structures in Newtown are large in scale and placed fairly close together. They are typically frame, two-and-a-
half stories in height and three to five bays wide. Most structures have frill length or wraparound porches. The structures 
represent an eclectic mix of mid-19th to early-20th century building types and styles including foursquares, Greek Revival, Queen 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIE 

Eligibility recommended X Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: J£^A B _X_C D Considerations: A B C D E F G 

MHT Comments: 

' Nicole Diehlmann Tuesday, June 15,2004 

Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date 

Peter Kurtze Tuesday, June 15, 2004 

Reviewer, National Register Program Date 



NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM 

WI-153 Newtown Historic District 

Page 2 

vnne, Shingle Style, and Colonial Revival buildings. The neighborhood maintains integrity of location, design, setting, materials, 
Issociation and feeling. 

The Newtown Historic District is eligible for listing on National Register under Criterion A and C as a outstanding 
example of a mid-19th to early-20th century unplanned suburban neighborhood. It is significant for its intact collection of late-
18th to early-20th century residential building styles, as well as for its association with key figures in the development of the City 
of Salisbury. 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIE 

Eligibility recommended X Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: _X^A B _X_C D Considerations: A B C D E F G 

MHT Comments: 

' Nicole Diehlmann Tuesday, June 15,2004 

Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date 

Peter Kurtze Tuesday, June 15, 2004 

Reviewer, National Register Program Date 



Newtown Historic District 
WI-153 
Salisbury, Wicomico County 
1795-1954 

The Newtown Historic District is a mid-19"^ to early-20'^ century unplanned residential 

community located just north of U.S. Route 50 in the City of Salisbury. Most structures within 

the area are in residential use with the exception of a few churches on the southern end and some 

commercial space along Route 13. Structures in Newtown are large in scale and placed fairly 

close together. They are typically frame, two-and-a-half stories in height and three to five bays 

wide. Most structures have full length or wraparound porches. The structures represent an 

eclectic mix of mid-19* to early-20"^ century building types and styles including foursquares, 

Greek Revival, Queen Anne, Shingle style, and Colonial Revival buildings. The neighborhood 

maintains integrity of location, design, setting, materials, association and feeling. 

The Newtown Historic District is one of Salisbury's earhest residential areas. Slowly 

subdivided from the tract known as "Pemberton's Good Will," structures in Newtown date from 

as early as 1795 to the mid-20' century. These houses, constructed by Salisbury's elite, 

represent the evolution of residential architectural trends from the late 18' to the early 20* 

century and retain their architectural integrity. The Newtown Historic District is eligible for 

listing on National Register under Criterion A and C as a outstanding example of a mid-19' to 

early-20"^ century unplanned suburban neighborhood. It is significant for its intact collection of 

late-18* to early-20"^ century residential building styles, as well as for its association with key 

figures in the development of the City of Salisbury. 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of 
Historic Properties Form 

Inventory No. WI-153 

1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name) 

historic Newtown Historic District 

other 

2. Location 
street and number not for publication 

city, town Salisbury vicinity 

county Wicomico 

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name Multiple Owners 

street and number telephone 

city, town Salisbury state MD zip code 21801 

4. Location of Legal Description 
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Wicomico County Courthouse liber folio 

city, town Salisbury tax map 104, 106, 107 tax parcel tax ID number 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 
Contributing Resource in National Register District 
Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 

X Determined Eligible for the National Register/l\/1aryland Register 
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Recorded by HABS/HAER 
Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT 
Other: 

6. Classification 

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count 
X district public agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing 

building(s) private commerce/trade X recreation/culture 233 45 buildings 
structure X both defense X religion sites 
site X domestic social structures 
object education transportation objects 

funerary work in progress 233 45 Total 
government unknown 
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources 
industry other: previously listed in the Inventory 

12 



7. Description Inventory No. WI-153 

Condition 

X excellent 
good 
fair 

deteriorated 
ruins 
altered 

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

The Newtown Historic District is a mid-19* to early-ZO* century unplanned residential community located just north of U.S. 
Route 50 in the City of Salisbury. The area is roughly bounded by Broad Street/Route 50 to the south, U.S. Route 13 to the east and 
railroad tracks to the north and west. Most structures within the area are in residential use with the exception of a few churches on the 
southern end and some commercial space along Route 13. Structures in Newtown are large in scale and placed fairly close together. 
They are typically frame, two-and-a-half stories in height and three to five bays wide. Most structures have full length or wraparound 
porches. The structures represent an eclectic mix of mid-19* to early-20* century building types and styles including foursquares, 
Greek Revival, Queen Anne, Shingle style, and Colonial Revival buildings. The neighborhood maintains integrity of location, design, 
setting, materials, association and feeling. 

Newtown is a predominantly residential community on the north side of downtown Salisbury that slowly developed from the 
mid-19* century into the early 20* century. The Newtown Historic District is roughly bounded by Broad Street/Route 50 to the south, 
U.S. Route 13 to the east and railroad tracks to the north and west. The district is primarily residential with the exception of a few 
churches along the southern boundary and some commercial space along Route 13. 

Parcels in Newtown were slowly subdivided from a tract of land called "Pemberton's Good Will" beginning in the mid-19 
century. Early development was clustered along what is now Broad and Division streets. More development occurred after the Civil 
War when Isabella, Elizabeth and William streets were partitioned for development from the Poplar Hill Mansion property. The 1877 
Atlas for Salisbury shows a street system very close to what exists today, with the exception of Park Avenue, Oakdale Road and 
Elizabeth Street, which don't appear. Development at that time is clustered on the southern end of the district, principally on Division, 
Broad, Chestnut and Walnut streets.' The neighborhood seems to have been almost built out by the time the September 1899 Sanborn 
Map was published. That map shows very few vacant parcels left in the community. The area along Oakdale Road, on the property 
once called The Oaks, was the last portion of the district to be developed. 

Despite the long period of development, the Newtown streetscape is rhythmic with an irregular gridiron layout and a 
relatively consistent setback. Lot sizes are irregular, but the houses are large in scale and placed fairly close together. The houses are 
typically frame, two-and-a-half stories in height and three to five bays wide. Most structures have full length or wraparound porches. 
The structures represent an eclectic mix of mid-19* to early-2G* century building types and styles including foursquares, Greek 
Revival, Queen Anne, Shingle style, and Colonial Revival buildings. The streets are lined with mature trees. 

Newtown is significant for its broad array and distinguished examples of 19* to early 20* century architectural styles. As a 
result of fires in 1860 and 1886, there are few remaining antebellum houses in Salisbury. Two of them are located in Newtown. 
Poplar Hill Mansion [WI-8], located at 117 Elizabeth Street, is the oldest known structure in the City of Salisbury. Construction of the 
two-story, five-bay frame structure with fine federal-style detailing, including a Palladian window, block comice and decorative 
fanlight over the entrance door, was begun circa 1795 when Levin Handy purchased the property. This property is currently operated 
as a house museum. The rear wing of the 1897 Robert D. Grier house [WI-62] at 315 North Division Street, was originally the two-
story, five-bay frame Thomas Hooper House which dates to circa 1820. Now fiinctioning as a service wing, the structure was 
originally a center hall plan house with fine federal detailing.^ 

The Greek Revival style is well represented in Newtown. Probably the most notable is the three-story, five-bay frame house 
located at 115 Broad Street, formerly known as "Park Hall," which was the residence of merchant and mill owner General Humphrey 
Humphreys. According to an inscribed board, the house dates to 1856. The double pile house is three stories tall with a center hall 
and low pitched roof with wide eaves. The first two stories are clad in weatherboard with 6/6 sash windows while the shorter third 
story is clad in flush board siding with casement windows. The first and second stories are encased in vertical comer pilasters on 
which the third floor appears to rest as a classical entablature. The interior also retains Greek-inspired finishes. Similar to this house 
is the Dr. Cathell Humphreys house (later known as "Mrs. Herold's School") at 325 N. Division Street. This building, constructed c. 

' Wicomico Bicentennial Commission, The 1877 Atlases and other Early Maps of the Eastern Shore of Maryland (Salisbury, MD: 
Peninsula Press, 1976), p. 18. 
^ Touart, Paul Baker, At the Crossroads: The Architectural History of Wicomico County, Maryland, draft manuscript located at the 
Maryland Historical Trust, 2002-2003; Touart, Paul Baker, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood," article 
found in the Maryland Historical Trust vertical files; and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District," found in the 
vertical files of the MHT Library. 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of Inventory No. WI-153 

Historic Properties Form 

Newtown Historic District 
Continuation Sheet 

Number 7 Page 1 

1860-1870 by General Humphrey Humphrey's brother, is a three-story, three-bay center hall dwelling with weatherboard sheathing on 
the first two stories and flush board sheathing on the third. The eaves under the hipped roof are marked with large decorative 
brackets. Other Greek Revival structures remaining in Newtown include Hatfield Manor on Division Street, which was constructed 
for local merchant Theodore Parsons and his wife, Margaret Bell Parsons. This three-story, five-bay, center-hall structure with 
flanking two-story wings and a low pitched roof retains its Corinthian columns and bracketed cornice. ^ 

Elihu E. Jackson, a lumber magnate and Governor of Maryland, and his wife Nellie Rider Jackson lived on the large estate 
known as The Oaks on the north side of Newtown. The house was located on the northwest comer of North Division and West 
Isabella streets and designed in the Queen Anne style by Jackson C. Gott of Baltimore in 1883-84. At the time, it was the largest 
house constructed in Salisbury with over twenty rooms. It was located on an elevated site and was decorated with an asymmetrical 
collection of towers, gables and porches. In August 1887, it was one of the first houses in Salisbury to be electrified. The structure 
was demolished in the 1920s to make way for new residential development.'* 

Other notable Queen Anne dwellings in Newtown include the 1887-8 Gillis-Grier house [WI-13] at the comer of North 
Division and William streets (401 N. Division Street). Built for merchant James Cannon, the asymmetrical house sports a three-story 
octagonal tower with conical roof, brick chimneys with corbelled caps and terra cotta and woodwork panels. In 1897, Robert D. 
Grier, a foundry owner, purchased property at 501 North Division Street. He moved the existing dwelling and hired Salisbury builder 
William J. Johnson to construct a new house on the front of the property. The new portion of the house contains many Queen Anne 
details including a three story circular tower with conical roof and fishscale shingles. Throughout the Newtown district, there are 
many more modest dwellings with Queen Anne detailing. One example is the 1898 William M. Day house [WI-245] at the comer of 
East Isabella Street and Poplar Hill Avenue (119 E. Isabella Street). This two-and-a-half story house is sheathed in a mix of narrow 
weatherboards, decorative panels and fish scale shingles, and contains multisided bays. 

The Perry-Cooper house [WI-106] at the comer of William and Gay streets (200 E. William Street) in Newtown is an 
outstanding example of the Second Empire style. It was constructed in 1897 for Thomas Perry, the owner of the Salisbury Advertiser. 
It maintains its distinctive mansard roof and circular front porch, and is notable for the unusual swag design found in the comice and 
window lintels.* 

The American Four-Square was a popular house type in the early 20* century. They are defined by their two-and-a-half 
story height, square massing and hipped or pyramidal roof They were often omamented with Colonial Revival and Craftsman design 
motifs. One such example in Newtown is the 1910 L. Atwood Bennett house on Elizabeth Street. Constructed for a Salisbury 
attorney, the dwelling is notable for its neoclassical porch and exposed rafter ends.' 

Touart, At the Crossroads and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 
Touart, At the Crossroads and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
Touart, At the Crossroads and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of Inventory No. WI-153 

Historic Properties Form 

Newtown Historic District 
Continuation Sheet 

Number 7 Page 2 

The properties on Oakdale and the northernmost block of Park Avenue, formerly the site of E.E. Jackson's property. The 
Oaks, differ from the rest of the district. They are characterized by larger lots and a curvilinear streetscape. The earliest structures 
date to the 1930s and are predominantly designed in the Colonial Revival style. The eastern half of the block between Isabella Street 
and Oakdale Road is now a community park. 

The Newtown neighborhood also contains several significant institutional buildings. These include the Charles H. Chipman 
Cultural Center, which was formerly the John Wesley M.E. Church. The John Wesley M.E. congregation was formed in 1837 by a 
group of free blacks. They constructed a one-story frame church on a Newtown lot they purchased in 1838 at what is now 321 Broad 
Street. The church was renovated and raised to two stories in 1880, and in 1901 a tower was added to the front. The building now 
houses a museum interpreting local African-American history.* 

In 1859, Salisbury's Wicomico Presbyterian Church congregation began construction of a large brick church with 
Romanesque Revival details at what is now 129 Broad Street. This larger church replaced their former place of worship, a one-story 
building on Broad Street. The church with its rounded arched windows was dedicated on March 24, 1861. The entrance tower and 
steeple, designed by Baltimore architectural firm Owens & Sisco, was added in 1910.' 

The original Asbury Methodist Episcopal Church was destroyed by the 1886 fire, but was reconstructed in 1887-8. The new 
church, financed by wealthy lumber merchant William H. Jackson, was designed by Baltimore architect Jackson C. Gott in the 
Romanesque Revival style and constructed in Port Deposit stone. The church was unique because the sanctuary was oriented on a 
diagonal with a comer pulpit and theatre-style seating. The building now houses the Faith Community Church at 219 N. Division 
Street.'° 

Trinity Methodist Church [WI-64], at the comer of North Division and High Street, was designed by the Baltimore 
architectural firm, C.E. Cassell & Son, and constmcted in 1904-5. Built in the Richardsonian Romanesque style with Port Deposit 
granite and limestone accents, the building is notable for its windows made by the studios of Louis Comfort Tiffany." 

Touart, At the Crossroads; and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
' Touart, At the Crossroads; and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
'° Touart, At the Crossroads. 
" "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 



8. Significance Inventory No. WI-153 

Period 

_ 1600-1699 
X 1700-1799 
X 1800-1899 
X 1900-1999 

2000-

Areas of Significance 

agriculture 
archeology 

X architecture 
_ art 

commerce 
communications 
community planning 
conservation 

Checl< and justify below 

economics 
education 
engineering 
entertainment/ 

recreation 
ethnic heritage 
exploration/ 
settlement 

health/medicine 
industry 
invention 
landscape architecture 
law 
literature 
maritime history 
military 

performing arts 
philosophy 
politics/government 
religion 
science 
social history 
transportation 
other: 

Specific dates 1795-1954 Architect/Builder 

Construction dates 

Evaluation for: 

X National Register Ji Maryland Register not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the 
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

The Newtovra Historic District is one of Salisbury's earliest residential areas. Slowly subdivided from the tract known as 
"Pemberton's Good Will," structures in Newtown date from as early as 1795 to the early 20* century. These houses, constructed by 
Salisbury's elite, represent the evolution of residential architectural trends from the late 18* to the early 20* century and retain their 
architectural integrity. The Newtown Historic District is eligible for listing on National Register under Criterion C as a outstanding 
example of a mid-19* to early-20* century unplanned suburban neighborhood. The neighborhood maintains its integrity of location, 
design, setting, materials, association and feeling. It is significant for its intact collection of late-18 to early-20 century residential 
building styles, as well as for its association with key figures in the development of the City of Salisbury. 

The City of Salisbury was established in 1732 on fifteen acres of land between the north and east branches of the Wicomico 
River. Despite its location on the dividing line of what was then Somerset and Worcester counties, by the end of the 18 century, 
Salisbury had developed into a commercial center. According to architectural historian Paul Touart, much of this growth was fueled 
by "the speculation and subdivision of additional parts of "Pemberton's Good Will," one of the principal tracts on which the city was 
laid out. The newly partitioned land was located along the Salisbury-Laurel [Delaware] Road between High Street and modem-day 
West Isabella Street."'^ A large mill complex was established in 1769 on the north prong of the Wicomico River by Littleton Dennis 
and Josiah and Gilliss Polk which by 1774 contained two grist mills, a bolting mill and a saw mill on eighty acres of land. The 
surviving 1798 Direct Tax records for Somerset County show a diversity of commercial, industrial and domestic structures located 
primarily between the two forks of the Wicomico River. Almost a third of the dwellings were classified as "new," indicating the town 
was experiencing a growth spurt.''' 

Outside of this developed area were several large land holdings, including the 357-acre plantation owned by Levin Handy. 
This property was called Poplar Hill, but was originally a portion of "Pemberton's Good Will." Levin Handy purchased the property 
in 1795 and shortly thereafter began construction of the two-story, five-bay frame structure with fine federal-style detailing now 
known as Poplar Hill Mansion. The house was not completed by Handy, however. In 1805, John Huston, a doctor who also owned 
and operated a downtown bank, acquired the property and finished construction.'* 

During the late 18* century, a 74.75-acre parcel of "Pemberton's Good Will," located between what is now High and West 
Isabella streets, was acquired by another of Salisbury's early physicians. Dr. Martin Luther Haynie. Dr. Haynie subdivided the land 
into smaller, irregularly-sized parcels that fronted the west side of what was then known as Dividing or Boundary Street. The 1798 
Federal Direct tax assessment indicates that these properties were located in "Haynie's Settlement" and were mostly unimproved. It is 
unclear how much development occurred there in the first quarter of the nineteenth century, but by the 1820s, the area was referred to 
as "New Town" in property transfers.'^ 

'̂  Touart, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood." 
'̂  Touart, At the Crossroads; Touart, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood;" and "Architectural Walking 
Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
'•* Touart, At the Crossroads. 
" Touart, At the Crossroads; and Touart, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood." 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of Inventory No. WI-153 

Historic Properties Form 

Newtown Historic District 
Continuation Sheet 

Number _8_ Page 1 

Salisbury continued to grow in the early 19 century, mostly because of its commercial and industrial enterprises and its 
location on the Wicomico River and the primary north-south road of the Delmarva Peninsula. The area of Newtown was incorporated 
into Salisbury's corporate limits in 1847. At that time, most of the construction activity within Newtown was limited to parcels 
bordering on Broad, High, and Dividing streets. The additional acreage within the current-day boundaries of Newtown was still 
owned by Dr. John and Sarah Huston of Poplar Hill.'* 

By the time the railroad reached Salisbury in April 1860, the town boundaries had expanded dramatically and the population 
neared 2,000 residents. The next several years brought setbacks for the town—an August 1860 fire devastated much of the town, and 
by 1862 the town was occupied by federal forces seeking confederate sympathizers. By the end of the war, however, Salisbury was 
recovering from the ravages of fire. Many residents chose to rebuild their houses outside of the commercial district in Newtown. The 
pace of construction was brisk along Division Street. Three new east-west streets were created from land subdivided from the Poplar 
Hill property. They were named after the children of Poplar Hill's owners, John and Sarah Huston—Isabella, Elizabeth and 
William.'^ 

In 1867, the Maryland legislature passed a new constitution with an amendment authorizing the partition of Somerset and 
Worcester counties and the creation of a new jurisdiction named after the Wicomico River. Salisbury became the county seat of the 
new Wicomico County and grew in influence. During the 1870s, an extensive railroad network was developed on the Eastern Shore. 
Many of these lines intersected at Salisbury, transforming the town into a transportation hub. At the same time, dredging and other 
improvements to the Wicomico River improved the town's shipping capacity. These positive economic factors lead to a building 
boom in Sahsbury that would last to the end of the century.'^ 

Fire struck the town once again on October 18, 1886. Ignited in a livery stable downtown, the fire quickly spread throughout 
the city. Wet blankets were effectively used to protect the roofs of Newtown houses from catching on fire. With help from the 
Wilmington, Pocomoke City and Crisfield fire departments, the north and easternmost portions of the blaze were extinguished by 
Broad and Division streets, saving the residence of Dr. Eugene Humphreys [the General Humphrey Humphreys House] at 115 Broad 
Street. Salisbury quickly recovered from this second major fire and Newtown once again became a center of residential 
construction. '̂  

As a result of its ever-growing industrial, commercial and agricultural economy, from the 1880s to the 1920s, Salisbury's 
population grew from nearly 4,000 to over 10,000 residents. This population growth spurred demand for housing. To meet this need, 
some local businessmen constructed rowhouse units on smaller parcels of land. There is a series of such brick rowhouse units in 
Newtown on Poplar Hill Avenue, but the neighborhood remained one of primarily single-family detached houses. " 

The properties on Oakdale Road and the northernmost block of Park Avenue, formerly the site of E.E. Jackson's property. 
The Oaks, were the last to be developed and represent building trends in the early 20* century. They are characterized by larger lots 
and a curvilinear streetscape. The earliest structures date to the 1930s and are predominantly designed in the Colonial Revival style. 

The Newtown Historic District contains examples of almost all architectural styles popular in the United States from the late 
18* to the early 20 century. These high-style structures were built by Salisbury's elite and represent the City's growing importance 
on Maryland's Eastern Shore. 

Touart, At the Crossroads; and Touart, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood." 
Touart, At the Crossroads; and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 



9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. WI-153 

"Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District," found in the vertical files of the MHT Library. 

Touart, Paul Baker, At the Crossroads: The Architectural History of Wicomico County, Maryland, draft manuscript located at the 
Maryland Historical Trust, 2002-2003. 

, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood," article found in the Maryland Historical Trust vertical 
files. 

Wicomico Bicentennial Commission, The 1877 Atlases and other Early Maps of the Eastern Shore of Maryland (Salisbury, MD: 
Peninsula Press, 1976). 

10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property 74.98 
Acreage of historical setting 74.98 
Quadrangle name Salisbury Quadrangle scale: 1:24.000 

Verbal boundary description and justification 
The Newtown Historic District is roughly bounded by Broad Street/Route 50 to the south, U.S. Route 13 to the east and railroad 
tracks to the north and west. This area contains a concentrated collection of significant historic properties that were originally 
subdivided from the tract "Pemberton's Good Will." Some properties facing the west side of U.S. Business Route 13 are not 
included in the district because they do not retain sufficient integrity to contribute to the district's significance. 

11. Form Prepared by 

name/title 

organization 

street & nunnber 

city or town 

Nicole A. Diehlmann 

Maryland Historical Trust 

100 Community Place 

Crownsville 

date 

telephone 

state 

June 30, 2004 

410-514-7625 

MD 

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature 
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only 
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCD/DHCP 
100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023 
410-514-7600 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

209 ASBURY PL 

211 ASBURY PL 

213 ASBURY PL 

101 BROAD ST 

115 BROAD ST 

123 BROAD ST 

207 BROAD ST 

221 BROAD ST 

225 BROAD ST 

227 BROAD ST 

325 BROAD ST 

323 N BROAD ST 

327 N BROAD ST 

112 CHESTNUT ST 

107 E CHESTNUT ST 

109 E CHESTNUT ST 

119 E CHESTNUT ST 

121 E CHESTNUT ST 

104 W CHESTNUT ST 

107 W CHESTNUT ST 

111 W CHESTNUT ST 

106 COLONIAL CT 

104 S COLONIAL CT 

217 N DIVISION ST 

218 N DIVISION ST 

224 N DIVISION ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Map 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

Parcel 

1002 

1863 

0749 

0750 

0751 

0753 

0752 

0748 

0747 

0745 

0744 

0743 

0740 

1864 

1862 

0746 

0758 

0759 

0760 

0761 

0995 

0957 

0958 

0952 

0953 

0754 

0999 

0998 

Block 

2 

0 

5 

4 

4 

4 

4 

5 

5 

Lot 

1 

PARB 

2 

2 

0 

5 

28 

1 

23 

25 

4 

3 

Inventory No. 

WI-14 

WI-151 

Page I of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

225 N DIVISION ST 

226 N DIVISION ST 

228 N DIVISION ST 

300 N DIVISION ST 

301 N DIVISION ST 

302 N DIVISION ST 

304 N DIVISION ST 

305 N DIVISION ST 

308 N DIVISION ST 

309 N DIVISION ST 

312 N DIVISION ST 

313 N DIVISION ST 

314 N DIVISION ST 

315 N DIVISION ST 

316 N DIVISION ST 

319 N DIVISION ST 

320 N DIVISION ST 

321 N DIVISION ST 

322 N DIVISION ST 

324 N DIVISION ST 

325 N DIVISION ST 

326 N DIVISION ST 

328 N DIVISION ST 

401 N DIVISION ST 

403 N DIVISION ST 

407 N DIVISION ST 

408 N DIVISION ST 

501 N DIVISION ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

Parcel 

0757 

0997 

0996 

0956 

0756 

0955 

0954 

0773 

0951 

0772 

0950 

0774 

0949 

0810 

0948 

0811 

0947 

0812 

0946 

0945 

0813 

1867 

0943 

0678 

0677 

0676 

0941 

0635 

Block 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

2 

Lot 

26 

24 

22 

21 

20 

19A 

0 

17 

0 

15 

23 

0 

Inventory No. 

WI-62 

WI-110 

WI-13 

Page 2 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

509 N DIVISION ST 

601 N DIVISION ST 

605 N DIVISION ST 

607 N DIVISION ST 

611 N DIVISION ST 

613 N DIVISION ST 

102 ELIZABETH ST 

103 ELIZABETH ST 

104 ELIZABETH ST 

105 ELIZABETH ST 

106 ELIZABETH ST 

107 ELIZABETH ST 

108 ELIZABETH ST 

109 ELIZABETH ST 

111 ELIZABETH ST 

113 ELIZABETH ST 

114 ELIZABETH ST 

116 ELIZABETH ST 

117 ELIZABETH ST 

202 ELIZABETH ST 

203 ELIZABETH ST 

204 ELIZABETH ST 

205 ELIZABETH ST 

206 ELIZABETH ST 

208 ELIZABETH ST 

210 ELIZABETH ST 

306 ELLEN ST 

324 ELLEN ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Map 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0107 

0107 

Parcel 

0634 

0608 

0607 

0606 

0605 

0604 

0633 

0609 

0632 

0610 

0631 

0611 

0630 

0612 

0613 

0614 

0628 

0627 

0615 

0624 

0616 

0623 

0617 

0622 

0621 

0620 

0702 

0706 

Block Lot Inventory No. 

W1-360 

WI-361 

W1-364 

WI-8 

Page 3 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

305 GAY ST 

306 GAY ST 

307 GAY ST 

308 GAY ST 

309 GAY ST 

310 GAY ST 

311 GAY ST 

312 GAY ST 

313 GAY ST 

317 HAPPY LANE 

101 HIGH ST 

105 HIGH ST 

107 HIGH ST 

109 HIGH ST 

106 HIGH ST 

111 HIGH ST 

113 HIGH ST 

102 E ISABELLA ST 

103 E ISABELLA ST 

104 E ISABELLA ST 

105 E ISABELLA ST 

106 E ISABELLA ST 

107 E ISABELLA ST 

108 E ISABELLA ST 

109 E ISABELLA ST 

110 E ISABELLA ST 

111 E ISABELLA ST 

112 E ISABELLA ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

Parcel 

0796 

0797 

0795 

0798 

0794 

0799 

0793 

0800 

0792 

0730 

1000 

1001 

1005 

1006 

1003 

1007 

1008 

0675 

0636 

0674 

0637 

0673 

0638 

0672 

0639 

0671 

0640 

0670 

Block 

6 

6 

6 

Lot 

1 

2 

4 

Inventory No. 

W1-328 

Page 4 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

113 E ISABELLAS! 

114 E ISABELLAS! 

116 E ISABELLAS! 

117 E ISABELLAS! 

118 E ISABELLAS! 

119 E ISABELLAS! 

120 E ISABELLAS! 

204 E ISABELLA S ! 

205 E ISABELLA S ! 

206 E ISABELLA S ! 

207 E ISABELLA S ! 

209 E ISABELLA S ! 

210 E ISABELLAS! 

211 E ISABELLAS! 

213 E ISABELLAS! 

214 E ISABELLAS! 

215 E ISABELLAS! 

216 E ISABELLAS! 

220 E ISABELLA S ! 

222 E ISABELLA S ! 

104 W ISABELLAS! 

108 W ISABELLAS! 

n o w ISABELLAS! 

205 W ISABELLA S ! 

208 W ISABELLA S ! 

LEMMON HILL LN 

305 LEMMON HILL LN 

313 LEMMON HILL LN 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0106 

Parcel 

0641 

0669 

0668 

0642 

0667 

0643 

0664 

0662 

0648 

0661 

0649 

0650 

0660 

0651 

0652 

0659 

0653 

0658 

0657 

0656 

0976 

0975 

0974 

0925 

0977 

1010 

1009 

1011 

Block 

3 

3 

3 

Lot 

2 

6 

5 

4 

24 

1 

Inventory No. 

W1-245 

Page 5 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

315 LEIVIMON HILL LN 

309 LESTER CT 

101 OAKDALE ROAD 

105OAKDALE ROAD 

107 OAKDALE ROAD 

201 OAKDALE ROAD 

207 OAKDALE ROAD 

208 OAKDALE ROAD 

212 OAKDALE ROAD 

213 OAKDALE ROAD 

215 OAKDALE ROAD 

219 OAKDALE ROAD 

221 OAKDALE ROAD 

223 OAKDALE ROAD 

225 OAKDALE ROAD 

300 PARK AVE 

302 PARK AVE 

303 PARK AVE 

304 PARK AVE 

305 PARK AVE 

306 PARK AVE 

307 PARK AVE 

308 PARK AVE 

309 PARK AVE 

310 PARK AVE 

311 PARK AVE 

312 PARK AVE 

314 PARK AVE 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0106 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0106 

Parcel 

1012 

0804 

0912 

0913 

0914 

0915 

0916 

0931 

0930 

0917 

0918 

0919 

0920 

0921 

0927 

0991 

0990 

0959 

0989 

0960 

0988 

0961 

0987 

0962 

0986 

0963 

0985 

0984 

Block 

3 

2 

2 

4 

2 

4 

2 

4 

2 

2 

4 

2 

2 

Lot 

1 23 

10A 

1 

2 

2 

3 

4 

4 

4 

5 

6 

6 

7 

8 

Inventory No. 

Page 6 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

315 PARK AVE 

316 PARK AVE 

317 PARK AVE 

318 PARK AVE 

319 PARK AVE 

320 PARK AVE 

321 PARK AVE 

323 PARK AVE 

400 PARK AVE 

402 PARK AVE 

403 PARK AVE 

405 PARK AVE 

406 PARK AVE 

500 PARK AVE 

504 PARK AVE 

507 PARK AVE 

508 PARK AVE 

511 PARK AVE 

513 PARK AVE 

519 PARK AVE 

106 PARSONS ST 

107 PARSONS ST 

108 PARSONS ST 

109 PARSONS ST 

110 PARSONS ST 

112 PARSONS ST 

114 PARSONS ST 

300 POPLAR HILL AVE 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Map 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0107 

0106 

0106 

0107 

0107 

0106 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

Parcel 

0964 

0983 

0965 

0982 

0966 

0981 

0967 

0968 

0980 

0979 

0972 

0973 

0978 

0928 

0932 

0936 

0933 

0937 

0938 

0939 

0807 

0808 

0806 

0809 

0803 

0802 

0801 

0742 

Block 

4 

2 

4 

2 

4 

2 

2 

3 

3 

2 

2 

1 

Lot 

4 

8 

10 

9 

11 

10 

0 

12 

13 

2 

34 

14 

56 

14 17 

Inventory No. 

Page 7 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

304 POPLAR HILL AVE 

310 POPLAR HILL AVE 

314 POPLAR HILL AVE 

316 POPLAR HILL AVE 

318 POPLAR HILL AVE 

319 POPLAR HILL AVE 

320 POPLAR HILL AVE 

321 POPLAR HILL AVE 

322 POPLAR HILL AVE 

323 POPLAR HILL AVE 

324 POPLAR HILL AVE 

325 POPLAR HILL AVE 

326 POPLAR HILL AVE 

327 POPLAR HILL AVE 

329 POPLAR HILL AVE 

404 POPLAR HILL AVE 

405 POPLAR HILL AVE 

406 POPLAR HILL AVE 

407 POPLAR HILL AVE 

408 POPLAR HILL AVE 

409 POPLAR HILL AVE 

411 POPLAR HILL AVE 

501 POPLAR HILL AVE 

504 POPLAR HILL AVE 

505 POPLAR HILL AVE 

507 POPLAR HILL AVE 

508 POPLAR HILL AVE 

511 POPLAR HILL AVE 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

Parcel 

0741 

0782 

0783 

0784 

0785 

0718 

0786 

0717 

0787 

0716 

0788 

0715 

0789 

0714 

0713 

0687 

0690 

0666 

0689 

0665 

0688 

0663 

0647 

0644 

0646 

0645 

0626 

0625 

Block 

3 

Lot 

9 

3A 

2 

32 

3 

Inventory No. 

W1-246 

W1-247 

Page SoflO Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

315 E RAILROAD AVE 

416 N SALISBURY BLVD 

510 N SALISBURY BLVD 

104 WALNUT ST 

107 WALNUT ST 

108 WALNUT ST 

110 WALNUT ST 

111 WALNUT ST 

113 WALNUT ST 

114 WALNUT ST 

115 WALNUT ST 

116 WALNUT ST 

119 WALNUT ST 

200 WALNUT ST 

201 WALNUT ST 

204 WALNUT ST 

205 WALNUT ST 

206 WALNUT ST 

208 WALNUT ST 

100 E WILLIAM ST 

104 E WILLIAM ST 

106 E WILLIAM ST 

107 E WILLIAM ST 

108 E WILLIAM ST 

109 E WILLIAM ST 

110 E WILLIAM ST 

111 E WILLIAM ST 

112 E WILLIAM ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Map 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

Parcel 

0986 

0655 

0654 

0771 

0775 

0769 

0755 

0776 

0777 

0767 

0778 

0766 

0779 

0765 

0780 

0764 

0781 

0763 

0762 

0814 

0815 

0816 

0679 

0817 

0680 

0818 

0681 

0819 

Block Lot Inventory No. 

Page 9 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database I/J 8/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

113EW1LLIAIVIST 

114EWILLIAIVIST 

115 E WILLIAM ST 

200 E WILLIAM ST 

201 E WILLIAM ST 

202 E WILLIAM ST 

203 E WILLIAM ST 

205 E WILLIAM ST 

300 E WILLIAM ST 

301 E WILLIAM ST 

303 E WILLIAM ST 

304 E WILLIAM ST 

305 E WILLIAM ST 

306 E WILLIAM ST 

307 E WILLIAM ST 

308 E WILLIAM ST 

309 E WILLIAM ST 

310 E WILLIAM ST 

311 E WILLIAM ST 

312 E WILLIAM ST 

102 W WILLIAM ST 

104 W WILLIAM ST 

108 W WILLIAM ST 

108 WILSON ST 

120 WILSON ST 

122 WILSON ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Map 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0104 

Parcel 

0682 

0820 

0683 

0791 

0684 

0790 

0685 

0686 

0712 

0692 

0694 

0711 

0694 

0710 

0695 

0709 

0696 

0708 

0697 

0707 

0971 

0970 

0969 

0603 

0602 

0601 

Block 

1 

1 

4 

4 

Lot 

29A 

26A 

27B 

3 

14 

13 

0 

Inventory No. 

WI-106 

Page 10 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



WI-153 
NEWTOWN HD 
Salisbury Quad 



WI-153 
Newtown Historic District 
Wicomico County 
Salisbury Quadrangle 



















HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION FOR NEWTOWN 

INTRODUCTION: A grc-jp of Salisourians 197^5 prcrioted a mcve^ient to preserve 
the unicueness of an old neighccrhocd kno-m as Nevrtovii. The 
culmination cf this group's ez"forts vas the acceptance of 
Ordinance #11^2 hy the l-'iayor; and Council of Salisbury on Feb. 10, 
1975J vhich created the ITevtovn Historic District. 

Sie purpose cf Ordinance •:~11̂ 2 as cuoted from the Ordinance, is 
to "regulate the consxruction, alteration, reconstruction, moving 
and deiriclitioncf structures of historic and architectural value 
together vith their appurten-ances and environmental settings 
vithln respective specified ̂ iLinits. This regulation is designed 
to safeguard the-heritage of the City by preserving districts 
herein vhich reflect elements of its cultural, social, economic, 
political or architectural history; to stabilize and improve the 
property values in such districts in the City, to foster civic 
"beaxity, to strengthen the local econamy ?Jid to promote the use 
and preservation of such historic districts in the City for the 
education, velfare and pleasure of the residents of the City 
C2f Salisbury." 

Ordinance #llU2 also prcrvided for the establishment of a 
Historic District CcmKiission vhose duty it is to caray out 
the purpose of the Ordinance. In Section 2 of the Ordinance 
•under item D-5-^ "rovers and Procedures" the Conmission is re
quired to give consideration to "a, b, c, d, e and Item k". 

"a* The historic or architectural value or significance of 
the structure and its relations to the historic value of 
the suri*ounding area. 

"b. nhe relationship of the exterior architectural- features of 
such structure to the rest of the structure and to the 
srurroijiding area. 

"c, Ihe general compatibility cf exterior design, arrangement, . 
texture and m3.terials piroposei. 

"d- Special features in historic areas such as their architectural 
integrity and spatial relationships among buildings. Spatial 
relationships include courtyards, s'creet patterns, scale 
of buildings, and open space. 

"e. To any other factors, including aesthetic factors, vhich 
the Cccmissicn deems to be pertinent. 

'4, Sie Historic District Ccmmissicn shall pass only on exterior 
features of a structure and shall no* consider interior .arrange
ment, nor shall it disapprove applications except in regard to 
the considerations set forth above." 

W l - 1 5 3 



COMMISSION'A ANALYSIS OF AREA 

The "xmiqueness" vhich is seen amd felt in the ise¥toi'?n Area can be 
- described "by a state:::ent of repetitions and continuities throughout the 
district vhich lend the character to the area "V/hich the Cccznission merits as 
inportant to save. This pleasing flavor consists of the sum of the following 
details blending vith one another to forni a vhole, vhich is historically 
and architecturally significant for Salisbury: 

1. Massive late 19th and early 20th century Victorian style houses 
along N. Division Street corridor with strong support frcni sin-

' liar houses on VJillian, Elizabeth, V'alnut and Isabella Streets; 
a parallel corridor in intensity of Victorian houses on Pari 
Avenue. 

2. Sidewalks with large shade trees encouraging pedestrian traffic. 

3. A lack of large or overlighted conmercial signs. 

h. The retension of residential appearance in some conmercial prop
erties. : • 

5. Repetition of the following architectural details: 

a. Large front porches with ballusters. 

"b. Palladian windows. 

c. Victorian "gingerbread" t r im. 

d. Colored glass windows. 

• . e. Diagonal and diamond shaped pane windows. 

f. Beveled, leaded glass windows. 

g. East lake carving motif. 

h. Decorative cornices, brackets, and corner boards or pilasters. 

i. Shaped shingles i.e.; fish scale, diamond saw tooth. 

;J, Shuttered windows. 

k.• Towers, cupolas, balconies. 

1. Predominance of clapboard. 

These specific details in addition to considerations mandated by the 
Ordinance were used as criteria to form a classification system for Newtown 
properties. 

COMMISSION'S SURVEY 

The Commission surveyed in February 1976 each property in the Newtown 
area. The findings have been classified and recorded. Tne information, with 
a picture of the property, is recorded en 3 >̂  5 cards in a file held by the 
Cr."--.r.nion. The 5ur̂ /ey will be used in future identification of properties 

WI-153 



be used to pro'/ide the landmark l i s t mentioned in Section V of Salisbury 
Historic Dis t r ic t Ccr—issicn, Rules and Regulations. The landmark l i s t 
iueraizes those prope. .es vhich should be protected .* the i r h i s to r i ca l or 
ELTchitectural merit . Other graphic mater ia ls , i .e. 'maps vxU t e composed 
from th i s information to show grovth, change, or comparisons. 

CLASSIFICATION CATEGORIES 

Each, property has "been classified according to the following categories, 
A coding systen is used in order to abbreviate the information. 
I 

The classification categories are: 

A. Street and House No. (No abbreviations) 

B. Style of House-indicate heigjit and materials, type 

Abbreviations: ' • ' 

Clapboard = CB 1 Story' =' IS 
Aluminum Siding = Al 2 Story = 2S 
Asbestos Shingle = AS 3 Story = 3S 
Wood Shingle = WS With Attic = W/A 
Brick = B 
Stucco - Stu Victorian - Vict. 
Asphalt Shingle = Asp Colonial - Col. 
Formstone = F Rancher - Ran. 

C. Approximate Date (No abbreviation) 

D. Use 

"Abbreviations: 

Apartment = Apt 
Single family = SF 
Canmercial = Com 
Duplex = Dup 
Public - Public 

E. Condition 

#1 = Sound, recently painted or renovated. 

#2 = Fair, needs paint and seme repair. 

#3 = Poor condition needs extensive repair and paint. Deteriorated. 

F. Rating Historical/Architectural 

A = Must be retained, historically significant and/or exhibits 
many architectural details listed above and is a superior 
example of a period in architectural development. 

B = Should be preserved, represents good exa'Tiple of development 
and style, exhibits some details from above lists and supports 

^ the environ visually by size, shape or materials. 

WI-153 



C = Houses or buildings adjoining A or B properties; and ahould 

b e j ed with considerable thought. WI-153 

D = Should be judged cost leniently, has no significance ajrchi-
• tecturally or historically, lacks close proxinity to A or 

. . B houses, or-is deteriorated beyond reasonable or economic 
restoration. 

G, House has had structural exterior modification since being built 
(porch removed,^ siding changed, trin removed, addition, etc.) 

Abbreviation: 

m = modified 
•um = unmodified. • . . 

H. General. Comment: Any further piece of information vhich would b e 
worthy of consideration, pertaining to history, structure, preser
vation or modification. Empty lots would be described in this space. 

An example of the classification and coding system would be as follows 
for Poplar Hill Mansion: 

Elizabeth 115/2S W / A C B Col./l800/Public/#l/A/m 

General Comment: This house is registered with Mairyland Historic 
Trust and is the oldest home in Newtown. Modi
fications have been made to front porch and removal 
of old kitchen. 

It is the hope of the Historic District Commission that these criteria-
and classifications will assist in preserving the charm, character and prosper
ity of the Newtown District for the benefit of Salisbury's residents and poster
ity. 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



Newtown 
Historic District 

WI-153 



WI-153 Newtown Historic Distict 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-252 

Thomas H. Tilghman House 

 

Architectural Survey File 

This is the architectural survey file for this MIHP record. The survey file is organized reverse-

chronological (that is, with the latest material on top). It contains all MIHP inventory forms, National 

Register nomination forms, determinations of eligibility (DOE) forms, and accompanying documentation 

such as photographs and maps. 

Users should be aware that additional undigitized material about this property may be found in on-site 

architectural reports, copies of HABS/HAER or other documentation, drawings, and the “vertical files” at 

the MHT Library in Crownsville. The vertical files may include newspaper clippings, field notes, draft 

versions of forms and architectural reports, photographs, maps, and drawings. Researchers who need a 

thorough understanding of this property should plan to visit the MHT Library as part of their research 

project; look at the MHT web site (mht.maryland.gov) for details about how to make an appointment. 

All material is property of the Maryland Historical Trust. 

 

Last Updated: 08-29-2003 



-

-

-

Wl-252 
Thomas H. Tilghman House 
Salisbury 
Private 

c. 1907 

The Thomas H. Tilghman house is a prominent example of Colonial Revival domestic 

architecture in the Newtown Historic District. It is a particularly grand statement 

architecturally with its generous proportions, its double-pile depth, and expansive Tuscan 

columned porch that incorporates a porte cochere at its west end. The house 

displays common design features for its time with a bold moldillion block cornice and 

paneled pilasters trimming the principal comers. Another typical feature is the Palladian or 

Venetian style window that pierces the large gabled dormer. Unusual for the time is the 

application of early steel siding that follow the shape of beveled weatherboards. 

Laid out on a spacious Georgian plan with a broad center stair hall, the interior is 

fitted with solid mahogany doors and a mahogany stair railing as well as fine examples of 

Colonial Revival mantels and moldings. 

According to family tradition, Thomas H. Tilghman financed construction of this 

house shortly after the purchase of the lot from Uriah W. and Mary P. Dickerson in March 

1907. The property remained under Tilghman family ownership until 1993. 



MARYLAND IDSTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN INFORMATION 

RESOURCE NAME: ___ T_h_o_m_a_s_H_._T_i_1_g_h_m_a_n_H_o_u_s_e ________ ~~-

MHT INVENTORY NUMBER: WI-252 --------

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE-PLAN DATA 

1. Historic Period Theme(s): Architecture 

2. Geographic Orientation: Eastern Shore 

3. Chronological/Development Period(s): Industrial/Urban Dominance 
1870-1930 

4. Resource Type(s): Single-family dweling 
Garage 



Survey No. in-252 
MARYLAND-INVENTORY OF 

Magi No. 
Maryland Historical Trust 'HISTORIC PROPERTIES 
State Historic Sites Inventory Form 

1. Name (indicate pref erred name) 

historic Thomas H. Tilghman House 

and/or common 

2. Location 

street & number 205 East Isabella Street 

city, town Salisbury 

state Maryland 

3. Classification 
Category 
_district
___x._ building(s) 
_structure 
_site 
~object 

Ownership 
_public 
__x_ private 
_both 
Public Acquisition 
_in process 
_ being considered 
___e_not applicable 

_ vicinity of 

county 

Status 
-2L occupied 
_ unoccupied 
_ work in progress 
Accessible 
~yes: restricted 
_ yes: unrestricted 
_no 

DOE _yes no 

_ not for publication 

congressional district First 

Wicomico 

Present Use 
_ agriculture 
_commercial 
_ educational 
_ entertainment 
_ government 
_ industrial 
_military 

_museum 
_park 
_x__ private residence 
_religious 
_ scientific 
_ transportation 
_other: 

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of~ owners) 

name Joseph Strogas and John Erb 

street & number 205 East Isabella Street telephone no. : 

city, town Salisbury state and zip code 

5. Location of Legal Description 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Wicomico County Clerk of Court 

street & number Wicomioco County Courthouse 

city, town Salisbury 

Maryland 21801 

Map 104i P. 648 
liber 33 4 

folio 504 

state MD 21801 

6. Representation in Existing Historical surveys 

title 

date _federal _state _county _local 

posltory for survey records 

city, town state 



7. Description 

Condition 
_K excellent 
_good 
_fair 

Check one 
_ deteriorated _ unaltered 
_ ruins ___x_ altered 
_unexposed 

Check one 
_K original site 
_moved date of move 

Survey No. WI-252 

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its 
various elements as it exists today. 

The Thomas H. Tilghman house is located at 205 East Isabella Street on the eastern side 
of the Newtown Historic District in Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland. The two
and-a-half story frame house faces south with the gable roof oriented on an east/west 
axis. 

Historically dated to 1907, this large Colonial Revival, two-and-a-half story, 
three-bay, double-pile frame house is supported on a raised stretcher bond brick 
foundation, and the exterior is sheathed with aluminum siding. The steeply pitched 
hip roof is covered with asphalt shingles. Stretching around the south and east sides is a 
Tuscan columned porch, which extends on the west side into a porte cochere. Located 
in the back yard is a single story, two-bay brick garage. 

The south (main) elevation is a basically symmetrical three-bay facade with a 
center entrance and flanking windows. A raised panel front door is framed by leaded 
glass sidelights and a leaded glass transom. The glass incorporated in the transom and 
sidelights is beveled. Flanking the sidelights and fanlight are paneled pilasters that rise 
to a paneled surround that follows the arch of the fanlight. Located to each side of the 
entrance are paired twelve-over-one sash windows trimmed with a slight lintel molding. 
Sheltering the first floor is a Tuscan columned porch that stretches across the full front 
of the house and extends around the east side. The center bay, distinguished by a 
shallow pitched gable roof, features paired Tuscan columns, and the front steps are 
flanked by brick plinths topped with rusticated granite caps. The cornice of the porch 
roof is trimmed with a dentil molding. Fixed between each of the porch posts is a 
railing built with a cross pattern balustrade. The west end of the porch extends from the 
house so that it covers the side yard driveway with a porte cochere. Defining the second 
floor of the south elevation is a slightly projecting center bay, which is pierced by a 
tripartite window flanked by paneled pilasters. Located to each side are paired twelve
over-one sash windows. The base of the roof finished with a bold modillion block 
cornice, and fixed atop the roof is a large gabled dormer pierced by a Palladian window. 
Rising through the roof to each side are interior stretcher bond brick chimney stacks. 

Pairs of twelve-over-one sash windows light the first and second floor on each 
side elevation, and a two-story porch covers a portion of the rear (north) wall. The 
interior has survived relatively unchanged since the early twentieth century. A large 
center stair hall divides a four-room plan finished in Colonial Revival woodwork. 



8. Significance Survey No. WI-252 

Period Areas of Significance-Check and justify below 
_ prehistoric 
- - 140~1499 

_ archeology-prehistoric _ community planning _ landscape architecture_ religion 
_ archeology-historic _ conservation _ law _ science 

150~1599 

_ 160~1699 

_ 170~1799 

_ 180~1899 

~190~ 

Specific dates 

_ agriculture _economics _ literature _ sculpture 
~ architecture _ education _ military _ social/ 
_ art _ engineering _ music humanitarian 
_ commerce _ exploration/settlement _ philosophy _ theater 
_ communications _ industry _ politics/government _transportation 

_ invention _other (specify) 

Builder/ Architect 

check: Applicable Criteria: 
and/or 

A B ic D 

Applicable Exception: A B C D E F G 

Level of Significance: national state x local 

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and 
support. 

The Thomas H. Tilghman house is a prominent example of Colonial Revival domestic 
architecture in the Newtown Historic District. It is a panicularly grand statement 
architecturally with its generous proportions, its double-pile depth, and expansive Tuscan 
columned porch that incorporates a porte cochere at its west end. The house 
displays common design features for its time with a bold moldillion block cornice and 
paneled pilasters trimming the principal comers. Another typical feature is the Palladian or 
Venetian style window that pierces the large gabled dormer. Unusual for the time is the 
application of early steel siding that follow the shape of beveled weatherboards. 

Laid out on a spacious Georgian plan with a broad center stair hall, the interior is 
fitted with solid mahogany doors and a mahogany stair railing as well as fine examples of 
Colonial Revival mantels and moldings. 

According to family tradition, Thomas H. Tilghman financed construction of this 
house shortly after the purchase of the lot from Uriah W. and Mary P. Dickerson in March 
1907.1 The property remained under Tilghman family ownership until I q ~ 7. 

On account of its well-preserved architectural character and prominent site along 
East Isabella Street, the Thomas H. Tilghman house qualifies for listing in Category A, 
which identifies buildings that must be retained. 

1 Wicomico County Land Record, EAT 53/437, 2 March 1907. 



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. WI-252 

1 O. Geographical Data 
Acreage of nominated property _______ _ 

Quadrangle name ______ _ Quadrangle scale ______ _ 

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references 

AL.i_J I I I I I I I I I B w .__I ...._I _._I ---. .......... 1 I I I I 
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing 

cl.LJ .._I_.__.._.._..._~! ~I ...L-L--L-........ ........ 

E L..i_J I I ....._! ~_.__ ......... .......... 

GL..Ll I I ~' ~_.__ ......... __. 
Verbal boundary description and justification 

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 

state code county code 

state code county code 

11. Form Prepared By 

name/title Paul B. Touart, Architectural Historian 

organization Private consultant date 6/26/97 

street & number P. 0. Box 5 telephone 4 1 0 - 6 5 1 -1 0 9 4 

city or town Westover state Maryland 21871 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by 
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated 
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and 
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of 
indiv~dual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical 
Shaw House 
21 State e 
Anna is, Maryland 21401 
(30 ) 269-2438 

MARYLAND HiSTORlCAL TRUST 
DHCP/DHCD 

100 CO~./iMUN:W Pl.ACE 
CROVvNSVllLE. ~l.O 21032-2023 

-5 lf,-?l(X) 

PS-2746 



-

-

-

WI-252 
Thomas H. Tilghman House 
205 East Isabella Street 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title 

Map 104, Parcel 648 

1334/504 

4/20/1993 

AJ S 885/471 

10/18/1977 

EAT 53/437 

3/2/1907 

Edward J. Tilghman 
John B. Tilghman 

to 

Joseph Strogas 
John Erb 

$80,000.00 

Thomas H. Tilghman and John B. Tilghman, Personal 
Representatives of Irma Bounds Tilghman 

to 

Edward J. Tilghman 
John B. Tilghman 
Thomas H. Tilghman 

and being the same land Thomas H. Tilghman died intestate 
Property descended to widow Mary C. Tilghman and unto 
Elizabeth Tilghman Smack and William H. Tilghman 

Uriah W. Dickerson 
Mary P. Dickerson 

to 

Thomas H. Tilghman 

$ 1,000.00 



UNIT ED ST A TES 
~RJ:MENT OF THE INTERIOR 
( )LOGICAL SURVEY 

Point 

:· 

WI-252 
Thomas H 

-··-------r,. 

Tilghman House 

Maryland Quadrangle 

.,, 
II 
II 
I/ 
II 
II 
II 

!~· --==i'I 
\\ 
~ . . 

' -----------,. 

II 
II 
II 

:JI 

. . 





I' ..... / 1' I / 

" 
l/~1 ( J Ll I I { eJ 

( q /~' . ,, - / •/ 
/ ; ,I 

/ 
I 



4/15/24, 12:12 PM SDAT: Real Property Data Search

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages/default.aspx 1/1

Real Property Data Search ( )

     

Search Result for WICOMICO COUNTY
 

View Map View GroundRent Redemption View GroundRent Registration

Special Tax Recapture: None
Account Identifier: District - 05 Account Number - 014700

Owner Information
Owner Name: ST FLEUR FAMILY INVESTMENTS L L C Use:

Principal Residence:
APARTMENTS
NO

Mailing Address: 540 DELAWARE AVE
SALISBURY MD 21801-

Deed Reference: /04638/ 00432

Location & Structure Information
Premises Address: 213 E ISABELLA ST

SALISBURY 21801-0000
Legal Description: L-11,995 SQFT

213 E ISABELLA STREET
CITY OF SALIS

Map: Grid: Parcel: Neighborhood: Subdivision: Section: Block: Lot: Assessment Year: Plat No:
0104 0021 0652 10002.23 0000 2023 Plat Ref:

Town: SALISBURY

Primary Structure Built Above Grade Living Area Finished Basement Area Property Land Area County Use
1920 2,991 SF 11,995 SF

Stories Basement Type Exterior Quality Full/Half Bath Garage Last Notice of Major Improvements
MULTIPLE RESIDENCE / C3

Value Information
Base Value Value Phase-in Assessments

As of
01/01/2023

As of
07/01/2023

As of
07/01/2024

Land: 43,700 43,700
Improvements 62,000 62,300
Total: 105,700 106,000 105,800 105,900
Preferential Land: 0 0

Transfer Information
Seller: ST FLEUR HEBREUX Date: 05/28/2020 Price: $0
Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /04638/ 00432 Deed2:

Seller: HEBREW QUALITY INVESTMENT L L C Date: 12/29/2009 Price: $87,900
Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /03141/ 00420 Deed2:

Seller: ST FLEUR, HEBREUX Date: 06/09/2006 Price: $0
Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /02617/ 00386 Deed2:

Exemption Information
Partial Exempt Assessments: Class 07/01/2023 07/01/2024
County: 000 0.00
State: 000 0.00
Municipal: 000 0.00|0.00 0.00|0.00
Special Tax Recapture: None

Homestead Application Information
Homestead Application Status: No Application 

Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Information
Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Status: No Application Date:

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/realproperty/maps/showmap.html?countyid=23&accountid=05+014700
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRedemption", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRegistration", "", true, "", "", false, true))
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Account-Identifier
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Owner-Name
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Principal-Residence
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Mailing-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed-Reference
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Premises-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Legal-Description
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Map-Number
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Grid
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Parcel
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Neighborhood
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Subdivision
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Section
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Block
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Lot
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Assessment-Year
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-No
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-Ref
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Town
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Primary-Structure-Built
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#AGLiving-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FBasement-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Property-Land-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Stories
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Basement
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Exterior
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Quality
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FHBaths
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Garage
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Renovation
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Base-Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Phase-in-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Improvements
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Total
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Preferential-Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Partial-Exempt-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#State-Code
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Municipal
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homestead-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Date


Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 

 
Hearing Notification 

 
Hearing Date:     April 24, 2024 
 
Time:       7:00 pm 
 
Location:  Government Office Building  

125 N. Division Street  
Salisbury, MD. 21804 
Room 301  

 
Case Number:     #24-09 
 
Commission Considering: New Construction – Rear Property 
 
Owner’s Name:   Frank K Feather 
 
Applicant Name:     Frank K Feather  
 
Agent/Contractor:     Frank K Feather 
 
Subject Property Address:    111 Walnut St 
 
Historic District:      Newton Historic District 
 
Use Category:     Residential 
 
Chairman:       Mr. Scott Saxman 
 
HDC Staff contact:     Amanda Rodriquez   

City Planner 
       (410) 548-3170 



24-09













Salisbury Historic District Commission 
 

STAFF FINDINGS 
 

Meeting of April 24, 2024 
 

 
Case Number:     #24-09 
 
Commission Considering: New Construction – Rear of Property 
 
Owner Name: Frank K. Feather 
Owners Address:  
 111 Walnut St 
 Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Applicant Name:     Frank K. Feather 
 
Applicant’s Address:    111 Walnut St   
       Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Agent/Contractor:     Frank K. Feather 
 
Subject Property Address:    111 Walnut St 
       Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Historic District:      Newton Historic District   
 
Use Category:     Residential 
 
Zoning Classification:    R-8 Residential 
 
Structure / Site Description: 
 

Built Date:     1915 
 
Enclosed Area:    2,331 sq. ft. 

 
Lot Size:     6,330 sq. ft. 

 
Number of Stories:    2 

 
Contributing Structure:    TBD 



 
 
 
 
 
Wicomico County Historic Survey on file:   Yes 
 
Nearby Properties on County Survey:   No   
 
Properties included below but not limited to: 
 
N/A 
 
Explanation of Request: The applicant is seeking approval to place a harbor freight type 
portable carport/garage on an existing recently repaired wooden platform at the rear of the 
property. 
 
Areas of Historic Guidelines to be considered: 
 
Roofing and Chimneys 
Please see the preceding section, Universal Guidelines, for additional guidelines on Roofing and 
Chimneys. 
Guideline 60: Roof Shape and Slope 
a. Preserve the historic shape and slope of the roof of the main house as well as historic 
outbuildings 
like garages and carriage houses. 
b. Roof shapes on additions and outbuildings, including large sheds and garages, should be 
consistent with the architectural style of the main building. For example, a house with a hipped 
roof would likely have a garage with a hipped roof. A gable-roofed building would typically have 
additions with gable or shed roofs. 
c. On new buildings, roof shapes should be consistent with those found in the surrounding area. 
Nearly every type of domestic roof type is present within the Newtown and Camden Historic 
Districts. The new design should be harmonious with the adjacent properties. 
 
Garages and Outbuildings 
Guideline 63: Maintain and Preserve Historic Outbuildings 
a. Preserve the building’s overall form and style. Avoid altering the shape, form, height, 
materials, 
and architectural elements. 
b. Preserve, maintain, and repair as necessary distinctive features and characteristics such as 
wood cladding and trim, ornaments, original windows, and other character defining details. 
c. Restore missing or altered features based on pictorial evidence, or in keeping with buildings 
of the same type, style, and period. If no evidence or precedent exists, create a simple design 
that is complimentary to the existing primary building and does not convey a false sense of 
history by utilizing arbitrary stylistic details not associated with the subject property’s style. 
d. Paint colors should be compatible with those of the primary building. 
 



Guideline 64: Garage Conversions 
a. When converting an existing garage to a new use, retain original details, including windows 
and doors as well as the building’s overall form. 
b. Additions to garages should follow the same guidance outlined in Guidelines 35 and 36, 
Residential Additions and New Construction, in the Universal Guidelines section. 
 
Guideline 65: New Construction 
a. The new garage shall be compatible with the primary building in terms of scale, massing, and 
style. 
b. Pre-fabricated, non-permanent sheds are permitted in the rear of the property. They should 
be small in scale and congruous with the style of the primary building. 
 
 

Staff Findings Prepared By: Jennifer Jean 
Infrastructure and Development 
125 N Division Street, Suite 304 

Salisbury, MD 21801 
(410) 548-3170 

Date: April 24, 2024 



WI-153 

Newtown Historic District 

 

Architectural Survey File 

This is the architectural survey file for this MIHP record. The survey file is organized reverse-

chronological (that is, with the latest material on top). It contains all MIHP inventory forms, National 

Register nomination forms, determinations of eligibility (DOE) forms, and accompanying documentation 

such as photographs and maps. 

Users should be aware that additional undigitized material about this property may be found in on-site 

architectural reports, copies of HABS/HAER or other documentation, drawings, and the “vertical files” at 

the MHT Library in Crownsville. The vertical files may include newspaper clippings, field notes, draft 

versions of forms and architectural reports, photographs, maps, and drawings. Researchers who need a 

thorough understanding of this property should plan to visit the MHT Library as part of their research 

project; look at the MHT web site (mht.maryland.gov) for details about how to make an appointment. 

All material is property of the Maryland Historical Trust. 

 

Last Updated: 05-15-2018 



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY FORM 

Property Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address: Historic district: X yes no 

City: Salisbury Zip Code: 21801 County: Wicomico 

USGS Quadrangle(s): Salisbury 

Property Owner: Tax Account ID Number: 

Tax Map Parcel Number(s): Tax Map Number: 104,106-7 

Project: TEA-21 DOE Agency: Maryland Historical Tmst 

Agency Prepared By: Maryland Historical Trust 

Preparer's Name: Nicole Diehlmann Date Prepared: 6/15/2004 

Documentation is presented in: MIHP Form WI-153 

Preparer's Eligibility Recommendation: X Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: _X^A B _X_C D Considerations: A B C D E F G 

Complete if the property is a contributing or non-contributing resource to a NR district/property: ; 

Name of the District/Property: 

Inventory Number: Eligible: yes Listed: yes 

visit by MHT Staf X yes no Name: Nicole Diehlmann Date: 12/15/2003 

Description of Property and Justification: (Please attach map and photo) 

The Newtown Historic District is a mid-19th to early-20th century residential community located in the City of Salisbury. 
The area is roughly bounded by Broad Street/U.S. Route 50 to the south, U.S. Route 13 to the east and railroad tracks to the north 
and west. Most structures within the area are in residential use with the exception of a few churches on the southem end and 
some commercial space along Route 13. 

The Newtown Historic District is one of Salisbury's earliest residential areas. Slowly subdivided from the tract known as 
"Pemberton's Good Will," structures in Newtown date from as early as 1795 to the mid-20th century. These houses, constructed 
by Salisbury's elite, represent the evolution of residential architectural trends from the late 18th to the early 20th century and 
retain their architectural integrity. 

The Newtovra Historic District is comprised of 278 properties. Of the 278 properties, 233 contribute to the district and 45 
do not contribute. Structures in Newtown are large in scale and placed fairly close together. They are typically frame, two-and-a-
half stories in height and three to five bays wide. Most structures have frill length or wraparound porches. The structures 
represent an eclectic mix of mid-19th to early-20th century building types and styles including foursquares, Greek Revival, Queen 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIE 

Eligibility recommended X Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: J£^A B _X_C D Considerations: A B C D E F G 

MHT Comments: 

' Nicole Diehlmann Tuesday, June 15,2004 

Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date 

Peter Kurtze Tuesday, June 15, 2004 

Reviewer, National Register Program Date 



NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM 

WI-153 Newtown Historic District 

Page 2 

vnne, Shingle Style, and Colonial Revival buildings. The neighborhood maintains integrity of location, design, setting, materials, 
Issociation and feeling. 

The Newtown Historic District is eligible for listing on National Register under Criterion A and C as a outstanding 
example of a mid-19th to early-20th century unplanned suburban neighborhood. It is significant for its intact collection of late-
18th to early-20th century residential building styles, as well as for its association with key figures in the development of the City 
of Salisbury. 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIE 

Eligibility recommended X Eligibility not recommended 

Criteria: _X^A B _X_C D Considerations: A B C D E F G 

MHT Comments: 

' Nicole Diehlmann Tuesday, June 15,2004 

Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date 

Peter Kurtze Tuesday, June 15, 2004 

Reviewer, National Register Program Date 



Newtown Historic District 
WI-153 
Salisbury, Wicomico County 
1795-1954 

The Newtown Historic District is a mid-19"^ to early-20'^ century unplanned residential 

community located just north of U.S. Route 50 in the City of Salisbury. Most structures within 

the area are in residential use with the exception of a few churches on the southern end and some 

commercial space along Route 13. Structures in Newtown are large in scale and placed fairly 

close together. They are typically frame, two-and-a-half stories in height and three to five bays 

wide. Most structures have full length or wraparound porches. The structures represent an 

eclectic mix of mid-19* to early-20"^ century building types and styles including foursquares, 

Greek Revival, Queen Anne, Shingle style, and Colonial Revival buildings. The neighborhood 

maintains integrity of location, design, setting, materials, association and feeling. 

The Newtown Historic District is one of Salisbury's earhest residential areas. Slowly 

subdivided from the tract known as "Pemberton's Good Will," structures in Newtown date from 

as early as 1795 to the mid-20' century. These houses, constructed by Salisbury's elite, 

represent the evolution of residential architectural trends from the late 18' to the early 20* 

century and retain their architectural integrity. The Newtown Historic District is eligible for 

listing on National Register under Criterion A and C as a outstanding example of a mid-19' to 

early-20"^ century unplanned suburban neighborhood. It is significant for its intact collection of 

late-18* to early-20"^ century residential building styles, as well as for its association with key 

figures in the development of the City of Salisbury. 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of 
Historic Properties Form 

Inventory No. WI-153 

1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name) 

historic Newtown Historic District 

other 

2. Location 
street and number not for publication 

city, town Salisbury vicinity 

county Wicomico 

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name Multiple Owners 

street and number telephone 

city, town Salisbury state MD zip code 21801 

4. Location of Legal Description 
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Wicomico County Courthouse liber folio 

city, town Salisbury tax map 104, 106, 107 tax parcel tax ID number 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 
Contributing Resource in National Register District 
Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 

X Determined Eligible for the National Register/l\/1aryland Register 
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Recorded by HABS/HAER 
Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT 
Other: 

6. Classification 

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count 
X district public agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing 

building(s) private commerce/trade X recreation/culture 233 45 buildings 
structure X both defense X religion sites 
site X domestic social structures 
object education transportation objects 

funerary work in progress 233 45 Total 
government unknown 
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources 
industry other: previously listed in the Inventory 

12 



7. Description Inventory No. WI-153 

Condition 

X excellent 
good 
fair 

deteriorated 
ruins 
altered 

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

The Newtown Historic District is a mid-19* to early-ZO* century unplanned residential community located just north of U.S. 
Route 50 in the City of Salisbury. The area is roughly bounded by Broad Street/Route 50 to the south, U.S. Route 13 to the east and 
railroad tracks to the north and west. Most structures within the area are in residential use with the exception of a few churches on the 
southern end and some commercial space along Route 13. Structures in Newtown are large in scale and placed fairly close together. 
They are typically frame, two-and-a-half stories in height and three to five bays wide. Most structures have full length or wraparound 
porches. The structures represent an eclectic mix of mid-19* to early-20* century building types and styles including foursquares, 
Greek Revival, Queen Anne, Shingle style, and Colonial Revival buildings. The neighborhood maintains integrity of location, design, 
setting, materials, association and feeling. 

Newtown is a predominantly residential community on the north side of downtown Salisbury that slowly developed from the 
mid-19* century into the early 20* century. The Newtown Historic District is roughly bounded by Broad Street/Route 50 to the south, 
U.S. Route 13 to the east and railroad tracks to the north and west. The district is primarily residential with the exception of a few 
churches along the southern boundary and some commercial space along Route 13. 

Parcels in Newtown were slowly subdivided from a tract of land called "Pemberton's Good Will" beginning in the mid-19 
century. Early development was clustered along what is now Broad and Division streets. More development occurred after the Civil 
War when Isabella, Elizabeth and William streets were partitioned for development from the Poplar Hill Mansion property. The 1877 
Atlas for Salisbury shows a street system very close to what exists today, with the exception of Park Avenue, Oakdale Road and 
Elizabeth Street, which don't appear. Development at that time is clustered on the southern end of the district, principally on Division, 
Broad, Chestnut and Walnut streets.' The neighborhood seems to have been almost built out by the time the September 1899 Sanborn 
Map was published. That map shows very few vacant parcels left in the community. The area along Oakdale Road, on the property 
once called The Oaks, was the last portion of the district to be developed. 

Despite the long period of development, the Newtown streetscape is rhythmic with an irregular gridiron layout and a 
relatively consistent setback. Lot sizes are irregular, but the houses are large in scale and placed fairly close together. The houses are 
typically frame, two-and-a-half stories in height and three to five bays wide. Most structures have full length or wraparound porches. 
The structures represent an eclectic mix of mid-19* to early-2G* century building types and styles including foursquares, Greek 
Revival, Queen Anne, Shingle style, and Colonial Revival buildings. The streets are lined with mature trees. 

Newtown is significant for its broad array and distinguished examples of 19* to early 20* century architectural styles. As a 
result of fires in 1860 and 1886, there are few remaining antebellum houses in Salisbury. Two of them are located in Newtown. 
Poplar Hill Mansion [WI-8], located at 117 Elizabeth Street, is the oldest known structure in the City of Salisbury. Construction of the 
two-story, five-bay frame structure with fine federal-style detailing, including a Palladian window, block comice and decorative 
fanlight over the entrance door, was begun circa 1795 when Levin Handy purchased the property. This property is currently operated 
as a house museum. The rear wing of the 1897 Robert D. Grier house [WI-62] at 315 North Division Street, was originally the two-
story, five-bay frame Thomas Hooper House which dates to circa 1820. Now fiinctioning as a service wing, the structure was 
originally a center hall plan house with fine federal detailing.^ 

The Greek Revival style is well represented in Newtown. Probably the most notable is the three-story, five-bay frame house 
located at 115 Broad Street, formerly known as "Park Hall," which was the residence of merchant and mill owner General Humphrey 
Humphreys. According to an inscribed board, the house dates to 1856. The double pile house is three stories tall with a center hall 
and low pitched roof with wide eaves. The first two stories are clad in weatherboard with 6/6 sash windows while the shorter third 
story is clad in flush board siding with casement windows. The first and second stories are encased in vertical comer pilasters on 
which the third floor appears to rest as a classical entablature. The interior also retains Greek-inspired finishes. Similar to this house 
is the Dr. Cathell Humphreys house (later known as "Mrs. Herold's School") at 325 N. Division Street. This building, constructed c. 

' Wicomico Bicentennial Commission, The 1877 Atlases and other Early Maps of the Eastern Shore of Maryland (Salisbury, MD: 
Peninsula Press, 1976), p. 18. 
^ Touart, Paul Baker, At the Crossroads: The Architectural History of Wicomico County, Maryland, draft manuscript located at the 
Maryland Historical Trust, 2002-2003; Touart, Paul Baker, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood," article 
found in the Maryland Historical Trust vertical files; and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District," found in the 
vertical files of the MHT Library. 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of Inventory No. WI-153 

Historic Properties Form 

Newtown Historic District 
Continuation Sheet 

Number 7 Page 1 

1860-1870 by General Humphrey Humphrey's brother, is a three-story, three-bay center hall dwelling with weatherboard sheathing on 
the first two stories and flush board sheathing on the third. The eaves under the hipped roof are marked with large decorative 
brackets. Other Greek Revival structures remaining in Newtown include Hatfield Manor on Division Street, which was constructed 
for local merchant Theodore Parsons and his wife, Margaret Bell Parsons. This three-story, five-bay, center-hall structure with 
flanking two-story wings and a low pitched roof retains its Corinthian columns and bracketed cornice. ^ 

Elihu E. Jackson, a lumber magnate and Governor of Maryland, and his wife Nellie Rider Jackson lived on the large estate 
known as The Oaks on the north side of Newtown. The house was located on the northwest comer of North Division and West 
Isabella streets and designed in the Queen Anne style by Jackson C. Gott of Baltimore in 1883-84. At the time, it was the largest 
house constructed in Salisbury with over twenty rooms. It was located on an elevated site and was decorated with an asymmetrical 
collection of towers, gables and porches. In August 1887, it was one of the first houses in Salisbury to be electrified. The structure 
was demolished in the 1920s to make way for new residential development.'* 

Other notable Queen Anne dwellings in Newtown include the 1887-8 Gillis-Grier house [WI-13] at the comer of North 
Division and William streets (401 N. Division Street). Built for merchant James Cannon, the asymmetrical house sports a three-story 
octagonal tower with conical roof, brick chimneys with corbelled caps and terra cotta and woodwork panels. In 1897, Robert D. 
Grier, a foundry owner, purchased property at 501 North Division Street. He moved the existing dwelling and hired Salisbury builder 
William J. Johnson to construct a new house on the front of the property. The new portion of the house contains many Queen Anne 
details including a three story circular tower with conical roof and fishscale shingles. Throughout the Newtown district, there are 
many more modest dwellings with Queen Anne detailing. One example is the 1898 William M. Day house [WI-245] at the comer of 
East Isabella Street and Poplar Hill Avenue (119 E. Isabella Street). This two-and-a-half story house is sheathed in a mix of narrow 
weatherboards, decorative panels and fish scale shingles, and contains multisided bays. 

The Perry-Cooper house [WI-106] at the comer of William and Gay streets (200 E. William Street) in Newtown is an 
outstanding example of the Second Empire style. It was constructed in 1897 for Thomas Perry, the owner of the Salisbury Advertiser. 
It maintains its distinctive mansard roof and circular front porch, and is notable for the unusual swag design found in the comice and 
window lintels.* 

The American Four-Square was a popular house type in the early 20* century. They are defined by their two-and-a-half 
story height, square massing and hipped or pyramidal roof They were often omamented with Colonial Revival and Craftsman design 
motifs. One such example in Newtown is the 1910 L. Atwood Bennett house on Elizabeth Street. Constructed for a Salisbury 
attorney, the dwelling is notable for its neoclassical porch and exposed rafter ends.' 

Touart, At the Crossroads and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 
Touart, At the Crossroads and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
Touart, At the Crossroads and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of Inventory No. WI-153 

Historic Properties Form 

Newtown Historic District 
Continuation Sheet 

Number 7 Page 2 

The properties on Oakdale and the northernmost block of Park Avenue, formerly the site of E.E. Jackson's property. The 
Oaks, differ from the rest of the district. They are characterized by larger lots and a curvilinear streetscape. The earliest structures 
date to the 1930s and are predominantly designed in the Colonial Revival style. The eastern half of the block between Isabella Street 
and Oakdale Road is now a community park. 

The Newtown neighborhood also contains several significant institutional buildings. These include the Charles H. Chipman 
Cultural Center, which was formerly the John Wesley M.E. Church. The John Wesley M.E. congregation was formed in 1837 by a 
group of free blacks. They constructed a one-story frame church on a Newtown lot they purchased in 1838 at what is now 321 Broad 
Street. The church was renovated and raised to two stories in 1880, and in 1901 a tower was added to the front. The building now 
houses a museum interpreting local African-American history.* 

In 1859, Salisbury's Wicomico Presbyterian Church congregation began construction of a large brick church with 
Romanesque Revival details at what is now 129 Broad Street. This larger church replaced their former place of worship, a one-story 
building on Broad Street. The church with its rounded arched windows was dedicated on March 24, 1861. The entrance tower and 
steeple, designed by Baltimore architectural firm Owens & Sisco, was added in 1910.' 

The original Asbury Methodist Episcopal Church was destroyed by the 1886 fire, but was reconstructed in 1887-8. The new 
church, financed by wealthy lumber merchant William H. Jackson, was designed by Baltimore architect Jackson C. Gott in the 
Romanesque Revival style and constructed in Port Deposit stone. The church was unique because the sanctuary was oriented on a 
diagonal with a comer pulpit and theatre-style seating. The building now houses the Faith Community Church at 219 N. Division 
Street.'° 

Trinity Methodist Church [WI-64], at the comer of North Division and High Street, was designed by the Baltimore 
architectural firm, C.E. Cassell & Son, and constmcted in 1904-5. Built in the Richardsonian Romanesque style with Port Deposit 
granite and limestone accents, the building is notable for its windows made by the studios of Louis Comfort Tiffany." 

Touart, At the Crossroads; and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
' Touart, At the Crossroads; and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
'° Touart, At the Crossroads. 
" "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 



8. Significance Inventory No. WI-153 

Period 

_ 1600-1699 
X 1700-1799 
X 1800-1899 
X 1900-1999 

2000-

Areas of Significance 

agriculture 
archeology 

X architecture 
_ art 

commerce 
communications 
community planning 
conservation 

Checl< and justify below 

economics 
education 
engineering 
entertainment/ 

recreation 
ethnic heritage 
exploration/ 
settlement 

health/medicine 
industry 
invention 
landscape architecture 
law 
literature 
maritime history 
military 

performing arts 
philosophy 
politics/government 
religion 
science 
social history 
transportation 
other: 

Specific dates 1795-1954 Architect/Builder 

Construction dates 

Evaluation for: 

X National Register Ji Maryland Register not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the 
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

The Newtovra Historic District is one of Salisbury's earliest residential areas. Slowly subdivided from the tract known as 
"Pemberton's Good Will," structures in Newtown date from as early as 1795 to the early 20* century. These houses, constructed by 
Salisbury's elite, represent the evolution of residential architectural trends from the late 18* to the early 20* century and retain their 
architectural integrity. The Newtown Historic District is eligible for listing on National Register under Criterion C as a outstanding 
example of a mid-19* to early-20* century unplanned suburban neighborhood. The neighborhood maintains its integrity of location, 
design, setting, materials, association and feeling. It is significant for its intact collection of late-18 to early-20 century residential 
building styles, as well as for its association with key figures in the development of the City of Salisbury. 

The City of Salisbury was established in 1732 on fifteen acres of land between the north and east branches of the Wicomico 
River. Despite its location on the dividing line of what was then Somerset and Worcester counties, by the end of the 18 century, 
Salisbury had developed into a commercial center. According to architectural historian Paul Touart, much of this growth was fueled 
by "the speculation and subdivision of additional parts of "Pemberton's Good Will," one of the principal tracts on which the city was 
laid out. The newly partitioned land was located along the Salisbury-Laurel [Delaware] Road between High Street and modem-day 
West Isabella Street."'^ A large mill complex was established in 1769 on the north prong of the Wicomico River by Littleton Dennis 
and Josiah and Gilliss Polk which by 1774 contained two grist mills, a bolting mill and a saw mill on eighty acres of land. The 
surviving 1798 Direct Tax records for Somerset County show a diversity of commercial, industrial and domestic structures located 
primarily between the two forks of the Wicomico River. Almost a third of the dwellings were classified as "new," indicating the town 
was experiencing a growth spurt.''' 

Outside of this developed area were several large land holdings, including the 357-acre plantation owned by Levin Handy. 
This property was called Poplar Hill, but was originally a portion of "Pemberton's Good Will." Levin Handy purchased the property 
in 1795 and shortly thereafter began construction of the two-story, five-bay frame structure with fine federal-style detailing now 
known as Poplar Hill Mansion. The house was not completed by Handy, however. In 1805, John Huston, a doctor who also owned 
and operated a downtown bank, acquired the property and finished construction.'* 

During the late 18* century, a 74.75-acre parcel of "Pemberton's Good Will," located between what is now High and West 
Isabella streets, was acquired by another of Salisbury's early physicians. Dr. Martin Luther Haynie. Dr. Haynie subdivided the land 
into smaller, irregularly-sized parcels that fronted the west side of what was then known as Dividing or Boundary Street. The 1798 
Federal Direct tax assessment indicates that these properties were located in "Haynie's Settlement" and were mostly unimproved. It is 
unclear how much development occurred there in the first quarter of the nineteenth century, but by the 1820s, the area was referred to 
as "New Town" in property transfers.'^ 

'̂  Touart, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood." 
'̂  Touart, At the Crossroads; Touart, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood;" and "Architectural Walking 
Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
'•* Touart, At the Crossroads. 
" Touart, At the Crossroads; and Touart, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood." 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of Inventory No. WI-153 

Historic Properties Form 

Newtown Historic District 
Continuation Sheet 

Number _8_ Page 1 

Salisbury continued to grow in the early 19 century, mostly because of its commercial and industrial enterprises and its 
location on the Wicomico River and the primary north-south road of the Delmarva Peninsula. The area of Newtown was incorporated 
into Salisbury's corporate limits in 1847. At that time, most of the construction activity within Newtown was limited to parcels 
bordering on Broad, High, and Dividing streets. The additional acreage within the current-day boundaries of Newtown was still 
owned by Dr. John and Sarah Huston of Poplar Hill.'* 

By the time the railroad reached Salisbury in April 1860, the town boundaries had expanded dramatically and the population 
neared 2,000 residents. The next several years brought setbacks for the town—an August 1860 fire devastated much of the town, and 
by 1862 the town was occupied by federal forces seeking confederate sympathizers. By the end of the war, however, Salisbury was 
recovering from the ravages of fire. Many residents chose to rebuild their houses outside of the commercial district in Newtown. The 
pace of construction was brisk along Division Street. Three new east-west streets were created from land subdivided from the Poplar 
Hill property. They were named after the children of Poplar Hill's owners, John and Sarah Huston—Isabella, Elizabeth and 
William.'^ 

In 1867, the Maryland legislature passed a new constitution with an amendment authorizing the partition of Somerset and 
Worcester counties and the creation of a new jurisdiction named after the Wicomico River. Salisbury became the county seat of the 
new Wicomico County and grew in influence. During the 1870s, an extensive railroad network was developed on the Eastern Shore. 
Many of these lines intersected at Salisbury, transforming the town into a transportation hub. At the same time, dredging and other 
improvements to the Wicomico River improved the town's shipping capacity. These positive economic factors lead to a building 
boom in Sahsbury that would last to the end of the century.'^ 

Fire struck the town once again on October 18, 1886. Ignited in a livery stable downtown, the fire quickly spread throughout 
the city. Wet blankets were effectively used to protect the roofs of Newtown houses from catching on fire. With help from the 
Wilmington, Pocomoke City and Crisfield fire departments, the north and easternmost portions of the blaze were extinguished by 
Broad and Division streets, saving the residence of Dr. Eugene Humphreys [the General Humphrey Humphreys House] at 115 Broad 
Street. Salisbury quickly recovered from this second major fire and Newtown once again became a center of residential 
construction. '̂  

As a result of its ever-growing industrial, commercial and agricultural economy, from the 1880s to the 1920s, Salisbury's 
population grew from nearly 4,000 to over 10,000 residents. This population growth spurred demand for housing. To meet this need, 
some local businessmen constructed rowhouse units on smaller parcels of land. There is a series of such brick rowhouse units in 
Newtown on Poplar Hill Avenue, but the neighborhood remained one of primarily single-family detached houses. " 

The properties on Oakdale Road and the northernmost block of Park Avenue, formerly the site of E.E. Jackson's property. 
The Oaks, were the last to be developed and represent building trends in the early 20* century. They are characterized by larger lots 
and a curvilinear streetscape. The earliest structures date to the 1930s and are predominantly designed in the Colonial Revival style. 

The Newtown Historic District contains examples of almost all architectural styles popular in the United States from the late 
18* to the early 20 century. These high-style structures were built by Salisbury's elite and represent the City's growing importance 
on Maryland's Eastern Shore. 

Touart, At the Crossroads; and Touart, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood." 
Touart, At the Crossroads; and "Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District." 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 
Touart, At the Crossroads. 



9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. WI-153 

"Architectural Walking Tour of Newtown Historic District," found in the vertical files of the MHT Library. 

Touart, Paul Baker, At the Crossroads: The Architectural History of Wicomico County, Maryland, draft manuscript located at the 
Maryland Historical Trust, 2002-2003. 

, "The Eighteenth-Century Origins of the Newtown Neighborhood," article found in the Maryland Historical Trust vertical 
files. 

Wicomico Bicentennial Commission, The 1877 Atlases and other Early Maps of the Eastern Shore of Maryland (Salisbury, MD: 
Peninsula Press, 1976). 

10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property 74.98 
Acreage of historical setting 74.98 
Quadrangle name Salisbury Quadrangle scale: 1:24.000 

Verbal boundary description and justification 
The Newtown Historic District is roughly bounded by Broad Street/Route 50 to the south, U.S. Route 13 to the east and railroad 
tracks to the north and west. This area contains a concentrated collection of significant historic properties that were originally 
subdivided from the tract "Pemberton's Good Will." Some properties facing the west side of U.S. Business Route 13 are not 
included in the district because they do not retain sufficient integrity to contribute to the district's significance. 

11. Form Prepared by 

name/title 

organization 

street & nunnber 

city or town 

Nicole A. Diehlmann 

Maryland Historical Trust 

100 Community Place 

Crownsville 

date 

telephone 

state 

June 30, 2004 

410-514-7625 

MD 

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature 
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only 
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCD/DHCP 
100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023 
410-514-7600 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

209 ASBURY PL 

211 ASBURY PL 

213 ASBURY PL 

101 BROAD ST 

115 BROAD ST 

123 BROAD ST 

207 BROAD ST 

221 BROAD ST 

225 BROAD ST 

227 BROAD ST 

325 BROAD ST 

323 N BROAD ST 

327 N BROAD ST 

112 CHESTNUT ST 

107 E CHESTNUT ST 

109 E CHESTNUT ST 

119 E CHESTNUT ST 

121 E CHESTNUT ST 

104 W CHESTNUT ST 

107 W CHESTNUT ST 

111 W CHESTNUT ST 

106 COLONIAL CT 

104 S COLONIAL CT 

217 N DIVISION ST 

218 N DIVISION ST 

224 N DIVISION ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Map 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

Parcel 

1002 

1863 

0749 

0750 

0751 

0753 

0752 

0748 

0747 

0745 

0744 

0743 

0740 

1864 

1862 

0746 

0758 

0759 

0760 

0761 

0995 

0957 

0958 

0952 

0953 

0754 

0999 

0998 

Block 

2 

0 

5 

4 

4 

4 

4 

5 

5 

Lot 

1 

PARB 

2 

2 

0 

5 

28 

1 

23 

25 

4 

3 

Inventory No. 

WI-14 

WI-151 

Page I of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

225 N DIVISION ST 

226 N DIVISION ST 

228 N DIVISION ST 

300 N DIVISION ST 

301 N DIVISION ST 

302 N DIVISION ST 

304 N DIVISION ST 

305 N DIVISION ST 

308 N DIVISION ST 

309 N DIVISION ST 

312 N DIVISION ST 

313 N DIVISION ST 

314 N DIVISION ST 

315 N DIVISION ST 

316 N DIVISION ST 

319 N DIVISION ST 

320 N DIVISION ST 

321 N DIVISION ST 

322 N DIVISION ST 

324 N DIVISION ST 

325 N DIVISION ST 

326 N DIVISION ST 

328 N DIVISION ST 

401 N DIVISION ST 

403 N DIVISION ST 

407 N DIVISION ST 

408 N DIVISION ST 

501 N DIVISION ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

Parcel 

0757 

0997 

0996 

0956 

0756 

0955 

0954 

0773 

0951 

0772 

0950 

0774 

0949 

0810 

0948 

0811 

0947 

0812 

0946 

0945 

0813 

1867 

0943 

0678 

0677 

0676 

0941 

0635 

Block 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

2 

Lot 

26 

24 

22 

21 

20 

19A 

0 

17 

0 

15 

23 

0 

Inventory No. 

WI-62 

WI-110 

WI-13 

Page 2 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

509 N DIVISION ST 

601 N DIVISION ST 

605 N DIVISION ST 

607 N DIVISION ST 

611 N DIVISION ST 

613 N DIVISION ST 

102 ELIZABETH ST 

103 ELIZABETH ST 

104 ELIZABETH ST 

105 ELIZABETH ST 

106 ELIZABETH ST 

107 ELIZABETH ST 

108 ELIZABETH ST 

109 ELIZABETH ST 

111 ELIZABETH ST 

113 ELIZABETH ST 

114 ELIZABETH ST 

116 ELIZABETH ST 

117 ELIZABETH ST 

202 ELIZABETH ST 

203 ELIZABETH ST 

204 ELIZABETH ST 

205 ELIZABETH ST 

206 ELIZABETH ST 

208 ELIZABETH ST 

210 ELIZABETH ST 

306 ELLEN ST 

324 ELLEN ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Map 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0107 

0107 

Parcel 

0634 

0608 

0607 

0606 

0605 

0604 

0633 

0609 

0632 

0610 

0631 

0611 

0630 

0612 

0613 

0614 

0628 

0627 

0615 

0624 

0616 

0623 

0617 

0622 

0621 

0620 

0702 

0706 

Block Lot Inventory No. 

W1-360 

WI-361 

W1-364 

WI-8 

Page 3 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

305 GAY ST 

306 GAY ST 

307 GAY ST 

308 GAY ST 

309 GAY ST 

310 GAY ST 

311 GAY ST 

312 GAY ST 

313 GAY ST 

317 HAPPY LANE 

101 HIGH ST 

105 HIGH ST 

107 HIGH ST 

109 HIGH ST 

106 HIGH ST 

111 HIGH ST 

113 HIGH ST 

102 E ISABELLA ST 

103 E ISABELLA ST 

104 E ISABELLA ST 

105 E ISABELLA ST 

106 E ISABELLA ST 

107 E ISABELLA ST 

108 E ISABELLA ST 

109 E ISABELLA ST 

110 E ISABELLA ST 

111 E ISABELLA ST 

112 E ISABELLA ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

Parcel 

0796 

0797 

0795 

0798 

0794 

0799 

0793 

0800 

0792 

0730 

1000 

1001 

1005 

1006 

1003 

1007 

1008 

0675 

0636 

0674 

0637 

0673 

0638 

0672 

0639 

0671 

0640 

0670 

Block 

6 

6 

6 

Lot 

1 

2 

4 

Inventory No. 

W1-328 

Page 4 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

113 E ISABELLAS! 

114 E ISABELLAS! 

116 E ISABELLAS! 

117 E ISABELLAS! 

118 E ISABELLAS! 

119 E ISABELLAS! 

120 E ISABELLAS! 

204 E ISABELLA S ! 

205 E ISABELLA S ! 

206 E ISABELLA S ! 

207 E ISABELLA S ! 

209 E ISABELLA S ! 

210 E ISABELLAS! 

211 E ISABELLAS! 

213 E ISABELLAS! 

214 E ISABELLAS! 

215 E ISABELLAS! 

216 E ISABELLAS! 

220 E ISABELLA S ! 

222 E ISABELLA S ! 

104 W ISABELLAS! 

108 W ISABELLAS! 

n o w ISABELLAS! 

205 W ISABELLA S ! 

208 W ISABELLA S ! 

LEMMON HILL LN 

305 LEMMON HILL LN 

313 LEMMON HILL LN 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0106 

Parcel 

0641 

0669 

0668 

0642 

0667 

0643 

0664 

0662 

0648 

0661 

0649 

0650 

0660 

0651 

0652 

0659 

0653 

0658 

0657 

0656 

0976 

0975 

0974 

0925 

0977 

1010 

1009 

1011 

Block 

3 

3 

3 

Lot 

2 

6 

5 

4 

24 

1 

Inventory No. 

W1-245 

Page 5 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

315 LEIVIMON HILL LN 

309 LESTER CT 

101 OAKDALE ROAD 

105OAKDALE ROAD 

107 OAKDALE ROAD 

201 OAKDALE ROAD 

207 OAKDALE ROAD 

208 OAKDALE ROAD 

212 OAKDALE ROAD 

213 OAKDALE ROAD 

215 OAKDALE ROAD 

219 OAKDALE ROAD 

221 OAKDALE ROAD 

223 OAKDALE ROAD 

225 OAKDALE ROAD 

300 PARK AVE 

302 PARK AVE 

303 PARK AVE 

304 PARK AVE 

305 PARK AVE 

306 PARK AVE 

307 PARK AVE 

308 PARK AVE 

309 PARK AVE 

310 PARK AVE 

311 PARK AVE 

312 PARK AVE 

314 PARK AVE 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0106 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0106 

Parcel 

1012 

0804 

0912 

0913 

0914 

0915 

0916 

0931 

0930 

0917 

0918 

0919 

0920 

0921 

0927 

0991 

0990 

0959 

0989 

0960 

0988 

0961 

0987 

0962 

0986 

0963 

0985 

0984 

Block 

3 

2 

2 

4 

2 

4 

2 

4 

2 

2 

4 

2 

2 

Lot 

1 23 

10A 

1 

2 

2 

3 

4 

4 

4 

5 

6 

6 

7 

8 

Inventory No. 

Page 6 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

315 PARK AVE 

316 PARK AVE 

317 PARK AVE 

318 PARK AVE 

319 PARK AVE 

320 PARK AVE 

321 PARK AVE 

323 PARK AVE 

400 PARK AVE 

402 PARK AVE 

403 PARK AVE 

405 PARK AVE 

406 PARK AVE 

500 PARK AVE 

504 PARK AVE 

507 PARK AVE 

508 PARK AVE 

511 PARK AVE 

513 PARK AVE 

519 PARK AVE 

106 PARSONS ST 

107 PARSONS ST 

108 PARSONS ST 

109 PARSONS ST 

110 PARSONS ST 

112 PARSONS ST 

114 PARSONS ST 

300 POPLAR HILL AVE 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Map 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0106 

0107 

0107 

0106 

0106 

0107 

0107 

0106 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

Parcel 

0964 

0983 

0965 

0982 

0966 

0981 

0967 

0968 

0980 

0979 

0972 

0973 

0978 

0928 

0932 

0936 

0933 

0937 

0938 

0939 

0807 

0808 

0806 

0809 

0803 

0802 

0801 

0742 

Block 

4 

2 

4 

2 

4 

2 

2 

3 

3 

2 

2 

1 

Lot 

4 

8 

10 

9 

11 

10 

0 

12 

13 

2 

34 

14 

56 

14 17 

Inventory No. 

Page 7 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

304 POPLAR HILL AVE 

310 POPLAR HILL AVE 

314 POPLAR HILL AVE 

316 POPLAR HILL AVE 

318 POPLAR HILL AVE 

319 POPLAR HILL AVE 

320 POPLAR HILL AVE 

321 POPLAR HILL AVE 

322 POPLAR HILL AVE 

323 POPLAR HILL AVE 

324 POPLAR HILL AVE 

325 POPLAR HILL AVE 

326 POPLAR HILL AVE 

327 POPLAR HILL AVE 

329 POPLAR HILL AVE 

404 POPLAR HILL AVE 

405 POPLAR HILL AVE 

406 POPLAR HILL AVE 

407 POPLAR HILL AVE 

408 POPLAR HILL AVE 

409 POPLAR HILL AVE 

411 POPLAR HILL AVE 

501 POPLAR HILL AVE 

504 POPLAR HILL AVE 

505 POPLAR HILL AVE 

507 POPLAR HILL AVE 

508 POPLAR HILL AVE 

511 POPLAR HILL AVE 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

IVIap 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

0104 

Parcel 

0741 

0782 

0783 

0784 

0785 

0718 

0786 

0717 

0787 

0716 

0788 

0715 

0789 

0714 

0713 

0687 

0690 

0666 

0689 

0665 

0688 

0663 

0647 

0644 

0646 

0645 

0626 

0625 

Block 

3 

Lot 

9 

3A 

2 

32 

3 

Inventory No. 

W1-246 

W1-247 

Page SoflO Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

315 E RAILROAD AVE 

416 N SALISBURY BLVD 

510 N SALISBURY BLVD 

104 WALNUT ST 

107 WALNUT ST 

108 WALNUT ST 

110 WALNUT ST 

111 WALNUT ST 

113 WALNUT ST 

114 WALNUT ST 

115 WALNUT ST 

116 WALNUT ST 

119 WALNUT ST 

200 WALNUT ST 

201 WALNUT ST 

204 WALNUT ST 

205 WALNUT ST 

206 WALNUT ST 

208 WALNUT ST 

100 E WILLIAM ST 

104 E WILLIAM ST 

106 E WILLIAM ST 

107 E WILLIAM ST 

108 E WILLIAM ST 

109 E WILLIAM ST 

110 E WILLIAM ST 

111 E WILLIAM ST 

112 E WILLIAM ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Map 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

Parcel 

0986 

0655 

0654 

0771 

0775 

0769 

0755 

0776 

0777 

0767 

0778 

0766 

0779 

0765 

0780 

0764 

0781 

0763 

0762 

0814 

0815 

0816 

0679 

0817 

0680 

0818 

0681 

0819 

Block Lot Inventory No. 

Page 9 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database I/J 8/2005 



Contributing & Noncontributing Resources 

District Name: Newtown Historic District Inventory Number: WI-153 

Address 

113EW1LLIAIVIST 

114EWILLIAIVIST 

115 E WILLIAM ST 

200 E WILLIAM ST 

201 E WILLIAM ST 

202 E WILLIAM ST 

203 E WILLIAM ST 

205 E WILLIAM ST 

300 E WILLIAM ST 

301 E WILLIAM ST 

303 E WILLIAM ST 

304 E WILLIAM ST 

305 E WILLIAM ST 

306 E WILLIAM ST 

307 E WILLIAM ST 

308 E WILLIAM ST 

309 E WILLIAM ST 

310 E WILLIAM ST 

311 E WILLIAM ST 

312 E WILLIAM ST 

102 W WILLIAM ST 

104 W WILLIAM ST 

108 W WILLIAM ST 

108 WILSON ST 

120 WILSON ST 

122 WILSON ST 

Contributing Resource? 

Noncontributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Contributing 

Noncontributing 

Noncontributing 

Map 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0107 

0104 

0104 

0104 

Parcel 

0682 

0820 

0683 

0791 

0684 

0790 

0685 

0686 

0712 

0692 

0694 

0711 

0694 

0710 

0695 

0709 

0696 

0708 

0697 

0707 

0971 

0970 

0969 

0603 

0602 

0601 

Block 

1 

1 

4 

4 

Lot 

29A 

26A 

27B 

3 

14 

13 

0 

Inventory No. 

WI-106 

Page 10 of 10 Printed from Maryland Historical Trust Determinations of Eligibility Database 1/18/2005 



WI-153 
NEWTOWN HD 
Salisbury Quad 



WI-153 
Newtown Historic District 
Wicomico County 
Salisbury Quadrangle 



















HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION FOR NEWTOWN 

INTRODUCTION: A grc-jp of Salisourians 197^5 prcrioted a mcve^ient to preserve 
the unicueness of an old neighccrhocd kno-m as Nevrtovii. The 
culmination cf this group's ez"forts vas the acceptance of 
Ordinance #11^2 hy the l-'iayor; and Council of Salisbury on Feb. 10, 
1975J vhich created the ITevtovn Historic District. 

Sie purpose cf Ordinance •:~11̂ 2 as cuoted from the Ordinance, is 
to "regulate the consxruction, alteration, reconstruction, moving 
and deiriclitioncf structures of historic and architectural value 
together vith their appurten-ances and environmental settings 
vithln respective specified ̂ iLinits. This regulation is designed 
to safeguard the-heritage of the City by preserving districts 
herein vhich reflect elements of its cultural, social, economic, 
political or architectural history; to stabilize and improve the 
property values in such districts in the City, to foster civic 
"beaxity, to strengthen the local econamy ?Jid to promote the use 
and preservation of such historic districts in the City for the 
education, velfare and pleasure of the residents of the City 
C2f Salisbury." 

Ordinance #llU2 also prcrvided for the establishment of a 
Historic District CcmKiission vhose duty it is to caray out 
the purpose of the Ordinance. In Section 2 of the Ordinance 
•under item D-5-^ "rovers and Procedures" the Conmission is re
quired to give consideration to "a, b, c, d, e and Item k". 

"a* The historic or architectural value or significance of 
the structure and its relations to the historic value of 
the suri*ounding area. 

"b. nhe relationship of the exterior architectural- features of 
such structure to the rest of the structure and to the 
srurroijiding area. 

"c, Ihe general compatibility cf exterior design, arrangement, . 
texture and m3.terials piroposei. 

"d- Special features in historic areas such as their architectural 
integrity and spatial relationships among buildings. Spatial 
relationships include courtyards, s'creet patterns, scale 
of buildings, and open space. 

"e. To any other factors, including aesthetic factors, vhich 
the Cccmissicn deems to be pertinent. 

'4, Sie Historic District Ccmmissicn shall pass only on exterior 
features of a structure and shall no* consider interior .arrange
ment, nor shall it disapprove applications except in regard to 
the considerations set forth above." 

W l - 1 5 3 



COMMISSION'A ANALYSIS OF AREA 

The "xmiqueness" vhich is seen amd felt in the ise¥toi'?n Area can be 
- described "by a state:::ent of repetitions and continuities throughout the 
district vhich lend the character to the area "V/hich the Cccznission merits as 
inportant to save. This pleasing flavor consists of the sum of the following 
details blending vith one another to forni a vhole, vhich is historically 
and architecturally significant for Salisbury: 

1. Massive late 19th and early 20th century Victorian style houses 
along N. Division Street corridor with strong support frcni sin-

' liar houses on VJillian, Elizabeth, V'alnut and Isabella Streets; 
a parallel corridor in intensity of Victorian houses on Pari 
Avenue. 

2. Sidewalks with large shade trees encouraging pedestrian traffic. 

3. A lack of large or overlighted conmercial signs. 

h. The retension of residential appearance in some conmercial prop
erties. : • 

5. Repetition of the following architectural details: 

a. Large front porches with ballusters. 

"b. Palladian windows. 

c. Victorian "gingerbread" t r im. 

d. Colored glass windows. 

• . e. Diagonal and diamond shaped pane windows. 

f. Beveled, leaded glass windows. 

g. East lake carving motif. 

h. Decorative cornices, brackets, and corner boards or pilasters. 

i. Shaped shingles i.e.; fish scale, diamond saw tooth. 

;J, Shuttered windows. 

k.• Towers, cupolas, balconies. 

1. Predominance of clapboard. 

These specific details in addition to considerations mandated by the 
Ordinance were used as criteria to form a classification system for Newtown 
properties. 

COMMISSION'S SURVEY 

The Commission surveyed in February 1976 each property in the Newtown 
area. The findings have been classified and recorded. Tne information, with 
a picture of the property, is recorded en 3 >̂  5 cards in a file held by the 
Cr."--.r.nion. The 5ur̂ /ey will be used in future identification of properties 

WI-153 



be used to pro'/ide the landmark l i s t mentioned in Section V of Salisbury 
Historic Dis t r ic t Ccr—issicn, Rules and Regulations. The landmark l i s t 
iueraizes those prope. .es vhich should be protected .* the i r h i s to r i ca l or 
ELTchitectural merit . Other graphic mater ia ls , i .e. 'maps vxU t e composed 
from th i s information to show grovth, change, or comparisons. 

CLASSIFICATION CATEGORIES 

Each, property has "been classified according to the following categories, 
A coding systen is used in order to abbreviate the information. 
I 

The classification categories are: 

A. Street and House No. (No abbreviations) 

B. Style of House-indicate heigjit and materials, type 

Abbreviations: ' • ' 

Clapboard = CB 1 Story' =' IS 
Aluminum Siding = Al 2 Story = 2S 
Asbestos Shingle = AS 3 Story = 3S 
Wood Shingle = WS With Attic = W/A 
Brick = B 
Stucco - Stu Victorian - Vict. 
Asphalt Shingle = Asp Colonial - Col. 
Formstone = F Rancher - Ran. 

C. Approximate Date (No abbreviation) 

D. Use 

"Abbreviations: 

Apartment = Apt 
Single family = SF 
Canmercial = Com 
Duplex = Dup 
Public - Public 

E. Condition 

#1 = Sound, recently painted or renovated. 

#2 = Fair, needs paint and seme repair. 

#3 = Poor condition needs extensive repair and paint. Deteriorated. 

F. Rating Historical/Architectural 

A = Must be retained, historically significant and/or exhibits 
many architectural details listed above and is a superior 
example of a period in architectural development. 

B = Should be preserved, represents good exa'Tiple of development 
and style, exhibits some details from above lists and supports 

^ the environ visually by size, shape or materials. 

WI-153 



C = Houses or buildings adjoining A or B properties; and ahould 

b e j ed with considerable thought. WI-153 

D = Should be judged cost leniently, has no significance ajrchi-
• tecturally or historically, lacks close proxinity to A or 

. . B houses, or-is deteriorated beyond reasonable or economic 
restoration. 

G, House has had structural exterior modification since being built 
(porch removed,^ siding changed, trin removed, addition, etc.) 

Abbreviation: 

m = modified 
•um = unmodified. • . . 

H. General. Comment: Any further piece of information vhich would b e 
worthy of consideration, pertaining to history, structure, preser
vation or modification. Empty lots would be described in this space. 

An example of the classification and coding system would be as follows 
for Poplar Hill Mansion: 

Elizabeth 115/2S W / A C B Col./l800/Public/#l/A/m 

General Comment: This house is registered with Mairyland Historic 
Trust and is the oldest home in Newtown. Modi
fications have been made to front porch and removal 
of old kitchen. 

It is the hope of the Historic District Commission that these criteria-
and classifications will assist in preserving the charm, character and prosper
ity of the Newtown District for the benefit of Salisbury's residents and poster
ity. 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



WI-153 



Newtown 
Historic District 

WI-153 



WI-153 Newtown Historic Distict 



WI-153 



WI-153 



4/15/24, 12:53 PM SDAT: Real Property Data Search

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages/default.aspx 1/1

Real Property Data Search ( )

     

Search Result for WICOMICO COUNTY
 

View Map View GroundRent Redemption View GroundRent Registration

Special Tax Recapture: None
Account Identifier: District - 05 Account Number - 013011

Owner Information
Owner Name: FEATHER FRANK K Use:

Principal Residence:
EXEMPT
YES

Mailing Address: 111 WALNUT ST
SALISBURY MD 21801-

Deed Reference: /03321/ 00171

Location & Structure Information
Premises Address: 111 WALNUT ST

SALISBURY 21801-0000
Legal Description: 6,300 SQFT

111 WALNUT ST
CITY OF SALIS

Map: Grid: Parcel: Neighborhood: Subdivision: Section: Block: Lot: Assessment Year: Plat No:
0107 0009 0776 5030164.23 0000 2022 Plat Ref:

Town: SALISBURY

Primary Structure Built Above Grade Living Area Finished Basement Area Property Land Area County Use
1915 2,331 SF 6,300 SF

Stories Basement Type Exterior Quality Full/Half Bath Garage Last Notice of Major Improvements
2 NO STANDARD UNIT ASBESTOS SHINGLE/ 4 2 full/ 1 half

Value Information
Base Value Value Phase-in Assessments

As of
01/01/2022

As of
07/01/2023

As of
07/01/2024

Land: 16,800 16,800
Improvements 113,900 193,300
Total: 130,700 210,100 183,633 210,100
Preferential Land: 0 0

Transfer Information
Seller: JOHNSON KEITH A Date: 06/02/2011 Price: $155,000
Type: ARMS LENGTH IMPROVED Deed1: /03321/ 00171 Deed2:

Seller: FARMERS BANK OF WILLARDS, THE Date: 01/26/2004 Price: $80,000
Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /02183/ 00725 Deed2:

Seller: PUSEY, MARIA H Date: 12/24/2003 Price: $75,200
Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /02173/ 00656 Deed2:

Exemption Information
Partial Exempt Assessments: Class 07/01/2023 07/01/2024
County: 020 183,633.00 210,100.00
State: 020 183,633.00 210,100.00
Municipal: 020 183,633.00|210,100.00 183,633.00|210,100.00
Special Tax Recapture: None

Homestead Application Information
Homestead Application Status: Approved   07/06/2018

Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Information
Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Status: No Application Date:

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/realproperty/maps/showmap.html?countyid=23&accountid=05+013011
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRedemption", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch$ucDetailsSearch$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRegistration", "", true, "", "", false, true))
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Account-Identifier
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Owner-Name
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Principal-Residence
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Mailing-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed-Reference
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Premises-Address
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Legal-Description
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Map-Number
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Grid
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Parcel
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Neighborhood
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Subdivision
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Section
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Block
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Lot
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Assessment-Year
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-No
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-Ref
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Town
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Primary-Structure-Built
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#AGLiving-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FBasement-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Property-Land-Area
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County-Use
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Stories
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Basement
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Exterior
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Quality
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FHBaths
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Garage
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Renovation
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Base-Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Value
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Phase-in-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Improvements
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Total
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Preferential-Land
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Partial-Exempt-Assessments
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#State-Code
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Municipal
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homestead-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Status
https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Date

	Government Office Building Room 301
	SHDC 03.27.24 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Salisbury Historic District Commission


